=]

f=_.]

=
=
(&

9 April 2018

At the conclusion of the Cultural and Community Committee

Transport, Heritage and Planning
Committee

pajoauuoy/jeqoj/usalry




Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

Agenda

1. Disclosures of Interest
2, Policy - Neighbourhood Parking Policy

3. Policy - Public Exhibition - Energy and Waste Amendment 2018 - Sydney
Development Control Plan 2012

4. Fire Safety Reports



Guidelines for Speakers

at Council Committees

&) @ANISIS

As part of our democratic process, the City invites members of the community to speak directly to
Councillors during Committee meetings about items on the agenda.

To enable the Committee to hear a wide range of views and concerns within the limited time
available, we encourage people interested in speaking at Committee to:

1. Register to speak by calling Council’s Secretariat on 9265 9310 before 12.00 noon on the day
of the meeting.

2.  Check the recommendation in the Committee report before speaking, as it may address your
concerns so that you just need to indicate your support for the recommendation.

3. Note that there is a three minute time limit for each speaker (with a warning bell at two
minutes) and prepare your presentation to cover your major points within that time

4.  Avoid repeating what previous speakers have said and focus on issues and information that
the Committee may not already know.

5. If there is a large number of people interested in the same item as you, try to nominate three
representatives to speak on your behalf and to indicate how many people they are
representing.

6. Before speaking, turn on the microphone by pressing the button next to it and speak clearly so
that everyone in the Council Chamber can hear.

7. Be prepared to quickly return to the microphone and respond briefly to any questions from
Councillors, after all speakers on an item have made their presentations.

Committee meetings can continue until very late, particularly when there is a long agenda and a
large number of speakers. This impacts on speakers who have to wait until very late, as well as
Council staff and Councillors who are required to remain focused and alert until very late. At the start
of each Committee meeting, the Committee Chair may reorder agenda items so that those items with
speakers can be dealt with first.

Committee reports are on line at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au, with printed copies available at

Sydney Town Hall immediately prior to the meeting. Council staff are also available prior to the
meeting to assist.

January 2011



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

Item 1.

Disclosures of Interest

(@) Section 451 of the Local Government Act 1993

Pursuant to the provisions of section 451 of the Local Government Act 1993, Councillors are
required to disclose pecuniary interests in any matter on the agenda for this meeting of the
Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee.

Councillors are also required to disclose any non-pecuniary interests in any matter on the
agenda for this meeting of the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee in accordance
with the relevant clauses of the Code of Conduct — February 2016.

This will include receipt of reportable political donations over the previous four years.
In both cases, the nature of the interest must be disclosed.

Written disclosures of interest received by the Chief Executive Officer in relation to items for
consideration at this meeting will be laid on the table.

(b) Local Government and Planning Legislation Amendment (Political
Donations) Act 2008

The Local Government and Planning Legislation Amendment (Political Donations) Act 2008
(“the Act”) requires the disclosure of relevant political donations or gifts when planning
applications are made to minimise any perception of undue influence. The amendments to
the Act require disclosure to the Electoral Funding Authority of:

. a reportable political donation as defined in the Election Funding and Disclosures
Act 1981 (a donation of $1000 or more made to or for the benefit of the party, elected
member, group or candidate or made by a major political donor to or for the benefit of
a party, elected member, group or candidate, or made to the major political donor), or

o a gift (as defined in the Election Funding and Disclosures Act 1981) to any local
councillor or council employee (and includes a disposition of property or a gift of
money or the provision of other valuable or service for no consideration or for
inadequate consideration) when a relevant planning application is made to a council.

A donation of less than $1000 can be a reportable political donation if the aggregated total of
such donations was made by an entity or person to the same party, elected member, group
or candidate or person.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

Item 2.
Policy - Neighbourhood Parking Policy

File No:  X003620

Summary

In 2017, the Neighbourhood Parking Policy (first adopted in 12 May 2014) was reviewed as
part of the normal review process and an updated draft was endorsed for public exhibition
and consultation. The Draft Neighbourhood Parking Policy was exhibited for 79 days. A total
of 86 submissions were received.

There was strong support for the key proposals of the revised policy — introducing visitor
parking permits for tradespersons, increasing the number of one-day visitor parking permits
and offering a choice of minimum purchase levels.

The majority of concerns raised related more to the implementation of the policy rather than
the policy proposals. The majority of submissions on a single issue were residents
requesting greater levels of ranger activity to increase parking compliance. The next issue of
concern was from residents concerned about time limits in specific local areas. Submissions
that raised the issue of the cost of permits generally expressed opposition to permit price
increases, though a small number of submissions recommended a greater price increase to
reflect the scarcity and value of kerb space.

The proposal to amend time restrictions to achieve greater turnover of parked non-resident
vehicles was the subject of diverse views, with both support for, and opposition to, the
proposed changes. Given the policy acts as a guideline and permits amendment to suit local
community needs, it is not proposed to alter the recommended restrictions.

Given the nature of the issues raised, it is not proposed to make significant changes to the
draft policy. Changes proposed largely act to clarify the intent of the policy.

Recommendation

It is resolved that the draft Neighbourhood Parking Policy 2018, as shown at Attachment A
to the subject report, be adopted.

Attachments
Attachment A. Draft Neighbourhood Parking Policy 2018

Attachment B. Summary of public submissions



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

Background

1.

The Neighbourhood Parking Policy was adopted on 12 May 2014. Major initiatives of
the 2014 policy were to outline recommended time limits for similar areas across the
city for on-street parking, establish the type, quantity and eligibility requirements for
business, visitor, resident and care worker permits, and determine the boundaries of
consolidated parking permit areas. These initiatives have now been implemented and
are largely successful.

In 2016-2017 approximately 16,334 residents' permits were issued to 13,067
households (13.3% of all households). One-day visitor parking permits were taken up
by 5,578 households. One hundred and twenty five business permits were issued.

Compliance with parking restrictions across the City averages around 85%, suggesting
that current approaches to enforcement are having the desired effect.

In 2017, the policy was reviewed as part of the normal review process. The Draft
Neighbourhood Parking Policy was exhibited for 79 days. A total of 86 submissions
were received.

The significant proportion of matters raised related to the implementation of the policy
rather than taking issue with the policy itself. These matters included the need for
resident protection from new developments through changes to time limits and a
request for greater levels of ranger activity.

Key implications

Managing Street Parking

6.

The issue that received the most submissions (18) was that of the need for greater
ranger activity to achieve compliance. Service levels are constantly assessed and
operations are adjusted accordingly. Based on community feedback, targeted patrols
are also undertaken after hours as needed.

The most significant request for changes to time limits was from residents facing
significant development pressures. Various requests for changes were made. The
policy makes provision for operational changes such as these.

The draft revised policy recommended 4P parking not be the preferred parking control
in non-ticketed areas. Opposition to this proposal largely came from commuters who
drove to work. The City does not support long term commuter parking on-street which
is reflected in this Policy. A small number of submissions commented that 4 hour
parking was preferred to enable longer family visits. Due to the need to balance
demand for parking for residents, businesses and visitors, no change is proposed to
the draft policy. Any changes to parking controls in a local area would occur in
accordance with Council's existing processes, which are set out at 2.8 in the policy.

There were a number of submissions requesting the installation of more unrestricted
parking spaces to facilitate parking by residents who were not eligible for parking
permits, however these were outnumbered by requests to remove unrestricted parking
as it facilitates commuting, long stay parking and camping. The policy does not
recommend widespread unrestricted parking.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

10.

11.

The Restaurant and Catering Association recommended that pay parking in café and
boutique retail areas be in place only on weekdays, with free parking on weekends, the
busiest periods for these businesses. Free parking reduces vehicle turnover and
business revenue and it is not recommended that this request be adopted.

Transport for New South Wales and Roads and Maritime Services (RMS) recommend
that the policy adopt a hierarchy which should prioritise public and active transport
over other modes and that this may have some impact on the location of residential,
car share and other on-street parking spaces. The policy was amended to articulate
that, in commercial and mixed-use areas, the City will ensure the adequate provision
of loading zones, bus zones, drop-off and pick up spaces, mobility parking spaces and
bike parking to encourage active travel and public transport.

15 minute free parking

12.

13.

14.

A number of submissions, including the Restaurant and Catering Association and
Office of Small Business Commissioner, recommended that the trial of 15-minute
parking, in place until June 2018, be permanently adopted.

Since the City commenced developing its approach to 15 minute free parking in 2013 it
has been liaising with RMS regarding the impact of the existing Road Rules on its
enforcement. In 2016 following representations, RMS were asked to provide advice to
the Minister for Roads, Maritime and Freight about amendments to the Road Rules to
address this matter. The City has not yet been advised of the outcomes of that
request.

Given that the trial is strongly supported, the draft policy recommends continuing the
trial. Any proposals to extend 15 minute free parking should occur in the context of
extending pay parking to an area.

Resident parking permits

15.

16.

17.

18.

The exhibited policy did not propose to alter the number of permits offered to
households.

The policy has been amended to clarify that each room of an eligible and approved
boarding house will be treated as a separate dwelling eligible for one resident parking
permit in both Zone A and Zone B. This is in line with the current policy.

The policy has been amended to clarify that households in Zone B with a single on-site
parking space are eligible for one parking permit only in circumstances where they
have a second vehicle.

The report accompanying the exhibited policy recommended to raise the fee
applicable to the first household permit by 50% and the second permit by 15% (see
Table 1). Given the second permit price is already double the first permit price, a
smaller increase to this permit is recommended to avoid prohibitive costs. A small
number of submissions suggested that the price difference should be greater. Given
the most expensive permit is $265, it is considered that a significantly greater increase
would be prohibitive, while a more moderate increase still retains the price differential.
This is a matter for the Fees and Charges process.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018
Emissions 1119 or |112-186.5 | 186.6—261.1 | 261.2 or
(tailpipe less more
CO2 g/km
combined)
1st permit | Current $27 $40 $53 $106

Recommended | $41 $60 $80 $159
2nd permit | Current $53 $80 $106 $212
Recommended | $61 $92 $122 $244

Table 1. Annual permit prices — current and recommended.

19.

20.

21.

22.

The most common (56% of permits) permit issued is for vehicles in the 112-186.5
tailpipe CO2 g/km combined category. The price of this permit will increase roughly 38
cents a week.

Submissions that raised the issue of the cost of permits generally expressed
opposition to permit price increases, though a small number of submissions
recommended a greater price increase to reflect the scarcity and value of kerb space.
It is proposed to retain the existing price for permits for pensioners on full benefits,
given pensions are not increasing to the increasing cost of living. This is a matter for
the Fees and Charges process.

It is recommended that the requirement that a household vehicle be registered at a
resident's address be amended to formally recognise the City already allows residents
with company cars and long term leased vehicles to obtain an annual resident parking
permit. This definition is in line with RMS Permit Parking Guidelines 2016.

Temporary parking permits were separated into two classes to provide greater clarity
regarding different types of temporary permits. It is recommended that the restriction of
permit to one temporary construction work parking permit only in 24 months be
removed to acknowledge that works will sometimes go over time. This is considered to
have minimal impact.

Visitor parking permits

23.

The draft revised policy proposed to increase the number of one-day visitor permits on
offer. Submissions largely supported this, with some requests for a greater allocation.
Residents in areas with strict time restrictions, particularly Pyrmont/Ultimo, were
prominent. These requests may be better addressed by fine tuning local time
restrictions rather than increasing numbers of permits on offer across the board and it
is not recommended to increase the number of visitor permits further at present. The
introduction of Visitor Parking Permits — Tradespersons will also reduce the pressure
on the need for one-day parking permits.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

24.

25.

26.

A small number of submissions expressed the view that all households should receive
the same number of permits, or that allocation of permits should be more nuanced
according to local situations. Kerb space is a valuable community asset and the City
attempts to share this resource equitably. Households with a resident parking permit
potentially use kerb space 365 days a year, whereas households without a resident
parking permit do not use as much kerb space. A small number of submissions
expressed concern that an increase in visitor permits would increase pressure on
resident parking. Current uptake of visitor permits is low (5% of households) so this is
not considered to currently present a risk.

Some residents expressed concern that permits cost $2 each. Given the scarcity of
this valuable community asset, and the cost of administering the permit scheme, this
modest charge is not unreasonable and it is not proposed to reduce this fee beyond
offering a pensioner discount of 50%. Some residents are currently paying more than
$2 per permit, due to the current flat fee structure of $53 for a full permit allocation.

There was general support for enabling the purchase of smaller amounts of a
household's entitlement in one transaction.

Visitor Parking Permit - Tradepersons

27.

28.

29.

There was overwhelming support for the adoption of Visitor Parking Permits —
Tradespersons. Views on the recommended fee of $53 per week were varied, some
submitting that the proposed fee was too high compared to one-day visitor parking
permits. Others submitted that it was too low in view of the high value of City kerb
space. It is recommended that the fee of $53 per week be advertised as part of the
Fees and Charges process.

A number of concerns were raised that the amount of permits (total of six weeks per
household) is not enough for some major works, or that a one-week permit does not
match tradespersons working patterns. One-day Visitor Parking Permits can also be
used for tradespeople and, with most households now eligible for either 40 or 60 visitor
parking permits (should the policy be adopted), many households can obtain between
12—14 weeks parking for tradespersons, along with paid parking, timed parking and
off-street parking. It is not proposed to alter the number of weekly permits offered.

The proposed amendments include an additional requirement that the resident's
address be shown on the parking permit, in line with RMS Permit Parking Guidelines
2016.

Business Parking Permits

30.

31.

There was support for broadening the criteria of vehicles that are eligible for a
business parking permit to gives businesses greater flexibility in managing their
businesses and allow smaller, more fuel efficient vehicles to be used for business
purposes.

The Sydney Business Chamber requested that there be greater clarity provided about
the type of vehicles that would be eligible and how 'used to carry goods in the course
of daily trade' will be assessed. The key issue is the need to carry goods. The City will
prepare a checklist to set out this assessment process. Should the City determine that
a need is proven, the vehicle choice will be a decision for the business. It is considered
that the requirement for the vehicle to be registered and insured for a business use will
assist in reducing the potential for fraud.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

Business Parking Permits - Tradepersons

32.

33.

The City wrote to RMS providing a copy of the draft policy and requested changes to
the Road Transport (General) Regulation 2013 to create a new class of permit. RMS
have responded that they agree that the provision of this type of short-term parking is
likely to be beneficial and have indicated that they will review both the Road Transport
(General) Regulation 2013 and the Permit Parking Guidelines to allow short-term
parking for tradespeople visiting businesses. The timeframe for this is to be
determined.

Annexure A to the policy, as exhibited, has been removed from the policy until such
time as RMS advises the City of the proposed new permit class. When the Guidelines
allow the City to offer the proposed permit, Annexure A will be presented to Council for
its incorporation into the Neighbourhood Parking Policy.

Support Worker Permits

34.

35.

36.

The introduction of the National Disability Insurance Scheme is bringing about
substantial change within the ageing and disability services sector. There was some
modification of wording to better respond to the new funding framework.

It is recommended that the name of the permit be changed from Care Worker Permit
to Support Worker Permit and the term 'care' be replaced by 'support' to move away
from medicalising disability.

It is recommended that the definition "an accredited health care organisation means an
organisation that has accreditation or written support from one of the following:
Department of Family & Community Services; NSW Department of Health; any other
Commonwealth, state or non-government health body approved by the Director of City
Culture and Community" be changed to "service provider means an organisation or
health professional approved by a relevant professional or government body to provide
in-home support to residents".

Carers' parking permits

37.

38.

There was support for reinstating the Carers' Permit for eligible residents to
complement the Care Workers’ permit. Some minor changes were made to the
wording of the policy to clarify eligibility and respond to the changing funding
framework under the National Disability Insurance Scheme. Given that the definition of
'Carer' is enshrined in legislation, the 'care' is used throughout this section of the policy
for consistency and to distinguish the Carers' Parking Permit from the Support Worker
Parking Permit.

There were some requests to extend Carers' Permits to all households, including those
built with a condition of consent excluding building residents from access to the
Resident Parking Scheme. This is not supported, as it is likely to increase parking
pressure.

Motorcycle parking

39.

The NSW Motorcycle Council expressed concern that the policy singled out
motorcycles for noise and air quality impacts. The policy was amended to more clearly
explain that the purpose of considering impact is due to collective impact of multiple
vehicles parking in a single parking space.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

Parklets

40. Two submissions requested that the City devote more effort to supporting vehicular
parklets (vehicle trailers modified to provide seating). Vehicular parklets do not comply
with road transport legislation and the City must abide by the legislation.

Hardship

41. The draft revised policy limits the waiving of policy elements on hardship grounds to be
consistent with the provisions of the Schedule of Fees and Charges. There were some
concerns that this could reduce flexibility of the City to respond to particular cases. It is
considered that the reintroduced Carers' Permit, and amendments to the resident
parking permit eligibility criteria to enable residents to obtain a permit for a vehicle not
registered in their name (Section 8.2), will address these concerns.

Budget Implications

42. Numerous factors impact on the uptake of the various parking permits, and detailed
modelling is not available to predict the elasticity of demand, nor revenue foregone
from parking meters. Overall, it is estimated that the overall impact of the proposed
changes will be budget positive.

43. All comments relating to the price of parking permits and parking meter fees received
as part of the community consultation for the Neighbourhood Parking Policy will be

passed on to the Fees and Charges consultation process and treated as submissions
to that consultation.

Policy review
44. The exhibited policy recommended a four year review. This is supported.
45. There may be a need to bring the review forward to respond to changes to vehicle

sharing, electric vehicles and "mobility as a service". Council will be advised if this is
required.

Relevant Legislation

46. Parking permit schemes are governed by the Road Transport (General) Regulation
2013.

47. RMS Parking Permit Guidelines 2016 set out matters which need to be considered
when permits schemes are developed and implemented.

Critical Dates / Time Frames

48. ltis proposed that changes to permits be introduced from 1 July 2018.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

Public Consultation

49. The draft revised policy was exhibited for 79 days. Notice of the exhibition was
published in local press and on the City’s website. A total of 86 submissions were
received. Of these, 65 were from residents, seven were from community organisations,
two were from business groups, four were from government agencies and eight were
from employees of a single workplace.

50. No changes to fees will occur until 1 July 2018. In accordance with section 610F of the

Local Government Act, the proposed changes to the fees will be exhibited along with
the City’s draft operational plan as part of the annual review of fees and charges.

GRAHAM JAHN, AM

Director, City Planning, Development and Transport

Peter Warrington, Manager, Transport Policy



Attachment A

Draft Neighbourhood Parking Policy 2018




Draft Neighbourhood Parking Policy

Purpose

The City’s Neighbourhood Management Parking Policy establishes a range of parking
controls and permits to guide the management of parking across our diverse
neighbourhoods to meet the City's transport, economic, social and environmental
objectives.

Private vehicles are an important part of the City's transport mix, catering for many journeys
that cannot be easily or economically made by alternative modes. Where these trips take
place in the constrained environment of the City’s neighbourhoods, there is inevitable
competition for on-street parking space.

The City, alongside other roads authorities, recognises its obligation to manage parking
demand fairly and transparently.

Scope

The Policy applies to all on-street parking areas within the authority of the City of Sydney,
except Central Sydney (Figure 1). Central Sydney is governed by the Central Sydney On-
Street Parking Policy.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 1 of 34

10



CONTENTS

1 BACKGROUND .....ccuumiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeeenssssssssssssiiiiiiimiiieitetteessssssssssssssssssssssns 7
2 PRINCIPLES FOR PARKING MANAGEMENT .....ccccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnenieeeeeenneenssssssssssnnsneeee 8
3 TIME LIMITS AND PRICING .....ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnneennnnmmnmmiiiieiieiieeeeessssssssssssses 10
4 MANAGING COMPLIANCE........cccettmmmmmmmmmnmnniiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnieteeteeeesessssssssssssssssssssssss 14
5 MOBILITY PARKING.....ccitiiiiiiiiiiiiitintinnnnnniiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeieeieeemssssssssssssssmem 15
6 PARKING PERMITS ...cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieinieemeenmnnenniiiiiiiiiieiietieeeeessssssssssssssssssssses 16
7 PARKING AREAS AND PARKING ZONES .......ccccoiiiiiiiiiiininininninninenneennnnnnns 18
8 RESIDENT PARKING PERMITS .....cccvvmmmmmmnniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinienieeneeneesnsssssssssssninms 21
9 VISITOR PARKING PERMITS....cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinninnnnnnnmmmniiiieiieeieeemeesssssssssssse. 24
10 VISITOR PARKING PERMITS - TRADESPERSONS ........ccccoiiiiiiiiiininiiniiennennneeneennsennnnne. 26
11  BUSINESS PARKING PERMITS ....cciiiiiiiiiiiinmennnnnnnnneniiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeieeeeeeeessssssssssssses 27
12 SUPPORT WORKER PARKING PERMITS.......ccceeuummmmuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnieiienieeeneeessssssnssnne 28
13  CARERS' PARKING PERMITS ......cuuuumeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinsnseeeeesesssssssssssssssssssssssssssesses 30
14 PREVENTION OF FRAUD AND MISUSE .......ccccettuemmunniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinieneeeeeeeeeesssssssssssees 31
15 TRANSITIONAL ARRANGEMENTS .....ccceiiiiiimmmemnnnnnnniiiiiiiisiiisisiiesieneeeeeeeeessssssssssssnes 32
16 IMPLEMENTATION AND ADMINISTRATION......cccuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiienienieeeeeeeeesssssssssnnnes 33

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 2 of 34

11



DEFINITIONS

Term

accredited-health-care
o

attached dwelling

boarding house

business premises

Meaning

means a building containing 3 or more dwellings, where:

(a) each dwelling is attached to another dwelling by a common
wall, and

(b) each of the dwellings is on its own lot of land, and

(c) none of the dwellings is located above any part of another
dwelling.

means a building that:
(a) is wholly or partly let in lodgings, and

(b) provides lodgers with a principal place of residence for 3
months or more, and

(c) may have shared facilities, such as a communal living
room, bathroom,

kitchen or laundry, and

(d) has rooms, some or all of which may have private kitchen
and bathroom facilities, that accommodate one or more
lodgers,

but does not include backpackers’ accommodation, a group
home, hotel or motel accommodation, seniors housing or a
serviced apartment.

means a building or place at or on which:

(a) an occupation, profession or trade (other than an industry)
is carried on for the provision of services directly to members
of the public on a regular basis, or

(b) a service is provided directly to members of the public on a
regular basis, and includes a funeral home and, without
limitation, premises such as banks, post offices, hairdressers,
dry cleaners, travel agencies, internet access facilities, betting
agencies and the like, but does not include an entertainment
facility, home business, home occupation, home occupation
(sex services), medical centre, restricted

premises, sex services premises or veterinary hospital.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 30of 34

12



Term

carer

commercial premises

community facility

converted residential
flat building

dual occupancy

dual occupancy
(attached)

dual occupancy
(detached)

dwelling

dwelling house

Meaning
As defined by the Carers (Recognition) Act 2010:

A carer is an individual who provides personal care,
support and assistance to another individual who needs it
because that other individual has a disability, or has a
medical condition (including a terminal or chronic illness),
or has a mental illness, or is frail and aged.

An individual is not a carer if they provide care, support
and assistance under a contract of service, or through the
course of voluntary work for a charitable, welfare or
community organisation, or as part of a course of
education or training.

To avoid doubt, an individual is not a carer merely
because they live with an individual that requires care or
they are a spouse, de facto partner, parent, child,
guardian or other relative.

means any of the following:
(a) business premises
(b) office premises

(c) retail premises

means a building or place:

(a) owned or controlled by a public authority or non-profit
community organisation; and

(b) used for the physical, social, cultural or intellectual
development or welfare of the community, but does not
include an educational establishment, hospital, retail premises,
place of public worship or residential accommodation

means a residential flat building created by the alteration or
reconstruction of a formerly commercial, industrial or
otherwise non-residential building

means a dual occupancy (attached) or a dual occupancy
(detached)

means 2 dwellings on one lot of land that are attached to each
other, but does not include a secondary dwelling

means 2 detached dwellings on one lot of land, but does not
include a secondary dwelling

means a room or suite of rooms occupied or used or so
constructed or adapted as to be capable of being occupied or
used as a separate domicile

means a building containing only one dwelling

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 4 of 34

13



Term

full private use

health professional

in-home support

mobility parking space
zone

modification

multi dwelling housing

parklet

place of public worship

major refurbishment

residential flat building

secondary dwelling

semi-detached
dwelling

Neighbourhood Parking Policy

Meaning

means vehicle not registered to a resident but for which
the resident can provide sufficient documentary evidence
to support that they are exclusively entitled to use the
vehicle

means trained professionals including doctors, nurses,
chiropractors, occupational therapists, optometrists,
osteopaths, pharmacists, physiotherapists, podiatrists
and psychologists who assist manage physical or mental
health through services that include diagnosis, treatment
or rehabilitation

means support provided in the home by a support worker
or health professional

a length or area of road identified with a road marking or sign
containing the symbol for people with disabilities

Means includes extension of a dwelling, construction of a
secondary dwelling or permanent conversion of a parking
space to outdoor uses

means 3 or more dwellings (whether attached or detached) on
one lot of land, each with access at ground level, but does not
include a residential flat building

a structure (not including a vehicle) that can be placed in
a parking space to create additional public space for use
by businesses, residents and passers-by

means a building or place used for the purpose of religious
worship by a congregation or religious group, whether or not
the building or place is also used for counselling, social
events, instruction or religious training

means alterations to a residential flat building such that it
cannot be occupied for a period of at least six months

means a building containing 3 or more dwellings, but does not
include an attached dwelling or multi dwelling housing
means a self-contained dwelling that:

(a) is established in conjunction with another dwelling (the
principal dwelling), and

(b) is on the same lot of land as the principal dwelling, and
(c) is located within, or is attached to, or is separate from, the
principal dwelling

means a dwelling that is on its own lot of land and is attached
to only one other dwelling

14

5 of 34



Term Meaning

service provider means an organisation or health professional approved by a
relevant professional or government body to provide in-home
support to residents

eare support worker means an employee of a service provider who provides in-
home support to a resident an-aceredited-health-care

organisation-who-engages-in-in-home-care

serviced apartment means a building (or part of a building) providing self-
contained accommodation to tourists or visitors on a
commercial basis and that is regularly serviced or cleaned by
the owner or manager of the building or part of the building or
the owner’s or manager’s agents

shop top dwelling means dwellings located above ground floor retail premises or

business premises, where the number of dwellings does not
exceed three

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 6 of 34

15



1 BACKGROUND-ANDPOLICY CONTEXT

1.1 Meeting the City's objectives

The sustainability and efficiency of Sydney’s transport network is crucial to the city’s
liveability and prosperity. In order to support City and State Government transport,
economic, social and environmental goals, the City of Sydney has developed a suite of
transport and planning policies.

The City’s planning instruments and policies contain parking controls and sustainability
incentives for new developments, including measures to limit vehicle congestion associated
with the expected population increase of some 115,000 residents by 2036. The City Plan is
complemented by the City’s transport policy, Connecting our City. These policies respond
to the overarching vision in Sustainable Sydney 2030.

The Neighbourhood Parking policy is intended to balance sustainability objectives with the
fair and consistent management of kerbside parking.

1.2 Regulatory framework

The City of Sydney manages local roads and kerbside parking under the authority
delegated to it by the NSW Government. The management of parking controls and
enforcement is governed by NSW legislation, regulations and guidelines. This policy applies
that regulatory framework.

The administration of parking permits by the City of Sydney is guided by the Permit Parking
guidelines issued by NSW Roads and Maritime Services. The guidelines provide advice on
permit types, eligibility criteria and some mandatory features of a permit parking system.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 7 of 34

16



2 PRINCIPLES FOR PARKING MANAGEMENT

The City has four main mechanisms it can employ to manage street parking:
1. the duration of time people can park their vehicles
setting the hours of operation and days that time limits apply

setting kerbside parking fees at a price that reflects the amount parking spaces
available and the demand for them

4. issuing permits to certain people to enable them to avoid time limits and parking
prices.

When applying these mechanisms the City will uphold the principles set out below in order
to maintain a fair and credible parking system.

2.1 Public access

Use of parking controls that recognise that streets are public spaces, open to all people,
and are to be managed in the public interest.

2.2 Liveability

In order to protect the liveability of neighbourhoods for a diverse population and encourage
increased use of public transport, walking and cycling, the City will prioritise use of parking
space for residents, businesses and their visitors and customers. Maintaining this priority
requires that commuter parking on-street in residential neighbourhoods and commercial
areas be actively discouraged.

The City will consider the impact of dedicated motorcycle parking zones on the

liveability of residential areas. The-City-will-considerthe-noise-and-airquality-impacts-of

2.3 Fair use of pricing

The City of Sydney may use on-street pay parking to encourage turnover, improve
compliance, and increase the efficiency and sustainability of the transport network. Parking
permits do not guarantee access to a parking space. All permit fees and charges will be
reviewed annually, and exhibited in the draft Corporate Plan, as required by the Local
Government Act 1993. Section 3 discusses pricing in more detail.

24 Compliance

The City will perform routine ranger patrols to provide a background level of deterrence to
maximise compliance with time restrictions. It will use a proportionate response when
targeting enforcement at areas with significant non-compliance, and specific places and
activities, including school zones, Mobility Parking Schemes, events and construction
works.

2.5 Clarity

Parking controls and parking areas will be clearly signposted, and where possible, parking
controls will be simple and locally consistent in order to minimise the risk of unintentional
breaches. The City will notify the community of any impending changes to reduce the risk of
inadvertent non-compliance

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 8 of 34

17



2.6 Non-discrimination

The City of Sydney will manage parking and parking permit schemes in the interests of all
residents and businesses, regardless of their form of land title, or tenure as owners or
renters.

2.7 Consistent

Where possible the City will endeavour to apply the policy consistently across all
parking areas. At times the City may adopt variations from the usually adopted
parking restrictions in order to respond to local conditions.

2.8 Consultation

Given the strong community interest in kerbside parking management, the City will ensure
that local residents have an opportunity to comment on proposed changes.

The leeal community will be consulted by-mail-and/or-on-site-signage on proposed changes

that modify controls, time limits applying to legal parking spaces or the introduction of
parking meters. Where changes to signage are required for safety or regulatory
compliance, the City will notify the nearby community of the change.

Proposals for significant parking changes will be assessed for technical compliance by the
Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee, and then reported to Council for a
decision.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 9 of 34

18



3 TIME LIMITS AND PRICING

The City will apply duration of parking, hours and days of operation and parking fees at the
scale that best reflects the parking catchments of different land uses. While this scale will
usually be smaller than individual suburbs or parking areas, the City will avoid street by
street parking changes that move, rather than resolve, parking problems.

3.1 Residential areas
Duration of parking and hours and days of operation

In recognition of the limited private parking in most of the City, on-street parking space in
residential streets is prioritised for residents and their visitors.

The City also provides dedicated on-street spaces for authorised car share vehicles to
enable households to share vehicles, reduce household expenditure on transport, and use
on-street parking spaces more efficiently. The management of car share spaces is
governed by the City's Car Share Policy.

Parking controls in residential areas aim to balance the long-stay parking needs of permit-
holding households with the need of all households to use street space for accommodating
visitors including family, GPs, carers and tradespeople. Two hour parking controls are best
placed to achieve this balance because they allow reasonable access for short visits
without the need for permits and are able to be monitored by rangers.

Pay parking

Ticket parking is avoided where possible in residential areas, and where it is installed
resident permit holders are exempt from parking fees. However, in situations where the
occupancy of parking spaces is high, and non-compliance with time limits is high, ticket
parking significantly increases the amount of spaces available for residents by increasing
the efficiency and effectiveness of enforcement. This is because a ranger can determine
with a single visit if a vehicle has exceeded the time limit.

It is recommended that 2P ticket parking be installed where average parking occupancy is
greater than 85% and significant non-compliance persists despite increased enforcement.
Prices in residential areas will be set at a level sufficient only to ensure that compliance with
time limits can be efficiently monitored.

Section 4 provides more detail about where pay parking may be used.

Recommended controls are contained in Table 1. At times the City may adopt different
parking restrictions to respond to local conditions.

Neighbourhood Examples Duration and Operating hours
Characteristics ticket parking and days

Areas with average 75% | Rosebery, 2P 8am-8pm Mon-Fri
parking occupancy Waterloo

during weekdays

Areas with average 75% | Glebe 2P 8am-10pm Mon-Fri
parking occupancy on
weekdays and

weeknights
Areas with average 75% | Newtown, 2P 8am-10pm 7 days
parking occupancy on Erskineville

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 10 of 34

19



weekdays, weeknights
and weekends

Areas with average 85% | Surry Hills, East 2P ticket 8am-10pm 7 days
parking occupancy and Sydney, Green

significant non- Square urban

compliance on renewal centre

weekdays, weeknights
and weekends

Table 1 — Recommended parking controls in residential areas

3.2 Commercial and mixed-use areas

In commercial and retail streets, the City will prioritise parking controls that are consistent
with the viability and efficient operation of local business and encourage the use of active
travel and public transport. This will include consideration of provision for loading
zones, bus zones, drop-off and pick up spaces, mobility parking spaces and bike
parking. The City will also provide dedicated on-street spaces for authorised car share
vehicles to use on-street parking spaces more efficiently and reduce business costs by
enabling businesses access to a variety of shared vehicles.

Parklets are-popularin-some-areas-allowing can allow a different use of road- and kerb

space, to encourage economic development in centres. The City will continue to monitor
developments in this sector, also considering other frameworks such as those for high
pedestrian activity areas, public domain and outdoor dining. Under current arrangements,
all proposals for parklets will need to comply with existing road transport legislation, and
road safety audit processes. Fixed structure parklets (such as modified containers) can
potentially be placed on roads as “structures”, subject to approval by the City under existing
processes. There is currently no permit type that can exempt a vehicle from parking
restrictions, so any vehicles operating as a parklet of this type would need to be placed in
areas where there are no restrictions, or comply with parking restrictions.

Duration of parking and hours and days of operation

Parking controls in and around mixed use or retail facilities will encourage turnover that is
consistent with the local business mix and expected duration of stay by customers, typically
ticketed 2P. Where cafes and restaurants form a significant local land use, the City will
install minimum daytime controls of 2P (from 8am), and evening (after 6pm) controls of 4P.
Daytime 1P controls and evening 2P controls may be used in exceptional cases where local
businesses rely on rapid turnover of parking.

Pay parking

Given the increasingly strong competition for parking in the City's commercial and mixed-
use areas, and the high value of kerb space, it is recommended that pay parking be
installed on streets adjoining commercial and mixed use premises (including

adjacent streets where appropriate) all-parking-spaces-in-these-streets-be-pay-parking.

Prices will be set at a level consistent with adequate turnover for local business.

In order to accommodate short trips and minor purchases, the trial of 15 minute free parking
will be continued in ticketed areas on key retail streets. The City will monitor the impacts
and benefits.

Recommended controls are contained in Table 2.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 11 of 34

20



Predominant use Examples Duration and Operating hours
ticket parking Bl
Cafés, restaurants, Crown St, Surry Hills 2P Ticket 8am-6pm 7 days
boutique retail King St, Newtown 4P Ticket 6pm-10pm 7 days
Victoria St, Darlinghurst
Glebe Point Rd, Glebe
Mixed business, grocery, Redfern St, Redfern 1P Ticket or 8am-6pm 7 days
newsagent, other retail Green Square Town 2P Ticket 6pm-10pm 7 days
Centre
2P Ticket or
4P Ticket
Showrooms, warehouses, Mary St, Surry Hills 2P Ticket 8am-6pm 7 days
offices Foster St, Surry Hills 4P Ticket 6pm-10pm 7 days
William St, Darlinghurst

Table 2 — Guidelines for parking controls in commercial and mixed-use areas

3.3 Community, recreational and cultural facilities
Duration of parking and hours and days of operation

Parking controls adjacent to community, recreational, social and cultural facilities, including
parkland, should allow for turnover that is consistent with their desired use. The City will
increase the number of mobility parking spaces and provide dedicated on-street car share
spaces adjacent to community, recreational, social and cultural facilities to increase social
inclusion.

Regional parks and sporting facilities should have a minimum parking restriction of 2P on
weekdays and 4P on weekends and holidays and an appropriate level of mobility parking
spaces. This allows for access for those enjoying organised sports, picnics and casual
recreation.

Parking controls adjacent to community, sporting and cultural facilities should generally not
exempt permit holders during operating hours. This ensures all-day parking does not
obstruct short-term access by a broad cross-section of the community.

Some community or recreational facilities, including parks, have small street frontages. In
these circumstances, if period parking controls are used, they should be consistent with
surrounding streets to minimise the potential for inadvertent non-compliance.

Time limits near cultural facilities will be reviewed on an as-needs basis to balance the
needs of patrons and the local community.
Pay parking

It is recommended that ticket parking be installed where average parking occupancy is
greater than 85% and average compliance is less than 80%.

Recommended controls are contained in Table 3.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 12 of 34

21



Type of Examples Duration and Operating hours | Permit
Facility ticket parking and days Holder
Exemptions
Specialised Redfern Park 2P or 2P Daytime No
sports Aquatic Centres Ticket Evening Yes
Locally
consistent
Hospital Victoria St, Darlinghurst | 2P or 2P Daytime No
frontage Ticket Evening No
4P Ticket
Small Parks Ward Park, Surry Hills Locally Daytime Yes
consistent
Locallly Evening Yes
consistent
Regional Park | Pirrama Park, Pyrmont 2P or 2P Daytime No
Centennial Park Ticket Evening Yes
4P Ticket
Place of public | St Canices, Rushcutters | Case by case | Daytime No
worship Bay Locally Evening Yes
Newtown Synagogue consistent
Cultural Belvoir Street Theatre 2P or 2P Daytime Site specific
Facilities Ticket Evening
4P Ticket

Table 3 — Guidelines for parking controls adjacent to community, recreational and cultural

facilities

Neighbourhood Parking Policy

22

13 of 34



4 MANAGING COMPLIANCE

4.1 Monitoring and enforcement

Deterrence of non-compliant behaviour is a key element of any successful policy
framework.

The City will perform routine ranger patrols to deter non-compliance with time restrictions.
There will also be a particular focus on school zones, Mobility Parking Schemes, events
and construction works and areas that are found to have high levels of non-compliance.

The City may also allocate enforcement resources in response to community feedback and
requests.

Information on compliance and enforcement will be made available consistent with the
City’s obligations under the Government Information (Public Access) Act.
4.2 Responses to non-compliance

Where persistent non-compliance with parking controls undermines reasonable access to
parking for residents, visitors and business, the City may increase enforcement, and if the
non-compliance persists, consider introducing ticket parking.

The City will consider enforcement in the context of the full suite of interventions available,
including changes to time restrictions and pricing, to implement a proportionate, cost
effective response.

Sections 2.7 and 3 discuss consultation and ticket parking prices in more detail.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 14 of 34

23



5 MOBILITY PARKING

5.1 Purpose

Some people with a mobility disability, including temporary disability, are eften-highly
dependent on car travel by a private vehicle to maintain their mobility and independence.
The City will prioritise availability-of on-street parking for this group.

5.2 Mobility parking entitlements

Under the Mobility Parking Scheme administered by Roads and Maritime Services, a
vehicle transporting a mobility permit scheme card holder is exempt from parking fees and
time limits in any period parking space of more than 30 minutes. For parking spaces with
time limits of 30 minutes a permit holder can park for 2 hours, and where parking is limited
to less than 30 minutes, the vehicle can park for a maximum of 30 minutes.

5.3 On-street mobility parking spaces

Mobility parking spaces are clearly signposted. They are provided for the exclusive use of
vehicles displaying a Mobility Parking Scheme permit.

Given that vehicles displaying a mobility permit are exempt from time limits in most spaces
of more than 30 minutes, mobility parking spaces are appropriate only in limited locations.
In considering requests for a mobility parking space, the City will consider:

a) likely intensity of use by one or more mobility permit holders;
b) availability of nearby on-street period parking; and
c) availability of convenient and reasonable on-site alternatives.

The City will consider time restrictions on mobility parking spaces in locations where it is
important to maintain turnover, such as near medical centres.

The City of Sydney will consider establishing a mobility parking space outside an
individual's home only where the resident holds an individual mobility permit issued to
persons with a permanent disability. The space is lawfully available to any vehicle correctly
displaying and using a mobility permit and cannot be dedicated for the exclusive use of any
particular vehicle.

Dedicated Mobility parking spaces zenes established outside individual homes or premises
will be considered for removal if the applicant who originally requested the space no longer
requires it, including if there is evidence that the applicant no longer resides at the
property. Any changes will be the subject of consultation as per 2.6 of this policy. The City
will establish a register and conduct an annual audit to determine whether mobility parking
zones are still required.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 15 of 34

24



6 PARKING PERMITS

6.1 Purpose

Parking permits exempt holders from time limits and parking fees in spaces signposted
'permit holders exempt'.

The need for parking permits arises directly from the imposition of kerbside parking
controls. Where vehicles are only permitted to park for a short length of time, such as one
hour, permits are needed for a larger proportion of everyday activities, such as visits by
friends, tradespeople, carers or customers. Conversely, where vehicles may park for a
longer amount of time, many everyday activities can be completed without permits. For this
reason, permits and parking restrictions will be coordinated.

6.2 Display and use of permits

A permit must be displayed on the left-hand side of the front windscreen or on the inside of
a window on the left-hand side of the vehicle. It must be clearly visible to an authorised
officer.

A permit is valid only where kerbside signposting includes the words ‘Permit Holders
Excepted’. The area identification number must correspond to the number on the permit.

6.3 Exclusion of some new developments and residential areas from permits

The intensification of urban land use within the City of Sydney, particularly Green Square
urban renewal area, has significant implications for the road and public transport network.
Traffic generation from new multi-unit commercial and residential developments can reduce
the efficiency of the road network, affect the reliability of bus and light rail, and reduce the
liveability of existing neighbourhoods.

In order to mitigate the congestion impact of major new developments and support the
viability of public transport services, the City of Sydney limits both on-site parking supply
and access to street parking. Access to street parking is limited by excluding some
residential areas and residents of some new developments from participation in the City's
permit parking scheme. This prevents parking demand associated with major new
residential and commercial developments from spilling into existing neighbourhoods.

Occupants of residential flat buildings and boarding houses approved on or after 12 May
2014 (the date of adoption of the City of Sydney's first Neighbourhood Parking Policy) are
not eligible for resident, visitor or business parking permits. This applies to the construction
or conversion of residential flat buildings, and the major refurbishment or conversion of an
existing residential flat building but does not apply to dwelling houses, dual occupancies,
attached dwellings, multi-dwelling housing or shop-top dwellings.

Occupants of new multi-suite commercial premises approved on or after 12 May 2014 are
excluded from participation in the permit parking scheme. A multi-suite commercial
premises is one which is strata-subdivided, or which can be divided into five or more
separate business, office or retail premises.

Exclusion from participation in the permit parking scheme continues to apply to all multi-unit
commercial and residential developments including boarding houses, including conversions
and major refurbishments, approved since 8 May 1996 in the area of the former South
Sydney Council, and since 1 May 2000 in the area of the former Sydney City Council. The
exclusion also continues to apply to premises which have been excluded as a condition of
development consent prior to the adoption of this policy.

If a landowner believes that conditions have been incorrectly applied to development
consents issued for a dwelling house, attached dwelling, multi-dwelling housing or shop-top
dwelling an application can be made to amend those conditions.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 16 of 34

25



6.4 Restricted properties

Premises which are restricted from participating in the permit parking scheme at the
date of adoption of this policy will remain restricted.

A small number of properties in Ultimo and Pyrmont are classified as ‘Restricted
Properties’, and are eligible for a maximum of one resident parking permit if they do
not have on-site parking. Given the high density of dwellings in this location and the
limited on-street parking, the City will maintain the one-permit restriction on these
properties by classifying them as Zone A.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 17 of 34

26



7 PARKING AREAS AND PARKING ZONES

The policy divides the City into a number of parking areas to ensure that permits are used
to park near the household or business to which they were issued. In order to
accommodate variations in population density and parking pressures, parking areas are
zoned as A or B.

7.1 Principles for parking areas

Parking area boundaries will be clear and easy to understand, generally following major
built or natural features, such as arterial roads, railways and natural boundaries.

In order to reduce the proportion of residents inconvenienced by their proximity to an
arbitrary boundary, the City will reduce the number of parking areas to the minimum
necessary to maintain the integrity of the permit system. This will also assist those using
visitor parking permits, who may not be familiar with complex boundaries.

Detailed permit boundaries for all areas will be published on the City of Sydney’s website.

7.2 Parking area boundary modifications

The Chief Executive Officer may make minor amendments to area boundaries (see Figure
1.)

7.3 Parking zones

The policy zones parking areas as either Zone A or Zone B (see Figure 2). Zone A applies
to parking areas where the number of resident parking permits issued exceed the number
of parking spaces in that parking area.

The City will monitor permit numbers issued relative to available parking spaces in each
parking area. Where the number of resident parking permits exceeds the number of parking
spaces, the City will assess the need to rezone an area from B to A.

Recommendations to rezone an area, from A to B or B to A, will be reported to Council.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 18 of 34

27



Port
Jackson

&

=

oy
e

+
0‘

Johnston,
Bay

&0
<
XX

0

e
4

5

IR

SR

X
i
2
o

o
<5
5

R
o5

s
o]
SRS
SRR

(e
SN
KKKKL
S
s
505
S
::’0’0
5

258
e

o
e
e
Sode
e

2
o

@
25
5
258

r

S
K

fetels

a4

%

Elizaheth

*

=

The
Demain

X
2
S

X )
Rozelle :z:::. ‘g ‘.::?:;::
y Blackwalilg b X 0*.,0"

T3
3

zS
55

by

3

Foasstetedes:
BB

&

&

Woallahra
Municipal
Council

West

Zit g :
s‘ e
Harbour
K505
A
NS,
% Paddington
‘ ; rea 18 “Centennial

Inner
West
Council

Randwick
City
Council

®

Bayside

Council - Meters
R L HL— 0 250 500 1,000
e s — Parklng in C|ty of Sydney Parking Areas Ad PV2 no template 20170710.mxd
el i Je Lol I L o Created by: levans
repredued ot pemnission. Pal'klng Areas Date: 10!07!20;;
Figure 1. Parking areas
Neighbourhood Parking Policy 19 of 34

28



North
Sydney
Council

Millers
Point
Area 16

Pyrmont &
Ultimo

= Area 20

Woollahra
Municipal
Council
Paddington
Surry Hills
X Area 18 Bentennial
Chippendale Park’& South

Area 32

\

Redfern

Newtown

Inner

CWesf,I Area 22
o Area 41
Erskineville [
& Alexandria
Area 36
Zetland, ]
Beaconsfield Legend
& Rosebery
Area 35 Parking Zones
D Zone A
E Zone B
[777] Not Applicable
Bayside 6
Council [ Meters
7 a . . 0 250 500 1,000
Wﬁﬁ“m“ Parking in City of Sydney Farking Zongs_VS_ o tampste Ad P
b e e Setd il s
wmissions therein, Whike al care is taken & ensure a high g Date: 10/07/2017
Parking Zones %

degree of BcCurcy, USETS 20e nvited to nolfy Counci's GIS
rt of |

lo par
mprocuced wificut ilen permissin

Figure 2. Parking zones

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 20 of 34

29



8 RESIDENT PARKING PERMITS

8.1 Purpose

Resident parking permits enable residents who do not have sufficient on-site parking to
park on-street and avoid time limits and parking fees.

8.2 Eligibility

Residents in most households in the City of Sydney are eligible for resident parking permits.
The following households or dwelling types are not eligible:

a) A household which occupies a new or converted residential flat building or
boarding house approved since 8 May 1996 (former South Sydney) or 1 May
2000 (former Sydney City Council) or 12 May 2014 (all remaining areas of the

City of Sydney).

b) A household which occupies a dwelling approved with the condition that no
parking permits are to be issued.

c) A household occupying a secondary dwelling on a lot for which parking permits
are already issued.

d) A household which occupies premises not approved for residential use.

e) Hotels, backpacker hostels, guesthouses, and serviced apartments.

f) A household occupying any other non-residential premises.

The applicant’s vehicle must:

a) be registered in the applicant's name at the applicant’s address. If
the applicant has access to a vehicle through an agreement
with an employer the applicant must have full private use of the
vehicle.

b) not be a truck, bus, tram, trailer, tractor or any vehicle which exceeds 4.5
tonnes Gross Vehicle Mass or be longer than 7.5 metres
8.3 Quantity of permits

Parking permits are issued for vehicles registered to the address of an eligible household
provided that the household does not have on-site parking available for that vehicle.

The number of permits a household is eligible for in each Zone is as follows:
Zone A

a) A household in Zone A without any on-site parking spaces is eligible for up to one
parking permit.

b) Each room of an eligible and approved boarding house will be treated as a
separate dwelling eligible for one resident parking permit.

¢) No permits will be issued to households with one or more on-site parking spaces.
Zone B

a) A household in Zone B without any on-site parking spaces is eligible for two parking
permits.

b) Each room of an eligible and approved boarding house will be treated as a separate
dwelling eligible for one resident parking permit.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 21 of 34

30



c) A household in Zone B with one on-site parking space is eligible for one parking permit
for a second vehicle.

d) No permits will be issued to households with two or more on-site parking spaces.

8.4 \Validity
Resident parking permits will be valid for one year from date of issue.

8.5 On-site parking

On-site parking is deemed to be available where it can meets Australian Standard 2890.1
On-site Parking. In determining whether an on-site parking space exists, the City will have
regard to:

a) accessibility by a vehicle

b) the presence of a garage door or roller door
c¢) the existence of a vehicular kerb ramp

d) the presence of a carport or garage structure
e) evidence of use of the space for parking

f) any approved or registered plans.

8.6 Temporary resident parking permits

In certain circumstances the City may issue a temporary resident parking permit.
Interim resident parking permit

The City may issue an interim resident parking permit if:

e an eligible applicant has moved to the City and their vehicle is registered
interstate. The permit will be valid for 3 months. It is compulsory to change the
vehicle registration details to a NSW address within 3 months of a move. Once the
applicant's vehicle is registered to a City address, applicants will be eligible for an
annual resident parking permit.

¢ If an eligible applicant's vehicle has been damaged or stolen, the City will issue an
interim resident parking permit for up to 3 months. Applicants will be required to
provide documentary evidence in support of their claim and will be required to
sign a statutory declaration in the presence of a Justice of the Peace.

Temporary construction work resident parking permit

If lawful (including work under a development consent, complying development
certificate or exempt development) construction work renders the parking space at an
eligible applicant’s address temporarily inaccessible the City will issue a temporary
construction work parking permit. A permit must not be used to accommodate the
storage of materials in the on-site car space.

Temporary permits will be issued to a single nominated vehicle registered at the
applicant’s address, and may not be used by any other vehicle. The maximum
duration of such permits is three months. Residents must provide proof of works
being undertaken.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 22 of 34

31



Neighbourhood Parking Policy 23 of 34

32



9 VISITOR PARKING PERMITS

9.1 Purpose

Visitor parking permits enable residents' visitors, including family members, friends, carers,
General Practitioners and tradespersons to park on-street and avoid eertain time limits and
parking fees.

9.2 Eligibility

Residents in most households in the City of Sydney are eligible for visitor parking permits.
The following households or dwelling types are not eligible:

a) A household which occupies a residential flat building or boarding house, approved
since 8 May 1996 (former South Sydney) 1 May 2000 (former Sydney City Council) or 12
May 2014 (City of Sydney).

b) A household which occupies a dwelling approved with the condition that no parking
permits are to be issued.

¢) A household with an on-site visitor parking space, including shared visitor parking
spaces in multi-unit dwellings.

d) A household which has on-site parking and has not taken up a resident parking permit.

e) A household occupying a secondary dwelling on a lot for which visitor parking permits
are already issued.

f) A household which occupies premises not approved for residential use.

g) Hotels, backpacker hostels, guesthouses, tourist accommodation and serviced
apartments.

h) Any other non-residential premises.

9.3 Quantity of permits

Visitor permits are one day scratch cards. The number of permits a household may be
eligible for depends on how many resident permits they hold and whether their
parking area is zone A or zone B. In order to equitably share limited street parking space
eligible households who do not usually occupy street parking are entitled to a higher
number of permits than those with one or two annual resident parking permits.

One resident parking permit issued to household for a motorcycle will be disregarded when
determining the quantity of visitor permits a household is entitled to.

In Zone A the annual allocation of visitor permits for eligible households will be:
a) 10 permits for those households with two Resident Parking Permits;

b) 30 permits for those households with one Resident Parking Permits; and

c) 40 permits for those households with no Resident Parking Permits.

In Zone B the annual allocation of visitor permits for eligible households will be:
a) 20 permits for those households with two Resident Parking Permits;

b) 40 permits for those households with one Resident Parking Permits; and

¢) 60 permits for those households with no Resident Parking Permits.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 24 of 34

33


http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/live/residents/parking-permits/residential-parking-permits

9.4 Validity

A permit is not valid for use on a caravan, bus, truck, trailer, or any vehicle which exceeds
4.5 3.5 tonnes Gross Vehicle Mass, except if a visitor permit is being used for removals to
or from the address of the permit holder.

Visitor permits are single-use permits and are valid on the indicated date of use-unti-8am
the-following-morning. The permit is valid only when the date of use has been clearly and
correctly indicated. Visitor permits will be issued with a minimum of 12 months validity.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 25 of 34

34



10 VISITOR PARKING PERMITS - TRADESPERSONS

10.1 Purpose

Tradespersons Parking Permits enable tradespersons to carrying out maintenance and
improvement work for City residents to park on-street and avoid eertain time limits. This
reduces job costs and local traffic movements. They may be used in addition to, or
instead of, one-day Visitor Parking Permits.

10.2 Eligibility

Tradespersons Parking Permits may be issued to residents who:

a) require alterations, additions, miner maintenance and improvement work to be
undertaken at their place of residence

b) provide proof of residency

c) provide a quote or contract which sets out the address of the place where the work
will be carried out, the nature of the works, and the duration of works.

Most households are eligible for Tradespersons Parking Permits.
The following households or dwelling types are not eligible:

a) A household which occupies a residential flat building approved since 8 May 1996
(former South Sydney), 1 May 2000 (former Sydney City Council) or 12 May 2014 (all
remaining areas of the City of Sydney).

b) A household which occupies a dwelling approved with the condition that no parking
permits are to be issued.

c) A household with an on-site visitor parking space, including shared visitor parking
spaces in multi-unit dwellings.

d) A household which occupies premises not approved for residential use.

10.3 Quantity of permits
Eligible households may obtain up to six one-week permits annually.

10.4 Validity

A permit is not valid for use on a caravan, bus, truck, trailer, or any vehicle which exceeds
4.5 tonnes Gross Vehicle Mass. Permits are valid for one week. The date of validity and
the resident's address will be displayed on the permit.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 26 of 34

35



11 BUSINESS PARKING PERMITS

11.1 Purpose

A business parking permit exempts a business vehicle from time limits and parking fees in
spaces signposted 'permit holders exempt.

A business parking permits are-provided may be issued to a businesses located within the
City of Sydney LGA that requires a vehicles for the carriage of goods or equipment.

Given the very high competition for on-street parking and the need to maintain parking
turnover for retail customers, visitors and residents, business permits are issued only for
vehicles registered in the name of the business as being for business use, and used in its
routine daily operation to carry goods and equipment.

11.2 Eligibility

A business parking permit may be issued to an applicant who:

a) has a business located within the City of Sydney Local Government Area-which
I ) "

b) requires an eligible vehicle for routine transport of goods or equipment in the day
to day operation of a registered business

c) is an employee or principal of a registered business operating from premises
which have development consent for business use and which have not been
excluded from participation in the permit parking scheme by a condition of
development consent

d) has no on-site parking; and
e) cannot reasonably modify the premises to provide on-site parking.

To be eligible for a business permit, the vehicle must:

a) be registered in the name of the business, or a principal of the business

b) be registered for business use

c) be insured for business use

d) be used for the purposes of carrying goods and equipment

e) not be a truck, bus, tram, caravan trailer or tractor or any vehicle which exceeds 4.5 3.5
tonnes Gross Vehicle Mass or longer than 7.5 metres

11.3 Quantity of permits

A business in-Zore-A-or-Zone-B is eligible for one parking permit. Where more than one
business occupies a single business premises, no more than one permit will be issued to
each registered lot on a first-in first-served basis.

11.4 Conditions of use

Permits are only to be used for the carriage of goods and equipment. They are not to be
used on vehicles primarily used for staff travel, attendance at business appointments, or
commuting to a place of employment or business.

11.5 Validity
Permits will be valid for one year from date of issue.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 27 of 34

36



12 SUPPORT CARE WORKER PARKING PERMITS

12.1 Purpose

A support care worker parklng permlt exempts a support workers or service provider's
vehicle 4 ion from time limits and
parking fees whlle the support worker or service prowder empleyee is providing in-home
support care.

The permit is issued to the service provider health-care-organisation rather than the
recipient of the in-home support care. This facilitates more efficient access for the service
provider organisation and avoids placing application requirements on residents.

12.2 Eligibility
A eare-werker permit may be issued to a service provider an-applicant who:

a) provides in-home support services is-routinely-engaged-in-the-provision ofin-
home-care-services

b) conducts, or expects to conduct, more than 60 home visits per year to residents
in the City of Sydney and partnering Council areas the-lrrer‘WestCounecil
areas’.

To be eligible for a care-worker permit the vehicle must:

a) be registered in the name of the service provider health-care-organisation. If the
vehicle is in a private name, the service eare provider must supply a letter

explaining that the permit will be used for the purpose of providing in-home
support eare only.

b) be under 4.5 3.5 tonnes and less than 7.5 metres, unless such vehicle is
necessary for the support service provided.
12.3 Quantity of permits

There is no limit to the number of Support Worker Parking Permits that may be
issued to service providers who employ support workers. Individuals that operate as
a service provider will be issued with one permit.

12.4 Conditions of use

The permit may only be used by a support eare worker or service provider for the purposes
of providing in-home support.

If the permit is no longer in use by the service eare provider or is not expected to be used
for a period of three (3) months or more, the permit must be returned to Council.

12.5 .Validity
Permits will be valid for one year from date of issue.

12.6 Plan of management

, ion Support providers
who purchase muItlple permlts for support workers are requwed to provide a Plan of

In 2015 the City signed a Memorandum of Understanding with Marrickville and Leichhardt Councils
whereby the three Councils agreed to issue a Support Worker permit that would be accepted in all
three council areas. The City undertook to administer the scheme.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 28 of 34

37



Management at the time of application to prevent the misuse of-Care-\WerkerParking-the
permits. This requires the support eare provider to demonstrate potential risks for misuse
and control measures if appropriate.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 29 of 34

38



13 CARERS' PARKING PERMITS

13.1 Purpose

A Ccarers’ parking Ppermit exempts a vehicle used by a carer visiting a resident from
some time limits and parking meter fees where while the carer is providing in-home care.

The permit is issued to the resident rather than the carer. This enables residents to receive
care visits from multiple carers who are not eligible for the eare support workers parking
permit.

13.2 Eligibility
A carers’ parking permit may be issued to a resident who:

¢ is aresident of the City of Sydney

¢ has a letter from a service provider or health professional setting out the resident's

need for in- home care —has—a4ette4rem—a++app¥ep&ate—ge¥emmem-healﬁ+bedy

The following households or dwelling types are not eligible:

¢ A household which occupies a residential flat building, approved since 8 May 1996
(former South Sydney), 1 May 2000 (former Sydney City Council) or 12 May 2014
(all remaining areas of the City of Sydney).

¢ A household which occupies a dwelling approved with the condition that no parking
permits are to be issued.

¢ A household with an on-site visitor parking space, including shared visitor parking
spaces in multi-unit dwellings.

¢ A household which has on-site parking and has not taken up a resident parking
permit.

¢ A household which occupies premises not approved for residential use.

e Hotels, backpacker hostels, guesthouses, tourist accommodation and serviced
apartments.

e Any other non-residential premises.

13.3 Conditions of Use

Eligible residents are entitled to one (1) transferable permit per household. The permit may
only be used for the purposes of providing in-home care. The permit must be returned
to the resident once the visit has ended.

The permits may only be used by carers providing care who meet the definition of carers as
set out in the Carers (Recognition) Act 2010.

13.4 Validity

Permits will be valid for up to one year from date of issue..

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 30 of 34

39



14 PREVENTION OF FRAUD AND MISUSE

14.1 Background

As a result of the high value of parking space, permit schemes are vulnerable to the
misuse, theft and forgery of permits. This creates a risk of long-stay parking in residential
areas, which occupies parking space otherwise intended for genuine customers, visitors
and business users.

14.2 Action

The City will take action against misuse of permits. In the case of demonstrated fraud,
improper resale or misuse of permits by a resident, business, visitors or care workers, the
City may revoke eligibility for the offending individual, business, address or organisation, for
a period of up to two years.

In instances where misuse of permits is reasonably suspected, the City will give permit-
holders the opportunity to show cause as to why the permit should not be revoked. Permits
will not be arbitrarily or unreasonably revoked.

In cases of suspected falsification, duplication or theft of permits, the City will refer the
matter to the NSW Police for investigation.
14.3 Record of on-site parking

To address non-disclosure of on-site parking, the City will maintain a record of on-site
parking supply at each residential or business address eligible to participate in the permit
parking scheme.

Records will be based on information provided by applicants, development assessment
documents, and street-based site inspections. Records will be made available to applicants
to ensure the opportunity is provided to correct errors.

14.4 Information on permits

In the case of a resident or business parking permit, the permit will display the vehicle
registration in order to prevent theft or improper transfer.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 31 of 34

40



15 TRANSITIONAL ARRANGEMENTS

Transitional arrangements will minimise disruption or hardship by ensuring that existing
permits of a type that is not consistent with this policy are honoured until Council
determines otherwise.

15.1 Resident permits

In Zone A, a permit holders will be permitted to renew a second resident parking permit that
was valid at the date of adoption of this policy on 12 May 2014. The permit may be renewed
or transferred to a replacement vehicle only at the same address.

In Zone A, a permit holder with one on-site parking space, will be permitted to renew a first
permit that is valid at the date of the adoption of this policy. The permit may be renewed or
transferred to a replacement vehicle only at the same address.

Permits will not be renewed in cases where they have been obtained by the non-disclosure
or inaccurate declaration of on-site parking spaces.

Neighbourhood Parking Policy 32 of 34

41



16 IMPLEMENTATION AND ADMINISTRATION

16.1 Neighbourhood Parking Policy implementation Reviews
The City will carry-out-aregular-program-ofreviews-to assess parking areas' level of

consistency with the policy. This will include developing an implementation plan for each
reviewed area setting out actions and timelines to address issues identified.

The reviews will be the primary mechanism for operationalising the policy.

16.2 Hardship

Consistent with the Schedule of Fees and Charges, the City may waive the fees and
charges applying to permits only in cases where their application would impose
unreasonable financial hardship.

16.3 Enforcement

Enforcement of parking controls is the responsibility of City Operations.

16.4 References

Laws and ¢ Road Transport Act 2013
standards ¢ Road Transport (General) Regulation 2013.
e Local Government Act 1993

e Carers (Recognition) Act 2010

Policies, e RMS Parking Permit Guidelines 2016
gLOig:ﬁr:lézs and e Central Sydney On-street Parking Policy 2015

e Car Sharing Policy 2016

16.5 Consultation

The policy was publically exhibited for 79 days.

16.6 Approval status
The Council approved this policy on XXX.
(A copy of the CEQ’s signature should be inserted here.)

16.7 Approval history

Stage Date Comment TRIM Reference
Original Policy 12 May 2014 Approved by Council 2013/311119
Neighbourhood Parking Policy 33 of 34

42



Review

Next review

(Date, month, Full review. 2017/176047

year) Amend time restrictions.

Increase number of
visitor permits available.
Introduce tradespersons
parking permit.
Broaden vehicle
eligibility criteria for
business parking
permits.

4 years from

adoption of

reviewed policy

(Date to be

inserted, once

policy is adopted

and approved)

16.8 Ownership and approval

Responsibility
Author
Owner
Endorser

Approver

Neighbourhood Parking Policy

Role

Manager, Transport Policy

Executive Manager, City Access and Transport
City of Sydney Executive

City of Sydney Council

43

34 of 34



Attachment B

Summary of Public Submissions

44




"SIy} @)e|noile Jayeq 0y Sseale
[enuapisal Jo AljigesAl ay} uo sauoz Bupjied sjpAoiojow
pajedipap Jo Joedwi 8y} J8pISU0D [IM A)ID 8y}, 0} papuswe
uaaq sey Aoijod yelp ay] -aoeds 1ey) wodj sainyuedsp
pue sjeAllle sasealoul aoeds Buppied auo ul S8|oIyaA

Jo Jaquinu e Bunesnuasuod ‘suonenbal asiou pue Ajjenb

‘Apusioyle
alow [an} pue aoeds asn Aay] "sojoAolojow

so[oAoi010W
s, )UapIsal

Jie Aq apiqe 0} paJsinbal aJe S18)000S pue s8|0A210}0W B|IYAA ,SJUapIsal J0} saoeds pajedlpap asealou| Joj Bupjied aiop (s)uspisey
Aynqeanrn
‘Buyied ay1q pue saoeds bBupied Ajjiqow ‘'sooeds Bunjied
‘saoeds dn yoid pue yo-doup ‘seoeds bBuleys Jed ‘sauoz 198.]1S-U0 J18aY)0 pue aleys Jeo ‘|enuaplsal
snq ‘seuoz Buipeo| Buipnjoul ‘podsued) olignd pue |aAel} | JO UOIBO0| 8y} UO Jordwl swos aAeY Aew yoiym
BAIJOB JO 8sn a8y} 8beinoous pue ssauisng |e20] Jo uojesado|  ‘sepow Jayjo JeA0 Jodsuel) aAoe pue olgnd MSN

JUBIDIS pUE B|gBIA 8)B810 0] ‘S}9a.lS |IBla] PpUe |eIoJawwod
ul pesniioud aq pjnoys eyl sesn aoeds glay Jaylo
apnjoul 0} € UOI08S Je papuswe usaq sey Aoljod yelp ay ]

asnoud pinoys Ayatelaly siy| Juswabeuew
Bunjied 1oy sajdiouud ay} Jo auo se Ayoselaly
Jodsuel) e Buipnjoul 0} UOIBIBPISUOD SAID)

Ayolelaly podsues |

10} yodsuel |

SINY

"Aoijod
yeup ayy ul 9idiouud e se papnjoul usaq sey Aous}sisuo)

‘g|diounid e aq pjnoys Aouajsisuo)
uswabeuely Bupped Joj sajdiould s, |louno)
BU] YlIM JUS]SISUOD pUBR pasSe(-9oudpINS

ale SuoISIDap aInsud [|IM A)1D) 8)0uU 0} papuswe
aq Ao1jod 1ey) puswiwooay -uonesljdde Aaijod
10 ADou8)sIsSuooUl 0) pes| p|N0D ,SUOIIPUOD [BIO|
0] puodsau 0] suonouysal bunyed usiayip 1dope
Aew Aj19 ay} sewi 1e, jey) uoneleoap ayl

SUOIIPUOD
|e20] 10} Buipuswy

(shuepisey

45

sa|diound

asuodsay

anssj

pasiiewiwins anssj

1apjoyaels

‘ON
anssj

"$9]0A0J0}O0W PBUOIIUBW SUOISSIWLIANS
Xis pue sa|dioulid psuonuaw suoissiwgns om} Aoljod Buiied pooyinoqubiaN Jelp a8y} Jo uonigiyxa ay) 0} asuodsal ul paAledal suoissiwgns 98 ay) JO

(‘panoidde usaq aA,Aay) 2ouo sanss] Jaquinu [[IM :gN) LNJWIOVNVIN ONIMYVd ¥Od STTdIONRId

AJIT0d ONIMUVd AOOHJNOGHOIAN 3HL OL SNOISSINGNS J179Nd O1 ASNOdS3Y



©
4
MSN
"UBIOSPUIM 113y} JO 3[0ADI010W J18Y) O} yoeye Aay) yoiym *J8)009S 10 9|oAdI0J0W sywuad Bunpyed JO |1I0UN0YD
Jap|oy e aseyaind 0] a|qe aie $9joA010j0W YIIM Sjuapisay | e uo nwiad Buiyied e aaes| 0] |eonoelddwil s1 ]| uapisal BuiAe|dsig 9|0A21010|\
"SIy} 91e|NdIle 18)}eq 0) Seale "SWIB)SAS punos
|enuapisal Jo AljigeaAl ay) uo sauoz Bupjied sjpAoiojow | pnoj A|BAISsaoxa yum asoy) Ajjeroadsa ‘Bunyled
pajeoipap jo 1oeduwli 8y} JopISuod [Im Al 8y}, O} papuswe SOOIYaA ||e 0] Ajjenba palidde aq pjnoys
uaaq sey Aaijod yelp ay] -eoeds 1ey) wodj sainyedsp Ajljigeanl) uo 1oedwi JO UOREBISPISUOY) “S|OAJ)
pue sjeAlle sasealoul aoeds Bupjied auo ul SSIOIYSA|  SUOISSIWS puUe 8SI0U JouIsal Yoiym suolenbal Ajjigean) MSN
Jo Jaquinu e Bunesyuasuod ‘suoljeinbal asiou pue Ajjenb 90IAI8S-UI pue sa|ny ubisaq ueljensny ay) uo syoedwi JO |19UN0)
Je Ag apige 0} paJinbal ale s181000s pue sajoAalolow SIYp | Yum Ajdwiod 1snw s19)009s pue sajoAololow ||y | Aljenb die pue asioN 9]0A21010|\
‘Bunyied s)sijoAoi010W
19041S-1J0 pue BuloAo Jo Bupjiem ‘podsued) olgnd Jo asn *S19]009S pue sajoAoiojow Buisn SJ9)NWWIOD Bunnwuwoo
abeinoous 0} Bunyied Jainwiwoo sabeinooasip Aoijod yelp ay | 1o} sAeq pajeoipap asealoul pjnoys [1Iounod Jo} Bunyied aiop (s)uapisey
‘ON
asuodsay 9nss|| pasuewwns anss|| Jap|oyayels | anssj




‘sooeds Bunjied apisqiay ul Jnd20

0} suoljouny Jualayip moje siaped jeyy Jes|o si Aoljod yelp
8y sossaoo.d ypne Ajajes peol pue ‘uole|siba| podsuely
peos SINY Aq 19s yJomauwely Aioyeinbal ayy uiyim ajesado
1snw AjD ey pue suonenbal Buped Ag apige isnw

pajou aq p|noys

SIY} ‘S9SSaUISNQ puUB SBIIUNWWOD |BJ0| }NSUOD
0] paau ay] pue ‘Aljigeyjem pasealoul ‘AlljIgesAl|
pasealoul ‘ saoeds oliqnd se s)eal)s, oueyua
sjapied ‘papnjoxe ale sjapied Jejnoiyan Aym oy
SE 90UapIAS apIAoid pINOYS [1DUNOY "SUOIOL}SI
Buyied wol) 1opied jo adA) Jejnoiyen e

1dwaxe ued 1ey) adA ywiad ou Ajuatind si alay |

sa|nNy peoy ay) Japun paje|nbal ale s}apled Jendiyap s1opded JenoiyaA ajqeus 0} uole|siba| malnay siopted poddng (s)juapisey
"S9OUBISWNDIID
[e00] D1j109ds 0} uoie|al Ul Y)IM }jeap 1Saq aJe Sanss|
9S8y "sjuapnjs Joj sjuswuoldiaua bulpAo pue Bupjiem ayy jo
Ajojes ay) asipsedoal jou seop SIY] 1Y) pue sjooyos Jeau dn s|jooyos
3oid pue jo dolp a|o1yaA ajes ajeyljioe} suoloLysal buied "SIy} ssalppe jou saop Adljod ay| "s}o@auis |BoO| 1e uonsabuod
[BO0] }BY} 84NSuUd 0} S|00yds Yjm A|asolo syuom A)1D ay] | Bojo [ooyos 0} ualp|iyo Buiaup siaied pue sjualed Buped (s)juapisoey N
S|BeAl}Sa) pue sjuans Buiods Buipnjoul sjuans
Jofew Bunnp sjoJjed Jebuels paseasoul s| asuodsal patisjald ‘palinbali ale SJuaAa |eloads
ay] ‘|eaoidde sspiwwo) Buiwe) oel ] pue BuljpA) suolnolsal Jajyb asneoaq ajelidoldde aq jou Jo} Ajjeroadse
‘ueli)sapad |00 paau sjwi| awly 01 sebuey) "19s aJe S)wl|| 89 Aew S)HWI| SWI)} PAPUSWIWOI. ‘SJUSAS |eloads ‘Al|eao) 18s oq
alWl} UBYM Junoooe Ojul udye) sI siojesauab duy o) Ajlwixold SE Uyons ‘S9ouRSWNIII0 SWOS Ul Jey} UIdou0) | 0} paau S}iwi| swl | (s)uepisey
‘g|qe|leAe s| Jodsuely ‘Buppied jenuapisal
a1ignd Aouanbauly ybiy ataym Ajo-iauul ay) ul ajelidoiddeul 10} 931} s}9a11s aAe9| 0] Bunyied ays-uo apinoid Bunjied
sI Bupjied ays-uo wnwiulw Aiojepuew Buuinbay 0} palinbal aq p|noys suonelado |elalawwo) 9]IS-U0 apIAOId (s)juapisey

sjuawyajed Bupjied pue sasn pue-

asuodsay

anssj

pasuewwns
anss|

1apjoyayels

‘ON
anssj

‘sjopjJed pauonuaw suolssiwgns om| -Bunjied
Aed 0} uonisoddo Buissaidxa way) Jo uaass ‘(bunyied Aed) Buiold pauonuaw suoissiwgns 1ybi3 -Bupyied Jainwiwod Bupess uonesiueblo auo Jo sashkojdwa
woJ} a1om Jyb13 "sywi| swiy pauonuaw suoissiwgns gg Aoijod bujed pooydnoqybiaN Lelp 8y} Jo uonigiyxe ay) 0} asuodsal Ul paAIgdal SUoISSIwgns 98 auy JO

ONIOIRd ANV SLINIT JNIL



"PSION

0} pejeolpap saoeds ul asealoul ue suoddns pue
S9|0IYaA aleys Jeo paslioyine 4o} seoceds Bunpyed
198.]1S-U0 pajeslpap Jjo uoisirold sy} spoddng

Buueys
Jed Joj Joddng

Jauolssiwwo)
ssauisng ||lews
94} JO0 32O

'91.02 folj0d Buueys Jed ayy

Aq pauianob si Buleys Jeo }9a1)s-uQ "Way} pJoye aSIMIBY]0
JOU P|N0D OYM Sp|oyasnoy 0} S3[0IYaA Jo AJaLIeA B 0} Ssadoe
Buigeus ul Buleys J1eo jo ajos ay} Buibpaimouoe Apoldxe

‘I1e ye i ‘Adljod Bunpped pooysnoqybieN

ayj uo sjoedw siy} moy os JI pue saoljod pue
sue|d umo J1ayy ulyum saniunuoddo Bunyied Jaied
pue Bunjied Ajjigow paJapiSuod aAey }ac5) 09

sJaled pue Ajjiqow

[aued uoisnjou|

Aq Ad1j04 uoisnjouj |e1oog sy suoddns Aojjod yeap ay] | se yons saluedwod aleys Jed Jayaym ajebisenu| ‘Bulieys Jen Algesig
"Ao1104 9y} Jo uonoas [oued uoIsnjou|
"papuawe usaq sey Aojjod yelp 8yl | suopiuieq 8y} ul Jepied, Jo uoniulyep e spnjoul uoniuysq Angesiqg
"S9JJUBD UMO}
pue abe|jiAa ul saoeds Bunjied Ajjigow pue ‘seoeds dn yoid syuel
pue Jjo-dolp Jo aouenodwi ay} swuiye Aoljod yelp ay| auoz IXe} SS820B 0} 9|geun J0 9|ilqow Ssd| 9q Aew
Buied ou e ul yo-dolp 0y Ixe} e mojje Apeadje sajnl peoy | oym ajdoad Jap|o 4o Aljigesip yum sidoad dn-yoid
's9|NyY peoYy AMSN 8} Jo) a|gisuodsal SI JUBWIUIBA0D AMASN 0] seale Buiddols ou, pue Huped ou, ul Jo} saoeds JJo| [aued uoisnjou|

"|[03u02 ued AJID By} siapew Jo adoos ay) apisIno si siy] | dois 0} 9|ge aq 0} sixe} Jo) saniunyoddo Jepisuo)| dolp pue dn yoid Agesig mw
"y1edjooy} 8y} OjuI pUBIXd PINOM Sied payJed Jo
Jeal 8y} 81oyMm JO djesun palapISuod SI qioy 0} Jeal a1aym| "paAowal 8g pjnoys pue ysu A1ajes Alessaoauun
‘Auiedoud Agueau e Jajua pinoo saoIYaA payied wod) sawny pue snolabuep e jussaidal (sjdwexs snoJabuep
1sneyxa alaym Ajutew pasn si Bunyied giey 03 Juoa4 -Aoijod 10} ‘s||IH Alng ‘19841G ||lepudy Ul) SuoljoLIsal s| Bupjied
8y} Jo adoos ay) apisino si Bupped j9ans-uo Jo a|bue ay | Bunied salbap 0 gqJox-0}-juol) Aloyepuely| gJay 03 Juol4 (s)uapisey
‘'sAeq aleys
Jed pajesipap BulAdnooo sajoIyaA pasiioyjneun 0} Sadljou
wswabulyul anss| siabuey [10uno) "sAeq aleys Jeo asn ‘Bunyied puly sJaY)0 Aq pasn
ueo sywad pijea yym sajoiyaa Buleys Jeo pasuoyine Alup| 1,Ued siayjo se pasn Bulaq ale sjods Jed }9505) | sadeds aleys Jed (s)uapisey
‘(Aep [|e sBWwnRBWOoSs UOIBAISSO WOJ)) pasnun
payJed aie Aay) awi} JO JUNOWER ‘SOJIYSA JO Sasn
Ajiep ‘Jayjo yoes 0y Ajlwixold ‘ase alay} S9|0IYSA
‘61L0Z S! MaIAaI }XBU Y | Auew moy ajebiisaAul pjnoys }| ‘sassauisng
‘9102 Ul Aoljod Buueys Je) sy pamainal Afjuadal ysow Aj1D | Buueys Jeo |elosswwod asipisgns jou pinoys A0 Buleys
ay] -Aoljod Buueys 1en s A0 ay) 0} 9)ejal senssi asay | ay] “Jom juop saoeds Bulieys Jed pajeolpag Jed anoway (s)juapisey
pasuewwns "ON
asuodsay anssj| anssj| J19pjoyaxe}s | anssj




‘Bunjied ay1q pue saoeds

Bunjied Ajjigow ‘saoeds dn yoid pue jo-doup ‘seoeds
Buleys Jeo ‘sauoz snq ‘sauoz Buipeo| Buipnjoul ‘Lodsuel)
olignd pue |aAel} BAIJOR JO 8sn 8y} 8beinoous pue ssauisnqg
[e00] JO uoielado JuaIdld pue a|qeIA d)eald 0] ‘S}oalls
[lelal pue |elolawwod ul ul pasiuoLld ale jey) sasn aoeds
gJay JBayjo apnjoul 0} papuswe usaq sey Aoijod yelp ayl

dn-xo1d pue Jjo
-doup Jobuassed ajeyljioe) 0} sAeq ssaidxs ajeal)

sAeq ssaidx3

Jauoissiwwo)
ssauisng

l[ews JO 82O

‘[euy 8y} Buinuuoo spuswiwodal Aoijod yelp ay) pauoddns
AlBuouis sI [el} 8y} Jey} UBAIS) }oX2I1} d)nuiw G| 881} e Jo

Jauolssiwwo)

Ae|dsip ay} aiinbai 0} sa|ny peoy MSN 8y} 0} Juswpuswe ‘'saoeds alow ssauisng
ue Buipiebai gAY wol) aoIApe Bunieme si Al 8y | 01 SBUOZ a)nuIW-G| 981} dy] JO uoisuaixa uoddng SOU0Z pudlxXg| [lews Jo a0

‘|lewy a8y} Buinunuod spuswwodal Aoljod yeup ayy pauoddns
A|Buonis si |eu} 8y} 1yl USAIS “18X01) 8lnulw G| 9aJ) e Jo | Ajjusuewad paydope aq pinoys SIy| "dARUSdUISIP uoIBIDoSSY
Ae[dsip ayj aiinbai 0] sa|ny peoy ASN 2Y1 0] Juswpuawe | 991d e JnoylIm pooy Aemeae) JapJo pue yed 0] Bulieien

ue BuipieBbal gAY woly aoinpe Buieme si A)1D sy

sislojow Buissed ss|qeus Bupjied aal) ajnuiw G|,

Apusuew.lad 1dopy

pue jueinelsey

‘POION

‘peOY JUIlod 8g9|9 uo |euy Buned
99l} d)nuIW G| 8y} JO uonenunuod ay) pyoddns apn

uoddng

Aya100g 9999

A0
[ 2

193913 e Ang Aey) pepinoid

‘salnuiw G| uey) Jabuoj Joj yJed o] s|qe ale sjdoad
‘osod.ind siy} Joj awi} Jo Yibua| Jualoyns e palapisuod

S| S9JNUIW UBBYIH "SBSSaUISNg [BD0] Je spuelsd }oinb unu
0] a|doad 1o} Jaises ) sayew Buped 19)01) 9a8l) s)nulw G|

Buyied aal) ajnuiw Qg JapIsuo)

awel) awWi) pusxg

(shuepisey

Bupied sauy anulw G|

goueldwod yum isisse Aew yoiym ‘abeubis

Jauolssiwwo)
ssauisng ||lews

‘POION| poIsabuod ssa| pue Japaq Jo asn ay) abeinooug abeubig ay} Jo 9210
‘a)enbape sI
Bunjied yoeood pue snq jey) ainsua 0} saibajel)s ajelidoidde JuowWlIAd ‘190418 Mueqg Bunjied
Ajnuapl 0} SINY pue AMASNLL Yim asiell Apeinbad yels Al | ul seoeds Bujied Ajuo snq Jo Jaquunu ayj pusix3 SNQ 9pIN0Id | uonoy JuUowlAd

"9sn ,$9SSaUISNg |BO0| IO} d|ge|leA. OS|e
ale pue oljel) 100} alow abeinoous Aay] ‘wey)

asuodsay

anssj

pasuewwns
anss|

lapjoyayess

‘ON
anssj




Mo||e Aay) asneoaq ‘S}oaldls asn-paxiw pue |enuaplisal ul
[0Jju00 Bupyied pauisjaid ay) ale sjosu0d Bupied Jnoy om |

SIO)ISIA J0J Jenaq SI sinoy ¢

SHWI| W1 JNoY €

(shuepisey

Bunjied unoy ¢

"JUBWS2I0JUS pasealoul
a)dsap sjsisiad soueldwod-uou juedyiubis pue
%,Gg ueyy Jajealb si Aouednooo Buyied obelsane

Jauolssiwwo)
ssauisng ||lews

"POION aloym Bunjied 19011 4z Jo uonejeisul woddng uoddng ay} 4O a21JO
‘Hwuad e Buisn Jnoyym spouad papusixe oy JISIA 0} SIOUSIA
‘sjuaplisal Joj sanunuoddo saonpal ainssald Bunjied
weoiubls Jou si alay) aiaym seade ul sywl| Bued jo
sinoy Buipusix3 "yoem e shep / pojleisul aq pinod Buped "sinoy Jabuo| Jo} Jo sAep ; 0} pasealoul SHWI|
dZ YdIym Ul S9oUBISWNII0 ay) Sauljino Aoljod yelap ay | uwi Bunjied 4z 9yl 1se9| 1B 89S 0] JUBAA Bunyied inoy g (s)uopisey

Buiyted unoy z

JU

‘Bunyied 4z JBUOISSIWIWOD
"Sjuelne)sal pue sajeod 0] Jusoelpe| Jajald SIOWOISND }SOW SE SISUMO JueINe)Sal pue ssauisng ||lews
Bunjied 4z jo uonejeisul ay} spoddns Aojjod yelp sy | 9)ed J0) SAIOLISal 00} ale suonollsal buied 4| asoddp 3y} JO 21O h
‘sjwuad 10j pasu ay) INOYIM ‘SHISIA
JOys 10} SS8208 9|qeuoSeal Mo|je Aay) asnedaq ‘sloals
asn-paxiuw pue [enuspisal ul joJuod Bunjied patisyaid "sJ9}nWWod abelnoosip 0} yoam e shep
ay} aJe s|oJjuod Bupyed unoy om] ‘seaue [enuapisal| d| e 0} pabueyd Aepli4-Aepuoly Jwi Bupyed 4z Buiyted
ul Bupped Jnoy | puswiwooal Jou saop Aoljod yedp 8y | o3I pjnom juswdojoAsp Mau yonuw Yim seale u| inoy | |[esuy| (s)uepisey
‘sjwuad Joj pasu ay) INOYYIM ‘S}ISIA
HOYS 10} SS820B 9|qeuoseal Mojje Aay} asnedaq ‘s}oals
asN-paxiw pue |eljuapisal ul jos3uoo Buyied paulsseld "‘BunisiA woJj SIolISIA sjuanald
ay} ale sjosuoo Bunppied unoy om] "Seale [eluspisal| pue ‘spuayaem je pue sbuluars ay} ul Ajjeioadsa Bunjied
ul Buyied Jnoy | puswiwodal Jou saop Aoljod ay | ‘anljoLnsal Ajliessadsauun si buped anoy | Jinoy | anoway (s)juapisey

Bunjied unoy |

‘syJed 1es s,A1D
ay} 0} A|dde jou saop Aoljod Bunjied pooyinoqybiaN ay |

‘Bupiied Joy Buisinid aonpal 0} syiedied 19aais-|o
PBUMO [IDUNOY) 0} SBUOZ 93} BJNUIW-G| PUSIX]

syJedieo 10ans-4O

Jauolssiwwo)
ssauisng

llews JO 82O

asuodsay

anssj

pasuewwns
anss|

lapjoyayess

‘ON
anssj




"SUOI1011Sal Wl YIM

Aldwoo pue ‘aoeds e puly 0] 8|ge aJe Aay} JI seale palajowl
-un ul yJed 0} 9|ge aJe suoiied suondo uodsued; 21gnd
pue |9AeJ} BAI0E AQ POJIAISS ||oM Ble Ssjuelnejsal pue sajed
A0 Auepy “Aep e ul aoeds e ul yied ued sjdoad aiow jey)

‘Jno Buluip 0} 8AUSDUISIP B SE sjoe

sojeo abewep

JL

Buiueaw ‘1aAouln) pue aoueldwod sasealoul Bunied Aed pue [aAed} Jo 8o1d ay) sasealoul bupied pied Bunyied Aed (s)uapisey
S100.]S |eljuapisal
"UJIB2U09 SIY} ssalppe ‘suondwaxs jwlad 's}o0J)s |enuapisal| 0} s|doad saysnd
ypm pajdnod ‘sjaalis |enjuapisal AqJeau uo sjwi awi] | 8y} 0} ajdoad alow ysnd s}9a4)s UleW UO SIB)aI\ Buyed Aed (s)uapisey
Buiolid
"90UBIUBAUODUI BJow Buisned snyj ‘suoljeoo|
[esjuao Aue wody Aeme |[am ale Asy) pue
SpUSY9aM 3Y] JOAO 2I10W AUBW JOU puUB ‘Yoam
‘Bupyied pajouisaiun peaidsapim ay} Buunp - Aep |e ul payJed aqg ued jey) sjods Bunjied
puawwogal jou saop Adljod Buned pooydnoqybiaN ay | Bujied jo uonosjas ajnuiw B Ajuo ale aJay] | psalollsalun [|esu| (s)uapisey
‘wdg-wepQ'g usamiaq suwi|
aw Jnoy g Aq paoejdal aq pinoys 3| ‘Bunjoedyoeq Ayo10038 999|9 L
‘'seale [enuspisal Joj Bupied 4z spuswiwiodsl pue Bupjied wia) Buoj ‘Buipnwiwod ‘siajied) sooeds Bupied| ‘sdnolg) agal9
Aoljod yeuq ay] ‘Bunjied pajolsalun peasdsepim| 1e0g se yons ‘aoeds alignd uo Auadoud sjeald Jo pajoLysalun JO uonieon
puawwodal jou saop Adljod Bunjied pooylnoqybiaN 8y | obelols Joj pasn ale seoeds Bunped pajouysalun aAoway (s)uapisey
Bunjied pajolisaiun
‘Buijoho pue Bupjiem ‘wodsuel; o1gnd
JO asn paseaJoul abeinoous 0} aoeds peod pue Bupied
sobeuew A)19 ay] "pabeinoasip AjoAnoe si syouloaud
[el0JaWWOo pue spooytnoqybiau |enuapisal Ul 19a1]s ‘Buyied Jeinwiwoo ajgeus o) pue ‘saiued
- uo Bupyied Jainwwod jeyy sadinbal Ajuoud siy) Buluiejuiely|  pue siauulp ‘sayoun| 1oy Ajjeroadsa ‘syisia 1abuoj
"SIBWOJSNO puUB SIOYSIA dAl0adsal J1ay) pue sassauisng|  Buiuoddns :spwi swi Jnoy ¢ yym saoeds alow S|

‘sjuapisal o) 9oeds Bunjied Jo asn sasnuond A0 ay

Bunjoss piemlio) ind aiom suoseal Jo sadA) om |

Bunyied inoy 4

Buiyted unoy p

'$90Jnosal Jo Buleys ajeudoidde pue saoeds Jo JeAouIn}
Buibeinoous ||i1s a|Iym ‘SHSIA JOYS 10} SS90k 9|qeuoseal

asuodsay

anssj

pasuewwns
anss|

‘ON

Japjoyayels | anssj|




‘seale JauolssIwwon
‘sjosse Ajunwwod Buipunolins pue sjasse Ajunwwod aaoidwi 0} ssauisng ||lews

anoidwi 0} siayaw Bunpied woly enuaal sesn A0 ay| | pa1oalip aq pjnoys sJayaw Buied woly snuanay anuanay ay1 Jo 8210
(eyeridosdde asaym syoaus Jusoelpe ‘sasiwaid A8100g

Buipnjoul) seale asn paxiw pue |eloiawwod Buiuiolpe [lelal pue |elolawwod 0} Juaoelpe aoeds peoy aga|o pue
(s19241S JO SUOI109S 10) S}9a11S 9S0y) 0] pajiwl| aq Bunjied | gley 0] paywi| 8q pjnoys 1] "Bunyied Aed aq pjnoys uI0d 999|9 uo| sdnolg) ago|D
Aed jey) Jea|o ayew 0} pepuswe usaq sey Aoijod yelp sy peoy ulod ag9|9) Jo |e sisebbns Aoljod ayl | Buped Aed ywi JO uoneo)

"S9SS8UISNg |200| PUE ||eWS 0} SS800. 1aW0]ISND
anoJdwi pue Jaaouin) abeinoous 0) palsjaw pue
paliwi| 8w 8q p|noys seale abuly Buipunoins

‘seale |eldJauwod

Jauolssiwwo)

ul seoeds Bupied "Bupied Joj puewap ul Buped| ssauisng |lews
‘pPaION ybiy aAeY SUONBOO| |BIDISWIWOD PUER |1y Aed poddng a1 JO 3210
"UoI}e}INSuU0d jey} O} suoIssIWgns
se pajeaJ) pue ssad20.1d uoleynsuod sabiey) pue seo
ay} 0] uo passed aq [Im Aoljod Buppieq pooyinoqybiaN
8y} 4o} uolje}Nsuod AJunwwod ay} Jo ped se paAledal SEEN B
sabJeyd pue se8} UO SJUBWWOD ||y "Ssed0.d uofeynsuod | “Aoljod mau ay) bujzijeul aiojeq uswwod dlgnd uo UONEB}NSU0D
Ajlunwwo? e sey ssaoold sabieys pue saa4 s,[1ouno) | Joj saniunuoddo yum ‘paiioads aq asay) 1eU] JSy 1sanbay (s)uapisey
"suondo |9Aed} Joyjo JO uoljelapisuod sabeinoous
pue aoeds giey uo anjea e sind 1ey jeubis aoud e puss
pue aoueldwod poddns ‘1aAoulny abeinosus 0} pa}ayol}
aQ seale |eloJowwod ul Bupjied |je pepuswwodal S| )|
"'S9SEBaIOU| JOAOUIN} OS ‘eoueldwod sasealoul buied 13011
"JusWavlojus pasealoul aydsap aoueldwod-uou Juedyiubis anuaAal
S| 818y} pue Aouednddo 9,Gg8 Uey) 810w S| 818y} dI8ym "‘anuaAal Buisealoul 0} pajejal Ajpaiua asiel 0} pasn
seale |enuapisad ul papuswiwodal si bupied 19301 4z | sieadde Buppied sauy 4 pue dg Jo Juswaoe|day | Ajuo Bupped Aeyq (s)juapisey
‘'suoindo |aAel} Jayjo Jo
Aeme Jayyin} saoeds Bupjied aal) Buisn JapISUOD 0} SISALIP
abeinooua pue puewap ybiy AieA ul sI aoeds gqlay uieuad
Jey} |eubis e se joe sadlld "1aAouln} Buunsua Aq a|qejiene SJO}ISIA IO} SJOJISIA sjoedwl
sooeds Bunpjied ayew 0} pasu ay} ddueleq jsnw A)ID a8yl | pJey 00} - seouapisal Jeau Bunjied Aed anoway Bunjied Aeq (s)uapisey
pasiewwns "ON
asuodsay anssj anss Japjoyaye)s | anssj




ol

"JuUsWIUIBA0S MSN 2Ul Ag "9AIUBDUISIP
18S ale saljjeuad '|0Jju0d s AlD 8y} JO dpISino Jajjew e s SIyL | B Jo AlJes|o ale ajel Jualind ay} je saljjeusd| saljjeuad asealou| (s)uspisey
‘aoueldwoo-uou ‘aoueldwoo-uou Jayap 0} ybnous
10 sjana] ybiy ajeoipul adiApe Ajlunwiwo? pue sjodjed aiaym| juanbaly jou si Buuoyuow Apuaiing “AjoAnosye
seaJe UO Shooj) pue eale jJuswuianob |Boo| ay) Jo sued e Bunesado aie sjonuod Bupyied nwiad ayp
Jo sjosied palajsol pue seinbal axyeuspun siabuey s A0 oyl aInsus 0] |enuasss si Buuojiuow aosueldwo) Bulonuop (s)uspisey
‘wnipejs pue V400
0] Uolje[al Ul G| ealy 0} 8dueAs|al Jejnaiued
‘PaION sey JI ‘eoueljdwod Jo uoIsSnjoul 8y} SWOd|aAA uoddng (s)uspisey
‘ON
asuodsay anss|| pasiUewwns anss|| Japjoyaye}s | anss|

‘9ouel|dwoo pauonuaw suoissiwgns 9| Aaljod Bunjied pooydnoqyubiaN Jelp ay) Jo uonigiyxe sy} 0] asuodsal Ul paAlgdal suoIssILgns 98 ay) JO

AONVITdINOD ONIDVNVIR

"@nuUdAal ssauIsng
pue Jaaouln} sasealoul yoiym ‘buyied oy Aed o) aney Aay

'S9ssauIsnq |iejal
anbiinoq pue sjuelnelsal ‘sejeo Juanbaly sjdoad
uaym sawi} Jejndod jsow ayj Bulnp jou jnq

sowl} Jejndod
Bunnp Bunjied

UoIeINoSSY
Bulieyen

JI spoliad Janioys 1o Aeys Aew sjdoad sysabbns aouaping| Yoam ay) Buunp aoe|d ul 8q pjnoys bBuyied Aed Aed anoway | pue jueineisay
seale
paJajaw ||e ul papnjoul 8q pjnoys Abojouyos
'ABojouyos) Bunjied wswAed ob-pue-de| -eoueldwod abeinoous
@0ouUBApE JaylN} 0} saljlloyine |eoo| Mojje 0} suole|nbal pue aousaliadxa Jawolsno 8y} 9Sealdoul pNoM
1O Malnal e Bunsanbau pASN J0) Modsuel | 0} usjium (,sdn-doj sjowal pue sabessaw Aldxa Ja}ow
sey A0 ay] ‘AbBojouyos) JuswAed ob pue de} apnjoul| Buipnjoul) ABojouyos) suoyd Aq Aed ABojouyos} ssauisng
soulyoew 1901 ||V o|gejieAe sjuswAed sjiqow sey Ao ay | JO @sn pasealoul ay) sebeinoous HgsSO dyL ABojouyoa] | |ews Jo 9210
Yoam pue Aep Jo awiy Aq Aiea Apealje ‘spasu Bunyied JBUOISSIWWOD
so9} Bupped -Buned jueldwod-uou JO uonoalap pie 0} Buibueyd Jo spuewsap ayj ssalppe 0} uondo ssauisng ||lews
salbojouyoa) mau Jo} suondo aiojdxa 0} senunuod A)ID ay| | Jeyloue aie sajel Bunyied ajqelea ‘paseq Josuas slosuag ay) Jo 9210
pasuewwns "ON
asuodsay anssj anssj Japjoyaye)s | anssj




Ll

‘pabulyul ale (sesnqg Buipnjoul) ssjoiyan payied Ajjebaj Aue
pue siseq Jejnbal e uo uayeuspun ale s}eals A9 Jo sjoljed

Buioljod aAnoaye pesu AsupAg Jo Alisianiun 8y}
HSIA S)SIINO} 9IYyM 1984)S Juamuaq uo Bunped
sasnq 9)eAlld ‘pPapaau sI ‘S}aalls |eljuapisal ul
BuiAed jnoyym uayo pue Ajwopuel yied yoiym
‘sasnq Auew ayj jo Buioljod snosobu aloy

Buiyled snq abeuey

sdnolg) age|9
Jo uoniieo)
‘(s)uspisay

‘paJapisuod Bulaq ase ABojouyos

sooeds Bunpyied pul 0] SJBWO]SND 1O} IBISeD ]I
ayew 0} pue aoueldwod uawabeuew Buyied
anoidwi 0y ABojouyoe) buibeltans| ebeinooug

Jauolissiwwo)

Josuas "6 8 suondo JayiO “Y|eyds 0} pasu ay} sajeulwi|e ssauIsng
yolym Buiwwals aAeA jo uoido aAljeusd)je 8y} aaey siabuey ‘Juswanoidwi Aoljod pue [lews
sisAjeue puaJ} ‘@oueldwod Buloiojus ul anjea ay} Jo 9210
‘sjyduaq ay} ybiamino o} Ajay| JO 8q p|nom jey) suolisod ajo1yan |eololsiy ‘dnolg
S| SIY} JO 1500 8y} pue sisAjeue |njBuiuesw uieyqo o1 pasinbai| JO aseqelep e YUM [1I0UNod apinold osje pjnom BuIopn
Qg p|NOM S}luNn ssauisng jJuswuiaAob [Bo0| pue a)els snouea| 1| “Aouaioie asealdul pjnom siy] "9911od MSN Ajunwwo)n
ssoJoe uonelbajul ejep ueoyiubis Janamoy saouayo Buned| Ag pasn jey oy Jejiwis ‘ABojouyos} uoiubooal 1s.nybuileq
Jo} uoniubooal ayed asus9l| Jo uondo ay) palapisuod aAey aje|d Jaqwinu ajiqow e yum paddinba aq -uojbuipped
A0 ay ] ‘seouayo Buinup Joj uoniubooal aje|d asn 821104 | pinoys siabuey -onsiuoiyoeue si salhy bunjeyn ABojouyoa] | ‘(s)uepisay By
‘aouel|dwoo-uou Jo sjeAs| ybiy
UM SeaJe Uo SnJ0j pue eale Juswulanob |eoo| sy} jo sued |je "SISBQ 9pIM JuswIs2Iojud
Jo sjosjed palajsol pue seinbal ayeyuspun sisbuey s A0 ayl -eaJe Ue U0 padJojua aqg pjnoys aoueldwo) JO UOIEBI0T (s)uepisey
‘aAneniul (Awouooss swn-1ybiu) Ay aanesl)
pue uadQ 0} anp 8sIom 186 ||Im SIY| "MOJ SI
JUBWIS2I04UD JO YSI By} Buimouy pus suoloLsal
‘AlBuiplioooe paisnipe ale suonelado pue passasse Bunjied ay} alojeq sinoy xis 0} dn ‘spus
AUBISUOD aJe S|OAD| BOIAISS "PapPadU Se sinoy Jaye| UIYs siabuey ay] a10joq SINOY OM] 92USPILJUOD
uayelapun osje aJe sjosed pajebie)] yoeqpas) AlUuNWWOD Uo Upm dJed sjuapisal-uou jey) ulaouon
paseg ‘weg - wd(Q| wody dAoeas ‘wdQL- we/ wolj palaysol| “sinoy uonoulsal buped yum paubije aq sinoy HIOM
s|oJied aAnoeold yim 921IA18S IN0Y 2 B aAeY Slabuey Buiom piepuels siabuel jey; uonsebbng sJabuel Jo sinoH (s)uspisey
‘sisAjeue |njbuiuesw s|qeus
PINOM JUBW210Jud pue asueldwod uo uonewsoul bulidwod ‘'seaJe pue awl} JaAo sisAjeue aAljesedwod
1By} paJapIsSuod Jou S|}l ‘9zis pue suaped JoJISIA ‘Bsnpue] S9|qeus jey} wuoy e ul Aauenb juswadiojus
,seale Bujied ay} ul UOIBLIBA S|qRISPISUOD BY) UBAID pue aoueldwod uo uolewIoUl Ysiigqnd| uonew.loul ysijgnd (s)uepisey
‘ON
asuodsay 9nss|| pasuewwns anss|| Jap|oyayels | anssj




¢l

e}
Te}
dnoug
aoueldwoo-uou Jo s|aA3| ybiy ym seale uo snooy Bujopn
pue eale JuswuldAob |Boo| sy} Jo sued |e Jo sjoied paia)sol aoue||dwoo Ajunwwo)n
pue Jenbas ayeuapun sisbuey s A0 ay] 'Juao Jad 9g -2oueldwoo-uou Jo sjoAs| ybiy ssaippe 10} spiepuels| isinybuieq
s1 A)1D 8y} ssouoe suoljoulsal Bupied yym aoueldwod ||elonQ 0} spJepuejs adouewlopad }8s p|noys [19uno) aouewlopad| -uojbuipped
"uoIepOWIWOI2. 10 suoljeul}sap Jofew o} Jeau
dn-yo1d pue Jjo-dolp sng-luiw pue Yydoeoo ‘sng Sauoz a|0IYyaA
pasLIoyiny ajeald 0} M\ASN J0) LModsuel| pue SINY Ylim sasiel| ‘'sooeds AJjuo snq, pajeubisap
A0 8y 198418-u0 yied 0} pajnus ale Aay) ‘suonollsal 0} yJled o1 Aujige Jisyy Buniwi ‘suwlad Buyled uonoy
pajsodubis anlasqo pue Ajjeba| yled sasnq papinold| [e1oads Joj Aldde sasng 1noj jey) Juswalinbay | Buued snq abeuepy uowlAyg
‘ON
asuodsay anss|| pasiHewwns anss|| Japjoydye}s | anss|




€l

"sjuswabullyul anss| pue pasnsiw waysAs ay) Buiol ase yoiym pue ‘Ajgjewnyibs)
Buteq aie jey) spwiad 8)yeosyuod o} djqe aie pue sjwliad SN pasn Buleq aJe sjwiad yoiym auiwis}ap
Buike|dsip ss|oiyan 10adsul siebuey suonesado essay) bulng 0] A9AINS B JONPUOD 0} PUBWIWIOYD BaIY
2207 Al ASUPAS YlIM YI0M pPJNoYs [10Uno)
‘suoljesado pajabie) 1oNpuod 0} sh ajqeus 0} sywlad piea ‘ajewniba) g jou Aew yoiym Jo sawos ‘pasn pnelj uonoy
JO 181| B yum A)1D ayj apiaoid oym SINY Yim yiom siabuey | Bulaq siexons buped pejgesip Auew ale aiay | Bunyied Aljigo JuowlAd ©
‘'saoeds Bunjied Ajjigow pajeubisep awly Jo sjeLn yled o) Aed 0} aAey syjiwlad Hwuad T
ul ejedidied 0} ssaubuljim pajedipul Sey pue sajny peoy Bunjed Ayjigop yum ajdoad os spwi swiy| Bupjied juspisal 1oy
ueljesny ayj yym ubije oy siepjoy JwJiad 1oj SUoISUaIXs awl} abuey) "eale ay} ul Bupjed sjwied bBued| Aed pinoys sywlad
ay) ubie AASN Joj Wodsuel ] jey) pepuswiwodal sey Al ay | Ajjigopy yum ajdoad ul asealoul ue si alay | Bunjied Aujigopy | (s)uspisay
‘Aolj0d ayy Jo 9z Jad
‘Bunyied Ayjigow jo uonejjeisul ayy Buipnjoul ‘Buied apisqiey| Sse uonensuod o 10algns ay} 8q pjnoys saoeds uole)Nsuoo
0] sebueyd Bulspisuod uaym AluNwiwod sy} SHNSU0I [IDUN0D Bunjied Aujiqow [jeisul 0} pasodoud sebueyn Aunwwon | (s)uspisoy
‘Ao110d 8y} Jo 8doos 8y} apIsIno
ale sywliad Aoy “sywlad Bunjied Aljigow Jo siepjoy ‘Ao1j0d ay) Alipow 0} JUBWIUIBAOL) ainssalid
Aq pasn Buleq saoeds Bupjied Jo Jaaouiny anoidwi 0} pasu 0} sIy} ajou pjnoys Aoljod ‘Bunped Aed pioae sywuad Ayjigow
3y} 1noge AASN 40} podsuel | yum papuodsaliod sey A ayl 0] pasnge aJe sjwJiad AjljIqow jey} uidaduo)| JO 8SNsIW aoNpay | (s)uspisay
‘ON
asuodsay anss|| pasiewwns anssj| Japjoyayels| anssj

‘AjljIgow pauonuaw suolssiwgns Xis Aoljod Bujied pooylnoqybiaN Yelp 8yl Jo uoniqiyxe ay) 0} asuodsal ul paAledal suoissiwgns 98 ayl JO
ONIMUVd ALITIEON



142

Buiddoig oN aJaym suonoasiajul 0} Juadelpe paonpoJjul
Ajjesauab s| Buideospue| 19a11s-uQ "Wodsuel; oignd

pue Buleys Jeo ‘BuloAo ‘Bunyem Buinoddns 0} papiwwod A0
ay ] (sywuad aaey 1,uop 10 1884)s-10 yied spuapisal Bululewsad)
Jed e aAey j,uop spjoyasnoy Aj9 Jo juad Jad G ¢ ‘Hwled

"yied 0} spuaLly @ Ajlwe} 10 SOA[aSWaY)
Jo} saiiunuoddo yiim sjuapisad Jo Jaquinu
Buimoub ayj buipiroid uey Juepodwl alow

sooeds Bunyied
aye) suapieb pue
uonesiuenlsapad

I

Bupjied juspisay e aAey spjoyasnoy Jo juad Jad €| 9|IYM aJe suap.eb }9a.)s pue saue| 8)Iq SWaas | ‘saue| aYIg| (s)juepisay
"\ BUOZ 10} BLIB)IIO 8y} }J@8W Jou saop sjepuaddiyn ‘ainssaid Buiyied aonpal 0}
g BUOZ JO y 9U0oZ Jayud ul sbuipjing mau 0} salidde| sjuapisal Joyjo 0} panss| sjwiad Jo Jaquinu ay) sjwJad
pue ‘saiadold jun-ipnw Jamau Aq noge ybnolq oijel; pue | aonpay ‘sywJiad 1o} 9|qibije ale syuswiiede mau| Bupied aaey pjnoys
Buied uo syoedwi ay) ebeuew 03 ade(d Ul S| UOIOLISAS SIYL | Ul Sjudpisal 0S Y auoz 0} ajepuaddiy) abueyp| siuswdorsp maN| (s)juspisey
‘Bunjied
198.1S-1J0 pue BulpAo 1o Bupjiem ‘wodsued; o1gnd jo asn
abeinoous 0} Bupped Jojnwwod sebelnodsip A1) oyl “yIom "SjuepIsal o} JaIses
J18y] 0] 8s0j0 yJed 0} jwlad Bupyied Jisy) asn 0] sjuspisal 1l @ew pjnom siy) — yuou A0 pue yinos Ao Jabbiq seale
a|qeus Aew sjouroaid Bupjied Jabie| jey) punoy sey sisAjeuy 1sam A0 ‘1sea A)10 aney 0] seale ay) puedx] Bunjied ayy aye| (s)uspisey
‘g pauoz aq p|noys sjaals Asnq
$S9| sealaym pjoysaly onel Alddns/puewiap N
ajelidoidde ue Buisn y pauoz aq pjnoys
sjealis Asnq ul seladold ‘seoueswnolo
|[e20| 0} Buiplodoe }Jas ale suololsal buyied
"asnoy Jiay) apisino jsnf ueyy eale Aem ay) 01 Jejiwis ‘sauoz Bunyied juspisal Ajouly aiow
Japeolq e ul Bupjied yaas 0} sjuapisal ajqeus seale bupnpied| g/v ajdinw uieyuod pjnoys eale bupied yoeg| sauoz Bupjied jog| (s)uspisay
"awoy J1ay} 0} 8s0|0 aoeds e puly },ued Aay) Ji Juapisal ‘Buyied }9813s-Uo 0} SS90k J8)}eq SjuapIsal
e 10} 9|qissaooe saoeds Bunjied alow ayew sjouioald abie a|geus 0} Jajjews aq p|noys sauoz Bunjied 9zI1s auoz Bunjied| (s)uspisay
‘pamainal Ajleaipoliad aq pjnoys
oneil siy| "saoeds  Aloas 1o panssi g sjwJiad
‘'sooeds JUBpISal € PUBWIWIOIDY "SBIDIYaA payled panssi
0] uey} Jayjed sjuapisal 9|qibije 0} sywiad sajeoo|e Al ayl ¢ ul | obeisane uo Juasaidal sO|OIYSA JOYISIA | SHwlad Jo siaquinN [ (S)luapisey

asuodsay

anss|

pasuewWwNS anss|

Japjoyayels

-ON
anss|

‘sooeds Buyied pauonuaw SUOISSILIQNS Ud) pue sadeds

Bunyied pue seale Bupied pauonuaw suoissilugns om) Aoljod Buiyied pooyinoquybiaN yelp ay) Jo uonigiyxe ay) 0} asuodsal Ul paAleoal SuoIssIlgns 98 ayl JO
SANOZ ONIMUVd ANV SYIHV ONIMAIVd



Gl

"UOIIB)NSU0D 1BY) O} suoIssIwgns

se pajeal) pue ssadoolid uoneynsuod sabiey) pue

S99 9y] 0] uo passed aq ||Im Adljod Bunjied pooyinoqybiaN
8y} 40} uone}NSuoo AJlunwwod ay} Jo Jed se paAladal
sableyo pue s8a) U0 SJUBLIWOD ||y "SS820.d UOoIe}NSU0D
Ajlunwwod e sey ssasoud sabieyd pue s8a4 s,|IouUN0)

%S¢ Je paddeo aq pjnoys

aseaJoul 1o 831y 8q pinoys Bupied '1dD au}
uey) Jaybiy Apueoiiubis si 3| "e1ewlO 21LIOU0ID
JuaLInd 8y} Ul paynsnfjou si %05 Aq Jwied
Bunjied juapisay )sJi 8y} 40 1S09 ay} Buisealou|

ybiy 0o} si 8ol

90I0A
abe|IA ownin
‘(s)uepisay

sjwuad jo asud

"198.1S 8] W04} SBIOIYSA JIay] SAOWS
pUEB YIOM 0] SALIP [[IM SluapIsal awosg “Aep ay) Jo sawin

‘Buiuans ay} Ul sjuapisal 1o} a|qe|ieAe
1nq Aep ayj Jo sawiy yead ay) Buunp sjuapisal

[le ueds pue asJaAIp ale spasau Bunjied juapisay "sywliad -uou Joj a|gejieAe si Bunjied os ‘suoloLysal sywad
Bunjied juspisal pjoy spjoyasnoy jo juad Jad ¢ AluQ awi ypm spwuad Buppied Buionpoaju | Buppied jouysas awi | (s)uapisey
‘sywed
‘Bunjied pajouisaiun pealdsapim puswiwodal Jou 1INoyuM asou) Joj saoeds Bunjied Aeme saye) sooeds
saop Aoljod Bunied pooyinoqybiaN 8y "seoeds pajoLysalun 1 se Buppied pajouysalun Buisn wody sywlad pajousalun ul
ul yJed o1 a|qibie aJe sjwJiad Bupjied Juspisal Ylim sjuapisay Bunyled |enpuapisal aABY OYym 8SOY) JUBABIH| osn Juwiad jJusAald (s)uapisey

sywad Jo asn

o8

‘Bupjied 19a.4s-U0 984} 10} puewap
[le 198w 0} 9|qissod jou sI ) ‘aoeds 18a4)s 10} uonadwod ‘sal|lwey
ybiy ay} uanio ‘Ajlddns Bunjied joaas-uo spaaoxa Bunjied| able| jsuiebe BuneulwLosIp ale NoA asiIMmIBylO
sHuwuad Juspisal 10} puewap alaym seale Buppied ul 3deoxa| °Sied JO sisquinu pue azIS pjoyasnoy uo paseq sywuad Bunpyed

ployasnoy Jad sjwiad omy 0} dn siayo Aoljod yeap ay| syuwuad Buppied aiow spjoyasnoy abie| oAl alow apInoid (s)uapisey 0/
spwuad jo JaquinN
‘ON
asuodsay 9nss|| pasuewwns anss|| Jap|oyayels | anssj

‘Alano2al 1500 anoudwi 0} sasealoul 9oud 1sulebe pue Joy Ajlenba suoissiwgns yum sywiad Jo ao1d ay) pauonuaw suolissiwgns j1ybig
‘sjwuad Bupjied juapisal pauonuaw suoissiwgns || Aoljod Bupjied pooyinoqubiaN yelp 8y} Jo uoniqiyxa ay} 0} asuodsal ul paAladal suolssiugns 98 ayl JO
S1INY3d ONIXMAIVd LN3AIS3d

‘uolje||eisul 03 Joud sapiwwo) buiwe) oiel] pue BulpAo
uelsapad |ea0 ayl Aq palapisuod si pue Aidde suonolysal

asuodsay

anss|

pasuewWNS anss|

‘ON

Jopjoyadyels| anssj




9l

"goeds apisqJey dn sal) 0] pasn aq
pINoys 1l a|ge|ieAe si 8oeds 8)ISuo ue alayp) "eoeds apisgey

‘'sooeds uapJeb Joopino se
spJeA ay) asn 01 way) a|geus 0} sywiad Buyied
Juapisal aAey 0} 9|ge aq p|noys spJeA jjews

a|qe|leAe oY) Spaaoxa Jej AJ10 Jauul ay) ul Bunjied 1oj puewaq ul Bunjied 8)1S-Uo YIm S99BIIS] Ul SJUBpISaY Bunied ayus-up (s)uepisay
"UOISIOaP JO MaIAaI Jsanbal 0] 8|ge aq 0}
‘Buyied| paau ‘Bupjied a)is-uo aney 0} paulwialep Buleq Jo)s16a.
9]IS-UO JO UOIJRUIWIBISP B JO MaIAaL sojgeus A0 ay ] Auadoud jo uoneoidde Aseligie a1 uldouon Bunjied a)s-uQ (s)uopisay
‘sywued
‘HwJiad suo 0} papus aq ||ns Aew pjoyssnoy | Bupyied [enuapisas Aue 1oy 91q1b1d 89 Jou pjnoys
By "poJIlIuL SI Juspisal 8y}l yolym 0] suuiad jo Jaquinu|  sasodind Jayjo Joy seoeds Bunyied ayis-uo pue Bunjied
By} Wou} payonpap si I Sisixa aoeds 8)Is-uo ue alayp) | sebeueb Bunsixa asn 0} 8S00YD OYM SjUapISaY 9)IS-U0 8sn SN\ (s)uepisey
‘g|qe|ieAe Aplgnd si 1ey) bupyied as Jo)sibal
‘suoisinoid Aoeaud 0} 10algns aJe Bupjied 81IS-Uo JO SPI02aY | -UO JudpISal JO PJOdal B Ulejulew pPiNoYS [1Iounod) Bunjied ajs-uQ (s)uapisey

Bupyted ays-up

‘spwad 1oy

BuiA|dde jo awn 8y} }e uolejuawnoop Alessaoau ay} apinoad
0] syueoldde salinbal A)19 ay] “saiouabe Juswulanob Jayjo
AQ pjay uonewJoyul 01 ssadoe s,Al0 ay) Jusaald sme| AoeAlld

‘saseqelep SINY MSN Pue puog
Jueus) [elual Buipel] Jieq4 MSN ‘|loJ [eloos|e
93V 8y} ¥98Yd SS0JO p|Noys [10Uno)) ‘sywiad

o9

‘sg|es jlwuad 3oayd 0} S$8}ISgam Sueds Ajpuinol [1ouno) | |18s ajdoad 18| ne"wod punoyyed a1 Salsqap) | pnels Jwiad juanald (s)uepisay
"UOI}B)INSU0D ey} 0} SUOISSIWQgNS
se pajeal} pue ssadoud uope)nsuod sabieyn pue
S99 9y} 0} uo passed aq |Im Ado1j04 Bunjieq pooyinoqybiaN
3y} Jo} uoneyNsuod Ajunwwod ay} Jo Jed se paAisdal "9AIJUBDUISIP B Se 90I0A
sabieyo pue s898) U0 SJUBWIWOD ||y "SSa20ld uoneyNSuUod |  JOB 0} ‘ISJi} BY} Jo} 8sealoul 8y} ueyy Jaybiy aq nwiad puoodas| abejia ownin
Aunwwod e sey ssao0.d sabiey) pue saa4 s,|1oun0D | pINoyYs jwJiad puodas e 1o} }S0O Ul 9Sealoul 8y | Jo @oud aseasou|| ‘(s)uspisay
"UOI}B)INSU0D ey} 0} SUOISSIWQgNS ¢ONIsuadxa Ajjeaus ‘Ajleal aq jwiad puooas
se pajeal} pue ssadoud uope)nsuod sabieyn pue ay} pue aAlsuadxa aq jwJad }si} 8y} ,Up|N0H
$994 ay} 0} uo passed aq |Im Ado1j04 Bupjieq pooyinoqybiaN ‘diystaumo Jed Buionpal 1oj spjoyasnoy 0}
8y} Jo} uoneynsuod Ajunwwod ay} Jo Jed se paaiedal| |eubis e Buipuas uey) Jayjes ,abeloys deayo, se
sabieyo pue s89) UO SJUBWIWOD || "SS8201d uoneyNSuUod | pash ale s}aaulS A} Jouul 8y} ul 8oeds 21gnd (shuepisey
Ajunwwod e sey ssasold sabieyn pue saa4 s,[1ouno)| Jo anjea ybiy ayj 109|ja1 pinoys suwuad bunjied MO]| 00} SI 99Lid (s)uepisey
‘ON
asuodsay anss|| pasiewwins anss|| Jap|oydye}s | anss|




Ll

60

"aJeys Jed pue BuljpAo ‘Bupjiem

‘Jodsued; o1gnd Jo asn abeinoous pue diysiaumo Jed
abeunoosip 0} sbulpjing mau 1o} uoisinold Buped wnwixew
e ysl|gelse sjoquoo buiuueld s Aup sy "sywled Bunjied

sywJiad Bupjied
Juapisal sawos saAlb pue Bunjied Jnoyym

sjuswdo|ansp

JuSpISal 0] pajjuUd Jou ale sBuip|ing Mau Jo sjuapIsay | sjuswiiede mau pjing 0} siadojaAap S19| [1oUN0) M3U 10} S)wiad (s)uspisey
‘'seale bunsixe ul sajpAaiojow Aq Buipnjoul ‘sajohoioi0w Jisy} Joy ywiad
‘uonnedwod Bunjied Jo uoneoiisualul Juaaald pue ‘yiomjau| Bupped e aaey 0] papiwiad aq pjnoys suuwiad
peoJ |eo0| 8y} uo sjoeduwil jiwi| 0} awayos Huwiad Bunjied Bunjied juspisal 0} SS820B WOl PpapNjOXa so|oAolojow
JUBPISaY BY] WOl papn|oxa ale sbulp|ing e} |ennuapisal MaN ale jey) sjuswdojoAsp MaU Ul SJUBPISSY 10} sjiwled (s)uspisey

sjuawdojanap maN

asuodsay

anssj

pasiiewiwins anssj

1apjoyaels

‘ON
anssj




8l

"paJojiuow aq |m siyL “Ajjiqeieae buiyied
uo joedwi Juesiubis e esod Ajjualing Jou saop (spjoyasnoy

‘puewap ybiy Apealje s aiay) aiaym seale

sjwJad
Buiyled Jousia

1sinybulleq

10 9%,/°G) suwuiad Bunpjied JousiA Jo dn aye) Jualno 8y | ul Bunyed Joj puewap pasealoul pes| 0] Ay alow asoddQ -uojBuipped
‘panss| sjwJad Jo Jaquunu ayj asealtoul pjnom siy} (G "68)

sjwuad Jo Jsquinu swes ay} 4o} 8|qibije a1am spjoysasnoy B0I0A

(e }] "@oeds qJay yonuw Se asnh Jou Op ‘UOSEal JoAd}BUM ‘wnuue Jad sywad Bupjied abejin ownn

Jo} ‘ywiad Buiyied juspisal e JnoYjIM SPIoYyasnoy seasaym JOJISIA G 40} 8|qIb1|@ 8q p|noys g auoz ul sywuad| ‘dnolg Bupjiopn

Jeak e sAep ggg aoeds qlay asn juiad Buppied juspised| spjoyasnoy a|qibije ||y ‘ewes ay} suoz Yyoes ul| JO Junowe swes Ajunwwo)

B Yylm spjoyasnoH "Ajgelinba aainosal siy) aleys 0} sidweane | spjoyasnoy 9|qibija |je 1ead) 0} sI suuwiad Bunjied | ay) oA190a1 pjnoys 1sinybuipeqg

A)ID ay) pue jasse AJlunwwod 9|gen|eA e si 8oeds qJa) JO}ISIA @)e00||e 0} poylaw 3|geynba jsow ay | spjoyasnoy ||y -uojbuipped

‘Ajlenuue Bupjed 1981s

61

-Uo s$S9| @sn Aay) se suwlad jo Jaquinu Jaybiy suoneoo|je| UONoYy JuowliAd
e 0] pajua Buiaq Bunied 1oa13s-uo Adnooo papuawuwodal| ‘A}8100S 9g9|9
pajoN| Ajensn jou op oym spjoysasnoy a|qibis uoddng uoddng ‘(shuapisay
"S9[OIYDA SJuUdpIsal Joy pasn Buiaq aiam sjwiad
JOJISIA |ENUUE BWOS ey} ulaosuod ayy bunepiiea ‘Apueonyiubis
paul0ap JUOWIAH pue 8ga|9) Ul SIaquinu Hwlad "Sjuapisal sjwuad
10} Ajijigejieae Bunyled uo 10edwi ay) se [jom se sjwlad J0JISIA Bunjied Joysia
[enuue ay} Jo asnsiw paonpal aAey sywaad JOYSIA Ajleq "S}ISIA S8oNpal Jaquinu sywuad Buiiwi| |enuue 0} uinjey (s)uepisey
‘(weg se yons) Aep 1xau Sjwl|
ay] @ouswwo2al suonoLsal bupied jjun aoeds swes ay) "uo BuiAels JI 81Yy0)RIOS JBYJoUR 3sn 10 3oIyaA| Bunjied 1ybny yym
ul Bunppied enuuod 0} syuapisal ajqeus suonoLsal bupjied J1ay) anow Ajjebaj snw oym sysenb ybiuleno| seale ul spuiad
palsodubis 1So|\ ‘payiew Aep ayj uo pijeA Ajuo ale s}eXol] yum Ajaixue Buisneo weg je alidxa s1o)ol] alow pasN (s)uspisey
"SI0}ISIA pUB S9SSBUISNg ‘Sjudapisal
Buipnjoul s1asn peol ||e JO Spaau a8y} aduejeq 0} Spaau sywuad
[1ouno) ‘syuapisal 9|qibis 0} a|qe|ieAe sywJiad Buyied Jo)SIA Buiyled Jousia
JO Jaquinu a8y} asealdul A[9]elopowl 0) papuswIwWodal Si | "USIA Ajlwey pue spusLl) Auew aAeH alow jsanbay (s)uepisay

panssi sjiuwuad jo JaquinN

asuodsay

anss|

pasiiewiwns
anss|

J1apjoyayels

‘ON
anss|

‘sjiwiad Buied JolsiA pauonuaw suoissiwgns gz Aoljod Buijied pooyinoqubiaN yelp ay) Jo uonigiyxe ay) 0} asuodsal Ul paAleoal suoissilgns 98 ayl JO
S1INY3d ONIXMIVd HOLISIA



6l

'$$8004d UOI}B}NSUO0D
sobley) pue s9a4 ay} 0} papJemioy aq ||IM SIY] "POION

pue sywiad Q9 4o} 8|qibId a1e oym spjoyasnoy
Joj 1daoxa ‘s|qeuoseal s ¢$ Jo aoud je|4

Bunsnlpe
paau sadlld

90I0A
abejia ownin

‘spwJiad Buinssi Buipnjoul ‘ewayos ayy
Buusysiuiwpe Jo 1509 ay) s1an09 Ajened sywiad Jo aoud ay)

"JSOD OU }e Sauo
Mmau 1o} way) abueyoxa 0} 9|ge aq p|noys Jeak
e ul sywuad 418y} ||e @SN Jou Op Jey} Sp|oyasnoH

sjwuad punjoy

dnolg) Bupiopn
Ajunwwo)n
1sinybuipeq
-uojbuipped

‘'sywad Joy Buibieyo jJo poylow Jiej e 8q 0} USSS S| )kl Jej)

"IS| 9y} uey} dAIsuadxa alow aq pjnoys jwiad
Ul0p @yl "Bs "sasealoul pasi|iin Joaquinu ay}
se asealoul pjnoys aoud sywliad Buyied Jonsip

9|eas aoud bBuipl|s

dnolg Bunjiopn
Ajunwwo)n
1sinybulleq
-uojbuipped

sjwiad Jo aold

‘S}ISIA

Jayoys Joy uondo ue apiaoid 0y papusjul aie spwi| Buyed 4z | stwuad Bupped JoyiSIA swi) Jouoys a1 pINoAA|  shwlad Aep jleH (s)uspisey

dnolg) Bupiopn

Ajunwwo)n

‘AqiBije anoud 1snw sjuapisay "asooyd Aay) ‘sywiad Bunjied pue S9|oIYaA |Blual Ws) 1sinybuipeq o
SEe uoljed0||e J1ay} 8sn 0} pajua si pjoyasnoy a|qibie yoeg MOys JO anssi 8y} uo juajis si Aoijod yelp ay] | s|ejual wis) Joys -uojbuipped ©

a2dA) yjwiad mau
e 10} paau ay) Buines ‘gjdoadsepel 10} pasn
8q os|e p|noo A8y "SaAsIy) Sjoeljle pJeoqysep
e uo sjuwJiad s|diynw soe|d 0] BuineH
‘Aiep sjwuad abueyd o) ‘Aeme aoue)sip awos
aq Aew yoiym ‘e|o1yaA ay} 0} yjem o} buiney
‘Jwuad e yons asn pjnom oym spjoyasnoy 1noyum yJed o} a|ge aq 0} siybiu may} e a0
1o Jaquinu [jews a8y} Agq paunsnljou si sAep aANdasu0o AB)S OUM SIOJISIA B|geUD 0] SABP SAIINDBSUOD

Jo Jaquinu Bulfiea e Jano pua)xe 1eys sywliad Jousia Buuayo M3} B JOAO pud)xe sjwliad aiyojesds ayep 1ewuoy abuey)n (s)uapisey
"sulq s,juapisal

"uoljed0||e Jiay} JO sjunowe Jgjjews aseyoind ul dn pus Aay} ‘pasn j,uaie pue |nje}sem pajsem

0} Ajlunoddo ay} sjuapISal Ja0 O} PEPUBWIWODAI S| )| ale s}jlwiad "pasn jou aJe sjwliad a1ydjelos aJe sjwiad (s)uepisey

dnolg) Bupiopn

Ajunwwo)n

pasuewwns "ON
asuodsay anssj anssj Japjoyayels | anssj|




0¢

JUSWRRUS [N} BY)

63

10 Q| Jo s1oxoed ul Jayue spwiad ay) buiseyoind | suondo aseyoind 3210
"POION JO 921040 8y} Jayo 03 |esodoud ay) yum aaiby JO @210y abejip ownn
‘'Spaau |enjoe
J19Y) JOpISU09 0] sjuspisal abelnoous 0] uoneoo|e JIdy) Jo dnolg Bunjiopn
sjunowe Jajjews aseyaind o0y Ajlunuoddo sy sjuapisal Jayo| ‘sAep Juaas Juivald 99 uo Bunelado swayos Ajunwwo)
0} Buisodoud s1 A)19 8y ‘spwlad Buinssi Buipnoul ‘ewayos BuipeJ; ywiad Bupjied 10yISIA JnOge uladuod) 1sinybulleq
ay} Buus)siulwpe JO 1S02 8y} SJaA09 spwiad jo aoud ay | "sjwJad Jo asnsiw Jojluow 0] Spasu [I9UNoD pnei4 -uojBuipped
‘pasnge Buleq sI walsAs
ay)} aJaym suoneoo| Aue Ajjuspl 0} se 0s awl}
Jan0 pue AsupAg Jo AlID ay) ssoloe palojiuow
‘sywiad Jo sojes 3oayo 0} S8)ISqam Sueds Ajauinod [1ounoD aq pjnoys uiened abesn ay| ‘papeJ; Buieq
‘Bulino20 si sywlad ay) Jo 8snge ey} 9oUdPIAS OU S| a1y | aJe sjwJad J0}ISIA Jey) 2UBPIAS OU S| a1ay | pneJ} BuipioAy (s)uspisey
*AlUIDIA @)eIpaWIWI "SSalppe JI1Iay] Jo ALUIOIA BY) Ul pamoje
J1ay) ul Bupyied jou si alayy JI yued 0} aoe|d e puly 0} SIOUSIA Ajuo sem Bupjied sIO)SIA pue Juapisal 8y} Jo
pue sjuapisal 8|geus 0} paysi|gelse ale seale buped| Ssaippe pue aweu ay} papnjoul yuuad Buped
"‘BuLLIN020 sI sjwiad ay) JO asnge 1eyl S0USPIAS OU SI alay | SJOJISIA 8] JI JN220 8Q P|NOM 9SNge SSoT pneuj Buipiony (s)uopisay
‘(930 sywiad JoyISIA
yum 10aa1s ay) uo Buyled 1s|iym saoeds bBupjied
swuede 1no Bunual ‘siaylom [Bo0| 03 sywlad
Jo Buijias) paonpau Ajjesnewelp sey syuiad
JOJISIA |[enuue JO asnqge se Ajljige|ieAe aoeds pnelj 8onpal
"‘poION | Bunjied panoidwi aAaey spwiad JojISIA Biyoiesog| sywlad Aep-auQ (s)uopisay

pnelj Buionpay

"yoea 0G'1$ 0} paonpal aqg p|noys sywiad
09 10} 80lid "0ZL$ O} £6$ W0y Wys 8old a8y

asuodsay

anssj

pasuewwns
anss|

1apjoyaels

‘ON
anssj




¥4

‘Aj@yenbape 9210\
‘'s9sodind asay} Jo} pasn paJaA09 },us| Jiedas Joulw e 1o} N0 ||ed abe|A ownN
aqg ueo Bunppied Aed Jo Bupjied pawn ‘sywiad Buyied JolsiA| e Ing suoneAoual o) jealb si Buned s yoom y sJiedal Joulp ‘(s)iuapisay
‘spwued
Buyed JoysIA 09 4O O 40} B|qIbl@ 8q ||IM Spjoyasnoy sdnoug) age|9
Auew ‘paidope aq Aaijod yelp ayy pjnoys "ajdoadsapen sjwJad JO uonieo)
10} pasnh aq os|e ued sywJiad Buyied Joyisia Aep-auQ ‘popasu aJe sjuwad a0l alow pasN ‘(shuapisay
"sjiwi| awiy Buipiebas suone|nbal sy} saysijgelsa "'S9uU0z yJed Jnoy auo Ul sinoy g sowl}
SINY ‘1043u09 S, AJ1D By} JO BPISINO Jajew e si siy] | 1sed) Je Joj yied 0} 9|ge aq pjnoys ajdoadsepel] | Bupued papusix3 (s)uspisey
‘N0 soules
uosiadsapel ay} 3Jom ay} aje|nbas Jou op Asy| "spuayseam ‘puUdYd9M B UO pash aq 0}
uo 3J2I1YaA Jiay) YJed 0} suosiadsapel) ajgeus sywiad ay| | a|qeun ale ajdoadsapel; 104 paseyaind sjwiad asn pua)eap (s)uopisay
"Jwiad Yoam-auo
‘9]qIXajjul ue 8AeY 0} |nyB)SEM pue |eoioeldw S
‘'spwad S| ]| "alnuIW )se| ayj e |9oued ajdoadsapel;
Bunjied JoyiSIA 09 Jo O 104 8|qIBI@ 89 ||IM Spjoyasnoy pue ‘dn p|ay aJe salldAljep ‘Juapuadap Bunyed
Auew ‘pajdope aq Aoljod yelp 8y} pjnoys ejdoadsapel; | Joyieam si HIOAA “Hoom e Jo pouad ay) Jaao sAep ul Ajjiqixe|y
Jo} pasn aq os|e ued sywiad Buyied JoYSIA Aep-auQ | SAIINIBSUOD UO HJOM Jou Op usyo ajdoadsapes ] alow pasN (s)uspisey
"'9snge ou S,818Y} 8INSud uoljoY Juowuhg
0} Buloyuow |ngated oy Joalgns aq pinoys ‘A}2100G 899|9
‘paJoyuow o [m sywliad Jo ayeidn ay] "paloN | Inq ‘Jiej swaas Buiold ay| ~enpJano Buo| si siy] uoddng ‘(s)uapisay
aoeds o1ignd
‘@oeds 21|gnd Jo asn JaAouln}| Jo ash aAonpoud
‘POION| Jaybiy/ennonpolid smojje - aAneniul aaloddng sobeinooug (s)uapisey
pasuewwns ‘ON
asuodsay anssj anssj Japjoyayels | anssj|
‘sywed

Bunyied suosiadsepel) pauonusw suoissiwgns g| Aoljod Buiyieq pooyinoqybiaN yelp ay) Jo uonigiyxe ay) 0} asuodsal Ul paAleoal suoissilgns 98 ayl JO
SNOSHIdSIAAVYL — SLINY3d ONIMHVd dOLISIA



44

65

dnolg) Bupiopn
"Ja)jew SIy] SI9A09 ‘Yelp Ul Alunwwo)
Apuauing ‘Ao1j0d sjeaosddy |BooT — juswabeuely a)Sep) 9y L 'sooe|d Bunjied j9ans-uo BuiAdnooo 1sinybuipeq
syuwuad Buppied 1o} 9|qibid Jou ale pue S8|2IYSA JoU aJe sulg sulg diys Jo anssi ay} uo juajis si Aoljod ay | suiq dijys -uojbuipped
"Apoinb atow sqol
J19yY} ysiuly 01 a|qe ale suosiadsapel pue ‘Aep ayj Jnoybnouy}
aoeds 0} 9oeds Wol} 8AOW 0} paau Jabuo| ou s9|oIyaA
se ‘sjuswanow olyel) sonpal Apybiis 01 Ajgy si nwiad ay | "SIy} @sealoul [|IM suosiadsapel) 1o}
‘suonoLysal awi puokaq BuiAels 1o Ajjuanbal) sapoiyaa Jiayy| suwuad Bupped "s1ead)s [Bo0| uo suositadsepely| ainssaud Buyied
Buinow pue 19a11s-uo Bunpjied Apealje ale suosiadsapel | pasealoul ueaw suoljeAaoual Buisealou| asea.oul [|IM (s)uspisey
'ssao0.d sabiey) pue sea4 ay) o}
Japew e si siy| ‘1s4y spwaad Buyied oysia Jejinbal uo Bupjied
1904)s-1J0 ‘Bunyied pawiy ‘Buyied pied jo asn ay) sebeinoous "yealb si (Aep/zs) 9210
pue ‘sesodind Burjed Joyjo 4o} pasn aq 0} sjwiad ay} Joj| SsHwISd JOUSIA pue (Aep/09°01$) Hwiad Apoam abe|IA ownn
[ennuajod 8y} SpIOAR jey) |9A9] e 1. }os sI 9o1d pasodoud ay | s ,uosiadsapel] 8yl Usamiaq aouUalalIp Y] | 9AISS8IXd S| 99ld ‘(s)uapisay

asuodsay

anssj

pasuewwns
anss|

1apjoyaels

‘ON
anssj




€¢

‘passosse
aq |Im peJ) Ajlep Jo 8sinod ayj ul spoob Alieo
0} pasn, MOy 1o MOy Jea|d apew aq p|noys |
"90URINSUI 9|0IYSA |BIOISWIWOD JO
90UBpIAS 9 P|N0J }] "3J0IYaA Jo adA} e aquiosald
uey} Jayied awodIN0 JUBIoIS Ue aAaIyoe
0} paseq a|diould aq pjnoys el ANiqib3 Jaquey)
‘Jwad Buped ssauisng jo axeydn moj ul ssaulsng
‘POION| paynsal sey sa|o1yaA a|qibij@ punole uoisnjuo) sajoIyanA 9|q1b13 KaupAg 9
UoNoY JuowliAd
‘JOUOISSIWIWOD
ssauisng
[lEWS JO 30O
"POION elI9)10 ay) Buluspeolq poddng sooIya 91q1blg| ‘A18100S 8999
‘SySe) [9A.d) 8say) Jo) Bueys Jed pue sixe) ‘podsuel)
a1lgnd ‘|aAel] 8AIj0R JO ash ayl sabeinoous AJI9 ay] "ssauisnqg
10 JuswAojdws Jo aoe|d e 0} Bunwwod Jo ‘sjuswiuiodde Juswdinba S
SSBUISN( Je 90UBpUSJIE ‘|oABl) Jels Jo) pasn Ajiewrd pue spoob Buifiies isnfjou ‘sdiy ssauisnqg [9AeJ} [eJBuUBb | sdnolg) agalD
SO|01YaA 10) papiaoad jou ale sywlad Buyied ssauisng |esauab 1oy Jwiad e aAey pjnoys sassauisng 10} 9|gejieAy JO uoneo)d
‘uondo ue sAem|e jou sI odsuel;
"9]|gemo|e jou si jiwiad 211gnd S}sIA abeinoous 0} suodied 0} aAIb 0}
10 8dA} siy) pue pasn aq Aew jey; spwuad Buppied jo sadA}| sjueinelsal se 4yons sassaulIsng |Ie}al 0} ‘sinoy sJawolsno
ay] auIwWlIalap SINY '|0u09 S,A11D By} 9pISINO SI Jayew SIy | Z-1 Joy piea ‘suwled Bunpjied |eioads apinold 10} sjiwed (s)uopisay
‘'sauoz Buipeo| pue seoeds Bunyed pawi ‘Bunyied ‘slonlp Alaalep 1oy ssed Buppied wus) sossed bBunpyjied
9]IS-Uo AQ pa]epOoWIWOIde g UBD S)HSIA PUB SOLIDAIIOP 92IAI9S|  MOUS o|gellajsuel] B 9ABY PINOYS Sassaulsng| poau sessauisng (s)uepisay
‘ON
asuodsay 9Nss| | pasuewiWINS anss|| Jap|oyd)yels | anssj
‘Sywad

Buiyied ssauisng pauonuaw suoissiwgns Jybie Aoljod Bujied pooylnoquybiaN Yelp ay) Jo uonigiyxa ay) 0} asuodsal Ul paAledal suoissiwgns 98 ay) JO
S1INY3d 9NIMYVd SSANISNG



ve

‘Bupyied jusuewuad 4o} s|ge|ieAe jou
ale Aay] ybiulono suwi swi aAey jou op AllD ayj ul seoeds

Bunjied jusuewlad pue sAels

1sow jey} abpasimoudoe 0} papuawe usaq sey jwJiad ay | wybiuiano 1o} a|gejieae buieq sywiad poddng sAeys ybiuianQ | A1a100g aga|n
|sued
‘a1qIssaooe Ajjeubip si )l jey) ainsua sjuswnoop uoisnjou|
‘A|Buipioooe papuswe usaq sey Aoljod yeap ay] ‘pajoN | 0} Juswnoop Adijod ay) Jo Buniewlo) sy} mainay 9]qISS900Y Agesig
‘Ao1j104 Bunjied pooyinoqybieN [oued
8y} 0} JajaJ pue ajejal jey) saioljod uoisnjou|
"SIY} 109}81 0} papuawe usaq sey Adijod yelp ay] ‘pojoN pue saibajelis AsupAg Jo A9 JO 1SI| B apnjou| ‘'saioljod A9 Agesig
(SIQN) swayog aduelnsu|
"90IAJes 1oddns Aljigesiq jeuonep aui Jo 1ybi ul Aousbe q
awoy-ul ue Buipirosd aq jou |Im Aousbe ay) se pasinbal Jou si| 8dueINSUl, 8pPN[OUl UOKIULSP 8y} Jey) paysabbng |]sued (0
[Aouabe aoueinsul, wis) 8y} JO UOISN|OUI BY} Jey} pPaJapISuod SI " uonesiueblo aied yjeay psypaiode, wis) uoisnjou|
}| “Jepinoid adinles 0} pajepdn usaqg sey uonulyep 8yl ‘PAION | dY} JO 8sSn pue uoiiuyap 8y} ajepdn pue Malnay suouyag Alngesig
“Ajligesip jo [apow [e1o0s 8y} Jou pue Ayjigesip
JO |9pow yjjeay/|edipaw e s}os|jal 81ed,
wuey ay] " Moddns, yum paoedal ,a1e0, wis) 8y} [aued
pue Jiwiad Ja)Iop HWoddng, yum paoejdal aq uoisn|ou|
"SIy} JO9|48.1 0} papuswe uaaq sey Adjjod yelp 8yl "‘poION| Jwlod JOYIOAA 81eD, wid) ay) jey) uoisebbng AKbojouiwia | Augesia G9
*90IAI8s poddns
awoy-ul ue Buipinoad aq jou [im Aousbe ayj se padinbal jou si " uonesiueb.o
JAouabe soueinsul, wid) 8y} JO UOISN|DUI BY} 1BY} PBISPISUOD SI a1ed yjeay Jo aied pabe peypalooe, SpJom
}| "Jepinoud adiales 0} pajepdn usaq sey uoniuyap 8yl ‘PaloON By} 9pn|oul p|NOYS JayJom aied Jo uoiiuyag uoniuyaq (s)uspisey
‘ON
asuodsay 9nss|| pasiewwns anss|| Japjoyaye}s | anss|

‘sJoyiom poddns pauonusw suoissiwgns aaly) Aoljod Buied pooyinoqubiaN yelp a8y} Jo uonigiyxs ay) 0} asuodsal Ul paAledal suoissiwgns 98 ay) JO

S1INY3d ONIMUVd SHINIOM L4O0ddNS



Gc

‘sjuswdojaAap ulylm a|gejieae dnoig
Ajjesauab si Bunjied Joyisia Buipnjoul Bujied “seale Bunsixa ‘Jwiad BuIopn
ul uonedwod Bupyied jo uoneosiisuslul Jusaald pue ‘Yiomiau | Buppied juspisay e 4o} 9|qibis Jjou sI pjoyasnoy Alunwwo)
peoJ [e20] 8y} uo sjoeduw Jwi 0} BWaYdS Juwdd buped| Jisy) asnesaq isnl 821AI8S |BYIA SIY} paluap jou 1sinybBuieq
JuapIsay dy} woJy papn|oxa ale sbulp|ing jej} |enuapisal MaN pinoys Bupjied sialed aiinbal oym sjuapisoy -uojbuipped
‘9)jelidoidde aiow
aq Aew aylom uoddns, jey) pue spouad Loys
10} USIA Aew jey) spusly/Ajilue) pue SI1a)Iom
"SIO)ISIA S,JUBpISal Jaylo se Aem ‘o|dwexa Joj ‘siaied ||e apnjoul Ajluessadau
awes ay} ul pajead) ale 010z 10V (uoniuboosy) sieien ayi Jo 10U S90p uonIuyap Siy) ey} paysabbns R
uoniuap ay} 0} Buiplodoe siaied Jou ale Oym SIOo)ISIA Jeinboy silaqwaw |aued ‘Ad1j0d @y} 1noybnouyy [aued
‘Huwuad Buppied sexiom Joddns e uoj 9|qibije ale Aoijod ‘0102 1oV (uoniubooosy) siaien sy} UuIylm uoIsnjou|
yeup ayy jo eusuo A)jiqibie ay) 198w oym siaxiom yoddng | pauisp se Jaied, pJIOM 8y} JO 8SNn 8y} JapISuo) ABojouiwia | Angesia
Apoq yyesy srendoidde
ue woud} 89| e, Aq paoe|dal aq Joyo0p |]sued
e Aq paledald ue|d aied e, 1se66ns :s)wlied sjuswalinbal uoisnjou|
"SIY} 109}81 0} papuswe usaq sey Adijod yelp ay] "poIoN Jale) Joj sjuswalinbal Aljiqibid ayy mainay Aaibig Algesig
‘Huwad slaie) e 0} ssaaoe wol) Auadoud Jayjo
oy} sepnjoxa jwlad Bupjied juspisal e buipjoy
"HWwIdd slaie) e 0} ssadoe sbuljamp| pjoyasnoy auo aiaym sbuijjomp Alepuodss yjm sjuswdo|anap
AJepuooas yjm pue| uo spjoyasnoy sajqeus Aoljod yelp 8yl | pue| uo spjoyasnoy Buipnjoxa Jnoge uiaouod) papn|ox3 (s)uspisey
‘ON
asuodsay anss|| pasiewwins anss|| J3ap|oydye)s | anss|

‘sjiwiad siaied pauonusw suoissiwgns aaiy) Aoljod Buiyied pooyinoqybiaN 1elp ay) Jo uoligiyxe ay) 0} asuodsal Ul paAleoal suoissIilugns 98 ayl JO
S1INY3d ONIMUVd SH3UVO



9¢

OJ

‘g|doadsapel; AqQ syISIA Jo) spuiad
JO uOIjeald By} pue ‘SISNIOAA 81D pue siale) Joj suoisirold
ay) ‘siaquinu Jajjews ui sywJiad Joyisin Ang 0} Ayjige ‘sywuad
JOJISIA [euonIppe Se yons ‘sabueyd pasodolid wouy Jjauaq dnoig
JBYMNY [|IM SJUBPISSY "SBWOIIN0 papusiul 8y} BulaAlsp Bupopn
S| yJomawedy Aoljod BuiAjJapun ay) jey) paJapisuod si | Alunwwo)
1sinybuipteq
"JOV JUBWIUIBAOS) [BO0T "sywuad Bupjied J0)SIA BIIXS 10} -uojbuipped
ay} Jo syuswalinbai ay) pue sebiey) pue saa4 Jo 9|NPaYIS| pesu sy} se yans ‘sjuswailinbal Aoijod ayy woly ‘sdnolo
ay} Jo suoisinoid 8y} Yiim Jualsisuod aq o) spunoib diyspiey uondwaxa ue jsenbal 0} s|enplAlpul 8|qeus 0} Aoljod ago|o
uo sjpuswale Aoijod jo Buiaiem ayy suwi Aoijod yelp ay | wsiueyosw e apnjoul pjnoys Asijod Bupjied ay | 0} suondwaxg| }o uoneo)
‘Ajleodipouad
w0} Azewwins ui ajqissaooe Ajjeoalgnd
apew aq 0} Spasau uoljewJojul syl “Ajqixa|y
Jarealb yym Ajunwwod ayy apinold pue pases
8q 0} s|0J3u0d Buisixe 8|qeud p|Noo pue paseq q
-90UDPIAS BIE SUOISIDBP BINSUD ISISSE [|IM }| d
Aoljod ul
abueyo e Juesiem Jybiw jey) Spusl) 109]op 0] e
seale usam}aq
suosuedwod s|jgeus o} eale bupied Aq e
:Ao1j04 Bunyied
seale ol19ads 1oj salpnis buied pooylnoqybiaN ay) bunoedwi sajqeliea Jolew
SUOISSIWWOD pue spuaJ) bupied siojuow Ajdunnod [1oUN0D | JO 8seq ejep aAIsuayaidwod e dojaAap [19uno) eleq| (s)uspisey
diyspieH
‘ON
asuodsay 9nss|| pasiiewwNnS anss|| Japjoyayels| oanssj

‘uoneJisiulilupe pue uonejuswaldwi
Buipieba. sieyew pauonuaw suolissiwgns aaiy) Aoljod Bujied pooytnoqybiaN Lelp 8y} Jo uoniqiyxa ay) o) asuodsal ul paAledal suolssiwugns 98 ay) 1O

NOILVYLSININGY ANV NOILVLININITdINI



LC

‘uonels bunued 1@a.1S uingnos) je

gnH Jalno9 ayj Jo Juswysijgeise ay) ul pajelado-00 sey pue
ssauisnq 4o} uado si A} a8y} ainsua 0} 8210 UOIBUIPI00 D
AaupAg ay} yum sasiel| Ajlsunnod Aj1D ay | “Aoljod Buned
198J1S-UQ ASUPAS |esjUSD) BY) Ul PaJSA0D ale sid)jew asay |

‘pesn

8q p|noo sjodap jybialy 8|eds [|ewsS "palapIsSuod
aq pinoys jybiaiy a|iw ise| pue sauoz Buipeo)
wialu] "ybiy s1 uononIsuod qgo UsAIb sajolyaa
AJaAlop 1o} ssao0oe poddns 0] spaau [1ouno)

souoz BuipeoT

Jaquieyd
ssauisng
AsupAg

70

‘palojiuow aq ||im sy ‘pnelj
Joj [enuajod ay) Buionpal ul 1sisse |[Im palinbal yJom Jo jooud
apinoad 0} Juspisal 10} Juswalinbal ay) jey) pajedionue si

‘asnge 0} uado pue
mo| Asan si Buped jo shep / 10j £G4 JO 3S00 8y |

Jwuad Jo ao1d

dnolg) Bupiopn
Ajunwwo)
1sinybuipeqg
-uojbuipped

dnolg) Bupiopn

paJojiuow aq |[IM SIy| "pned} Alunwwo)
Joy |enuajod ayy Bulonpal ul 3sISSe ||Im padinbal yiom jo jooud "9|01YydA apely 1sinyBuieq
apinoid 0} Juapisad 1o} Juswalinbal ay) jey) pajedionue sy B S8)NJIISU09 Jeym Aji0ads 0} spasu [1Iouno) I TRRCTRIIVEY -uojbuipped
"uole}NSUod
‘POION Ajlunwwoo yeme nq s|diound ul poddng ‘woddng| Ae100g 9g9|9
‘ON
asuodsay aNnss| | pasuewWNS anss|| Jap|oyaye}s | anss|

sossauIsng Joy) sywlad Bupped suosiadsapel)

Joj syiwuad Buiyied pauonjusw suoissiwgns 8aly) Aoljod Bujied pooyinoqybiaN yelp ay) Jo uonigiyxe ay) 0} asuodsal Ul paAledal suoissiwgns 98 ayl JO
SNOSHAdSIAAVYL — SLINY3d DONIMYVd SSANISNg



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

Item 3.

Policy - Public Exhibition - Energy and Waste Amendment 2018 - Sydney
Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre Development
Control Plan 2012

File No:  X004692.002

Summary

The City's planning framework plays a critical role in shaping the economic, cultural, social
and environmental success of the City. It ensures we have the quantity and quality of space
needed for the City to be productive, liveable and sustainable. The planning framework
ensures that land uses take best advantage of transport, services and infrastructure.

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 (Sydney DCP 2012) came into operation on 14
December 2012, together with Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 (Sydney LEP 2012).
These planning controls are the product of a comprehensive program of review and
consolidation of the City's previous controls and development policies.

Green Square Town Centre Development Control Plan 2012 (Green Square Town Centre
DCP 2012) came into operation on 24 April 2012, and complements the provisions of
Sydney Local Environmental Plan (Green Square Town Centre) 2013. These planning
controls provide detailed provisions for development in the Green Square town centre, and
recognise the town centre as the major centre for the surrounding neighbourhoods.

Since 2012, the City's focus for its strategic planning work has shifted from the consolidation
of the controls to delivering the long term vision described in Sustainable Sydney 2030. The
focus has also been on responding to the challenges of evolving economic, demographic
and environmental opportunities and the NSW Government's plans and policies. For
example, the NSW Climate Change Policy Framework sets the NSW target of net zero
emissions by 2050. The Draft Greater Sydney Region Plan and revised Draft Eastern City
District Plan have enabling strategies and actions to support the State target.

A component of this work is the ongoing monitoring and review of the controls to deliver their
intended planning outcomes and improve their operation and clarity.

This report seeks Council's approval for public exhibition of proposed energy and waste
amendments to Sydney DCP 2012 and Green Square Town Centre DCP 2012, shown at
Attachment A to this report. The proposed amendments include:

(a) introducing a requirement for Base Building National Australian Built
Environment Rating Scheme (NABERS) Energy Commitment Agreements for
new commercial office buildings, and major commercial office refurbishments,
over 1,000 square metres to Sydney DCP 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
DCP 2012;

(b) updating introductory text to Section 3.6 Ecologically Sustainable Development
of Sydney DCP 2012; and



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

(c) updating provisions in Sydney DCP 2012 that relate to storage and managemeri
of waste to align with the proposed Guidelines for Waste Management in New
Developments, which replaces the Policy for Waste Minimisation in New
Developments 2005.

The proposed amendments are also a direct response to the following actions listed in the
City's Environmental Action 2016 - 2021 Strategy and Action Plan and the City of Sydney
Operational Plan 2017/2018. Both documents aim to deliver the long term vision of
Sustainable Sydney 2030 through:

. Action 6.10 Investigate the inclusion of DCP provisions that introduce NABERS Energy
Commitment Agreements for new commercial office buildings and major commercial
office refurbishments over 500 sgm or 1000 sgm, and

. Objective 2.2.1 Incorporate minimum waste requirements for waste storage capacity
for new developments in DCP.

This report recommends Council endorse the proposed amendment to Sydney DCP 2012
and Green Square Town Centre DCP 2012, and the proposed Guidelines for Waste
Management in New Developments, which are to form part of the Sydney DCP 2012, for
public exhibition. If endorsed for exhibition, they will be placed on public exhibition for
comment for a minimum of 28 days.

Recommendation

It is resolved that:

(A) Council endorse the proposed amendments to Sydney Development Control Plan
2012 and Green Square Town Centre Development Control Plan 2012, as shown at
Attachment A to the subject report, for public exhibition for at least 28 days;

(B) Council note the amendment will be reported back to Council following public
exhibition;

(C) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to make any changes prior to the
public exhibition of the amendment that are required to correct minor errors or as a
result of consideration by Council;

(D) Council endorse the proposed Guidelines for Waste Management in New
Developments, shown at Attachment C to the subject report, for public exhibition for at
least 28 days; and

(E) Council note the proposed Guidelines for Waste Management in New Developments
will be reported back to Council following public exhibition.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

Attachments

Attachment A. Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square
Development Control Plan 2012 - Energy and Waste Amendment 2018

Attachment B. Summary Table of Amendments

Attachment C. Proposed Guidelines for Waste Management in New Developments



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

Background

1.

The City's planning framework plays a critical role in shaping the economic, cultural,
social and environmental success of the City. It ensures we have the quantity and
quality of space needed for the City to be productive, liveable and sustainable. The
planning framework ensures that land uses take best advantage of transport, services
and infrastructure.

The Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 (Sydney DCP 2012) came into operation
on 14 December 2012, together with Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 (Sydney
LEP 2012). These planning controls are the product of a comprehensive program of
review and rationalisation of the City’s previous controls and development policies.

Green Square Town Centre Development Control Plan 2012 (Green Square Town
Centre DCP 2012) came into operation on 24 April 2012, and complements the
provisions of Sydney Local Environmental Plan (Green Square Town Centre) 2013.
These planning controls provide detailed provisions for development in the Green
Square town centre, and recognise the town centre as the major centre for the
surrounding neighbourhoods.

Since 2012, the City’s focus for its strategic planning work has shifted from the
consolidation of the controls to delivering the long term vision described in Sustainable
Sydney 2030. The focus has also been on responding to the challenges and
opportunities of evolving economic, demographic and environmental trends and NSW
Government plans and policies.

A component of this work is the ongoing monitoring and review of the controls to
deliver their intended planning outcomes and improve their operation and clarity. The
proposed amendments to Sydney DCP 2012 and Green Square Town Centre DCP
2012 are the result of this regular monitoring and review.

The proposed amendments to Sydney DCP 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
DCP 2012 will make the application of provisions simpler and clearer, and provide the
community and proponents with more robust development controls for energy and
waste.

The proposed amendments will ensure the City's planning framework continues to
deliver the strategic directions under Sustainable Sydney 2030 and address the
actions found within the City's Environmental Action 2016 - 2021 Strategy and Action
Plan and the City of Sydney Operational Plan 2017/2018. The amendments will help
deliver desirable environmental, social and economic outcomes from development.

The proposed amendments to the Sydney DCP 2012 and the Green Square Town
Centre DCP 2012 aim to:

(a) strengthen the application of ecologically sustainable development principles in
new developments and major refurbishments;

(b) improve the clarity of existing ecologically sustainable development provisions;
and

(c) align waste provisions to the proposed Guidelines for Waste Management in
New Developments.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

10.

11.

12.

13.

The proposed amendments are shown at Attachment A, Sydney Development Contro!
Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre DCP 2012 - Energy and Waste
Amendment 2018 (the DCP amendment). It proposes amendments to text.

This report recommends that Council endorse the DCP amendment and Guidelines for
Waste Management in New Developments for public exhibition.

The key purpose of the DCP amendment is to:

(@) Amendment 1 - introduce a requirement for Base Building National Australian
Built Environment Rating Scheme (NABERS) Energy Commitment Agreements
for new commercial office buildings, and major commercial office refurbishments,
of 1,000 square metres or more;

(b) Amendment 2 - update introductory text to Section 3.6 Ecologically Sustainable
Development of Sydney DCP 2012; and

(c) Amendment 3 - update waste provisions to align with the Guidelines for Waste
Management in New Developments, replacing the Policy for Waste Minimisation
in New Developments 2005.

The DCP amendment proposes amendments to text, as shown at Attachment A.

The proposed amendments and the key implications are discussed below. A table
detailing the rationale for each amendment is included at Attachment B to this report.

Key Implications

Amendment 1 - NABERS Energy Commitment Agreements

14.

15.

16.

17.

The key energy amendment to the Sydney DCP 2012 and the Green Square Town
Centre DCP 2012 introduces a new clause to foster efficient and sustainable use of
energy and resources, and minimise new and significantly refurbished office buildings'
consumption of energy. The proposed provisions establish standards for new, and
major refurbishments of, commercial office buildings with a net lettable floor area over
1,000 square metres to commit to achieving a 5.5 star NABERS Energy rating for base
building. A base building rating covers the performance of the building's central
services and common areas, which can be influenced by building design and the
building services.

The commercial office sector was responsible for 45 per cent of City emissions in
2015/16. Through the adoption of high efficiency and renewable energy technologies
in the design and operation of buildings, rates of energy consumption can be reduced,
resulting in reduced greenhouse gas emissions and lower operating costs for building
owners and occupants. Introducing Base Building NABERS Energy Commitment
Agreements to DCP controls will encourage such technologies.

The changes proposed support Sustainable Sydney 2030, related documents and
Council resolutions, as well as NSW State Government plans and policies.

In 2008, Sustainable Sydney 2030 set a target to reduce greenhouse gas emissions
by 70 per cent below 2006 levels.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

18.

19.

20.

The City's Energy Efficiency Master Plan (2015) recognises the NABERS program as
making a substantial contribution to reducing energy consumption and emissions at
the time of publication and in the future. The Energy Efficiency Master Plan identified
updating the City's planning controls to require NABERS Energy Commitment
Agreements for new commercial office buildings and major commercial office
refurbishments as an enabling action. The Energy Efficiency Master Plan is a
supporting document to the Environmental Action 2016 — 2021 Strategy and Action
Plan (the Environmental Action Plan).

The Environmental Action Plan was endorsed in March 2017. The Environmental
Action Plan renewed the City’s Sustainable Sydney 2030 environmental targets in line
with the Paris Agreement. The Paris Agreement is a United Nations program that aims
to strengthen the global response to the threat of climate change. The Environmental
Action Plan repeats the call to investigate the introduction of NABERS Energy
Commitment Agreements for new commercial office buildings and major commercial
office refurbishments. Introducing such a requirement will enable the City's planning
and regulatory controls to promote energy efficiency and support the achievement of
the environmental targets set in Sustainable Sydney 2030 and Environmental Action
2016 — 2021 Strategy and Action Plan.

The NSW Climate Change Policy Framework sets the NSW target of net zero
emissions by 2050. The Draft Greater Sydney Region Plan and revised Draft Eastern
City District Plan have enabling strategies and actions to support the State target.
NABERS Energy Commitment Agreements will contribute to reducing emissions, and
therefore the proposed amendment directly aligns with and contributes to this State
target.

National Australian Built Environment Rating System (NABERS)

21.

22.

23.

The National Australian Built Environment Rating Scheme (NABERS) is a rating tool
that is well established in the Australian market, with two thirds of offices in NSW with
a NABERS rating. The NABERS scheme compares the actual operational
performance of existing buildings and tenancies, relative to similar buildings. NABERS
measures the energy efficiency, water usage, waste management and indoor
environment quality. NABERS ratings are based on the previous 12 months of
measured performance information. They use parameters such as hours-of-use and
the area of the building, and are scaled 0 star (very poor performance) to 6 star
(market leading performance), including half star increments.

An energy rating is the most popular type of NABERS ratings. For new Premium and
Grade A buildings, a 5 star NABERS Energy rating or higher is required, and 4 star or
higher for Grade B buildings using Property of Council of Australia's Guide to Office
Building Quality (2012) matrix. The average NABERS Energy rating for commercial
office buildings in the City of Sydney in 2016 was 4.53 star (without GreenPower).
Only 16% of office buildings were rated less than 3 star NABERS Energy. GreenPower
is a Federal program that enables households and businesses to displace their
traditional (coal/gas sourced) electricity usage with certified renewable energy.

Several Federal, State and industry programs and policies reference or require
NABERS Energy ratings. These include:

(@) Commercial Building Disclosure Program (Federal);
(b) National Green Leasing Policy (Federal);

(c) NSW Government Resource Efficiency Policy (State); and



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

(d) Property Council of Australia's A Guide to Office Building Quality (industry).

The Commercial Building Disclosure Program (2010), administered by the Australian
Government, mandates the disclosure of the NABERS Energy rating for commercial
office space of 1,000 square metres or more. Prior to 1 July 2017, the mandatory
disclosure threshold on commercial office space was 2,000 square metres. The
Commercial Building Disclosure Program was established under the Building Energy
Efficiency Disclosure Act 2010. Disclosure of the NABERS Energy rating before sale
or lease assists prospective buyers and tenants to make informed decisions regarding
energy efficiency and greenhouse gas emissions data.

The DCP amendment aligns with the Commercial Building Disclosure Program's
mandatory disclosure threshold of 1,000 square metres.

The National Green Leasing Policy (2012) establishes a framework for minimum green
lease standards in government office accommodation. This Commonwealth policy
facilitates environmentally beneficial practices and outcomes associated with the
leasing of buildings, through the use of a Green Lease Schedule. The policy requires a
minimum 4.5 star NABERS Energy rating for both government tenancies and
government buildings over 2,000 square metres.

The NSW Government Resource Efficiency Policy (2014) sets a minimum 4.5 star
NABERS Energy rating for State owned and leased office buildings. The NSW
Government is currently reviewing this policy, including considering whether to
strengthen NABERS ratings and other minimum standards.

The Property Council of Australia's A Guide to Office Building Quality (2012) provides
a design specification for new office buildings and a matrix for existing buildings for
classifying office building quality. The Guide provides various tools for assessing office
building quality in new and existing buildings.

The Guide references NABERS Energy ratings, and links NABERS Energy ratings
with grades of buildings. For new Premium and Grade A buildings a 5 star NABERS
Energy rating or higher is required, and 4 star or higher for Grade B buildings.

The current edition of the Guide was released in 2012 and an update is currently
taking place, with the 3rd edition available in Q3 2018. It is expected all referencing to
NABERS criteria will be updated.

NABERS Energy Commitment Agreements

31.

32.

A NABERS Energy Commitment Agreement is a commitment by a building owner to
design, build and commission a building to a selected NABERS star rating. It is a
contractual commitment between the NABERS national administrator and a building
owner to achieve actual operational performance. The communication amongst the
design team and other relevant stakeholders during the design and construction
stages, as part of the Commitment Agreement process, enables a focus on the
achievement of a rating target.

Commitment Agreements are applicable to new commercial office building projects or
to upgrades and refurbishments of the base building, tenancy or combined tenancies
and base building (known as a whole building rating). Commitment Agreements are
also applicable to premises that are newly occupied, renovated or where operational
changes are being made. The Commitment Agreement covers the design,
construction, commissioning and tenanting phases of the project as well as a 12 month
operational period to allow operational data to be collected to prove performance.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

33.

The benefits of NABERS Energy Commitment Agreements to proponents, building
owners and tenants are:

(a) reduced base building energy costs;

(b) costs to design and construct a higher efficiency building can be minimised by
including energy targets in the planning and design phase of a development;

(c) a building rating system which allows for the achievement of corporate
sustainability targets;

(d) a building rating system which allows for developers, building owners and
tenants to promote and market environmental performance whilst the building is
being designed, constructed and leased;

(e) NABERS Rating Estimate associated with a NABERS Energy Commitment
Agreement can be used to show compliance with energy efficiency Performance
Requirements JP1 and JP3 of National Construction Code Volume One Energy
Efficiency Provisions 2016; and

(f)  NABERS Energy modelling associated with a NABERS Energy Commitment
Agreement can be used to claim Energy points in Green Star - Design & As Built.

5.5 star NABERS Energy Commitment Agreement

34.

35.

36.

37.

The DCP amendment proposes the inclusion of NABERS Energy Commitment
Agreements of 5.5 star for new commercial office buildings, and major commercial
office refurbishments with 1,000 square metres or more of net lettable floor area. The
Commitment Agreement is for the base building. The proposed amendment utilises
1,000 square metres to align with the Commercial Building Disclosure Program.

The majority of commercial office projects in the City of Sydney are currently achieving
or proposing 5 star NABERS Energy ratings for the base building.

The studies listed below indicate a 5.5 star NABERS Energy rating is an appropriate
minimum target to require for future developments, with reasons including:

(a) higher rental rates based on data analysis from the Investment Property
Databank;

(b) positive net present value and internal rate of return possible; and

(c) little or no 'additional' energy savings at the local government area level if below
5.5 star as NABERS Energy ratings in the City of Sydney are increasing over
time, on average - requiring less than 5.5 star will achieve a much smaller
reduction in energy usage from buildings.

Specifically for the City, introducing a requirement to enter into a NABERS Energy
Commitment Agreement of 5.5 star means:

(a) the City's planning controls can further support the Sydney LEP 2012, Part 1,
1.2(2)(c) aim to promote ecologically sustainable development;

(b) future planning proposals and development applications seeking to demonstrate
design excellence will need to exceed 5.5 star NABERS Energy to qualify for
design excellence; and



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

(c) the City can progress towards reducing greenhouse gas emissions across the
entire City of Sydney.

The following were relied upon to determine the proposed 5.5 star NABERS Energy
rating:

(a) draft National Construction Code 2019;

(b) peer-reviewed journal article by NSW Office of Environment and Heritage and
AECOM, Life cycle cost comparison of a high NABERS performing commercial
building (2016);

(c) Investment Property Databank Australia Market Results (2014); and
(d) preliminary discussions with industry stakeholders.

The National Construction Code is a performance based code containing all of the
Performance Requirements for the construction of buildings. It provides the minimum
necessary requirements for safety, health, amenity and sustainability in the design and
construction of new buildings, and new building work in existing buildings, throughout
Australia. It is an initiative of the Council of Australian Governments.

In NSW, the National Construction Code is referenced and given effect through the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979. The National Construction Code is
made up of the Building Code of Australia (BCA), being Volumes One and Two, and
the Plumbing Code of Australia, being Volume Three.

The National Construction Code is amended every three years and technical
proposals to change the National Construction Code are considered during this cycle.
The next update of the National Construction Code is scheduled for 2019, with the
draft National Construction Code 2019 currently open for public comment until 13 April
2018. One key element of the proposed 2019 amendments includes increased levels
of energy efficiency for commercial buildings, located in Section J Energy Efficiency of
Volume One. This focus is an outcome of the Council of Australian Governments 2015
National Energy Productivity Plan and subsequent energy productivity targets.

Draft National Construction Code 2019 proposes to use the NABERS Energy
Commitment Agreements process and modelling of 5.5 star as one of the verification
methods to demonstrate compliance with Performance Requirement JP1 for a Class 5
building. Class 5 buildings are office buildings that are used for professional or
commercial purposes. There are four verification methods proposed to demonstrate
compliance with Performance Requirement JP1:



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

(@) NABERS Energy;

(b) Green Star;

(c) verification using a reference building; and
(d) building envelope sealing.

The Office of Environment and Heritage, the NABERS national administrator,
commissioned AECOM to conduct a life cycle cost analysis based on the capital and
operating costs of a building targeting different NABERS Energy star ratings. The
study modelled a new build on a brownfield site with a net lettable area of 35,000
square metres located in Sydney. The study was conducted from both a building
owner perspective (base building) and a tenant perspective (tenancy). A Base Building
NABERS Energy rating covers the energy use by base building services, such as
central air conditioning plant, lighting in the common area spaces, lifts and car park
facilities.

The study indicates there is a strong business case, supported by rigorous modelling,
that high NABERS rated buildings are more desirable to construct and operate than
average or low performing buildings. Financially, two of the four scenarios in the study
(scenario 2 - 5 star Energy and 4.5 star Water; scenario 3 - 5.5 star Energy and 5 star
Water) are the most attractive for a building owner/developer, showing a similar,
positive 15 year net present value. The modelled 25 year net present value shows
scenario 3 with a higher benefit, however, it is at the expense of a greater capital
outlay.

Investment Property Database Australia Markets Results (2014) show:

(@) a 10.6 per cent average return on buildings that achieve a 5 star NABERS
Energy and higher, compared to 8.5 per cent return for 4 - 4.5 star and 7.6 per
cent for 3.5 star or lower; and

(b) high performing NABERS Energy buildings have a vacancy rate of 0.4
percentage points lower than the average lower performing buildings, have 17
per cent higher net income ($/sqm), have a 21 per cent higher capital value
($/sgm), and a longer weighted average lease expiry by 45 per cent.

Preliminary industry stakeholder discussions occurred prior to this Council report.
Stakeholders voiced support of including NABERS Energy Commitment Agreements
for commercial office buildings into the planning controls. Further stakeholder
engagement will take place if Council approves this report for public exhibition.

The above studies, industry stakeholder discussions, the benefits of NABERS Energy
Commitment Agreements and the industry acceptance of the NABERS program
provide a strong argument for the proposed amendment. This DCP amendment
proposes the inclusion of Base Building NABERS Energy Commitment Agreements of
5.5 star for new commercial office buildings, and major commercial office
refurbishments, with over 1,000 square metres of net lettable floor area in Sydney
DCP 2012 and Green Square Town Centre DCP 2012.

10



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

Amendment 2 - update Section 3.6 Ecologically Sustainable Development of Sydney
DCP 2012

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

The DCP amendment updates and develops the existing introductory text to Section
3.6 Ecologically Sustainable Development of Sydney DCP 2012. The key changes
comprise:

(@) modification of text to strengthen and clarify the purpose of Section 3.6
Ecologically Sustainable Development;

(b) updating references to programs; and
(c) deletion of references to expired Master Plans.

The existing text lacks an introductory paragraph to identify the purpose of the section,
therefore, text has been added which aligns with other sections of Sydney DCP 2012.

The existing reference to the Australian Government's Commercial Building Disclosure
Program's current mandatory disclosure threshold is out of date. From 1 July 2017, the
mandatory disclosure threshold on commercial office space was lowered from 2,000
square metres to 1,000 square metres. The amendment will align Sydney DCP 2012
with the current threshold requirement of the Program.

Green Infrastructure plans that are referenced in the introductory text are no longer
applicable to the City, therefore, these references are proposed to be removed.

The above corrections and updates are marked in red, with new text shown as
underlined and deleted text as strikethrough within Attachment A to this report.

Amendment 3 - Waste

53.

54.

55.

The DCP amendment and the proposed Guidelines for Waste Management in New
Developments (the proposed Guidelines) aim to ensure all new buildings in the City of
Sydney are designed, constructed, operated and demolished with best practice waste
management principles.

The proposed key changes to Sydney DCP 2012 comprise:
(a) replacing references to the Policy for Waste Minimisation in New Developments
2005 with the proposed Guidelines for Waste Management in New

Developments;

(b)  modification of text to strengthen and clarify the purpose and objectives of
Section 3.14 Waste of Sydney DCP 2012;

(c) expanding waste management references to include recycling to emphasise the
role of recycling in the waste management system; and

(d) expanding the objectives and provisions of Section 4.2.6 Waste and Recycling
Management in Sydney DCP 2012 to emphasise the role of building design to
facilitate improved waste separation and resource recovery.

Additional proposed minor changes can be found in the summary table at Attachment
B.

11



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

The proposed DCP amendment will enable the efficient storage, separation, collectior
and handling of waste in developments to maximise resource recovery and meet the
City's waste and greenhouse gas reduction targets found in Sustainable Sydney 2030
and Environmental Action 2016-2021 Strategy and Action Plan. The proposed
amendments ensure that increased space is provided, especially for larger buildings
and non-residential developments, and help ensure the space is more accessible and
better able to be used by residents and tenants. This will have positive benefits to the
community by reducing illegal dumping and improving public amenity.

The proposed Guidelines have been developed to update and to replace the existing
Policy for Waste Minimisation in New Developments 2005. Updating the Policy for
Waste Minimisation in New Developments 2005 is an action that the City committed to
in Leave nothing to waste - Managing resources in the City of Sydney area: Waste
strategy and action plan 2017-2030, which was adopted by Council in October 2017.

The proposed Guidelines were developed and reviewed in conjunction with MRA
Consulting (a waste consultant) by:

(a) utilising the Policy for Waste Minimisation in New Developments 2005 as a base
document;

(b) incorporating recent waste data and research;

(c) using the NSW EPA's Draft Better Waste Guidelines for New Developments as a
reference document; and

(d) consulting with key stakeholders.

The proposed Guidelines provide the minimum waste management requirements that

need to be incorporated for all new and change-of-use developments requiring

consent when completing Waste and Recycling Management Plans for a development
application.

The proposed Guidelines reflect current waste generation rates, waste consumption

patterns, and the need for increased recovery rates to meet City targets and to reduce

waste being illegally dumped in public places. They result in the following:

(a) Food waste - additional bin storage for the separation of food waste for collection
in non-residential developments and single dwellings (equates to less than 20
per cent additional bin space for single dwellings);

(b) Bulky waste:

(i) additional basement storage space for bulky waste (e.g. mattresses and
furniture) in residential developments greater than 20 units; and

(i)  minimum space requirements for bulky waste in non-residential
developments based on floor space and use; and

(c) Other changes:

(i) additional on-site storage space for the collection of textile waste in multi-
unit residential developments with 50 units or more;

12



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

61.

(i) dedicated on-site storage space for problem waste (e.g. light bulbs,
electronic waste, batteries and chemicals);

(iii)  the option to provide dedicated on-site space for the separate collection of
beverage containers suitable for redemption under the container deposit
scheme collection in non-residential developments; and

(iv) more flexibility in how access to waste and recycling areas can be
achieved, by removing the requirement to provide chutes and clarifying
maximum travel distance requirements.

In addition to the waste provisions in Sydney DCP 2012, all new and 'change-of-use'
developments requiring consent are to consider the proposed Guidelines in order to
provide the minimum requirements for waste and recycling management. The
proposed Guidelines provide more specific requirements than Sydney DCP 2012 for
the different development types across the City of Sydney. The proposed Guidelines
form part of Sydney DCP 2012.

Food waste

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

The proposed amendments to Sydney DCP 2012 will introduce additional
requirements to provide space for separate food waste storage in non-residential
developments and single dwellings, but not multi-unit residential developments. This is
to ensure that these buildings have space to separate food waste for collection,
composting or worm farming.

The proposed Guidelines include separate generation rates for food waste for non-
residential developments and single dwellings, in addition to general waste and
recycling rates for all developments, to assist with designing adequate space
requirements.

In Leave nothing to waste - Managing resources in the City of Sydney area: Waste
strategy and action plan 2017-2030, the City has committed to introducing a separate
food waste collection to City properties and implementing a trial food waste collection
scheme for residents in multi-unit residential developments and single dwellings. A
pilot is planned to begin in financial year 2018-19 and, depending on the results of the
pilot, a Council-wide, voluntary participation rollout is planned.

For non-residential developments, references to organic waste have been updated to
food waste. Specifically, the existing Sydney DCP 2012 requirements to provide space
for organic waste storage within food preparation areas, on each floor, and in central
waste and recycling areas are clarified to refer to food waste. To reinforce this, the
proposed Guidelines now require dedicated space for collecting food waste within all
kitchens, office tearooms, service and food preparation areas.

Recent technology improvements in food waste storage, collection and processing, in
combination with the increasing costs of general waste service (due in part to
increases in the NSW Waste and Environment Levy), have resulted in many retail and
commercial premises already operating separate food waste collection. By clarifying
requirements to provide space for food waste separation at the point of generation (i.e.
in kitchens and food preparation areas), building tenants can more easily participate in
any food waste collection scheme and contribute to its efficiency.

13



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

67.

68.

69.

Requirements in the proposed Guidelines to allocate space for separate food waste
collection in non-residential development and single dwellings will support the City in
meeting its targets for both reducing waste to landfill and greenhouse gas emissions.
These targets are identified in Leave nothing to waste - Managing resources in the City
of Sydney area: Waste strategy and action plan 2017-2030 and the Environmental
Action 2016-2021 Strategy and Action Plan (the Environmental Action Plan).

In the Environmental Action Plan, a target of 70 per cent recovery of residential,
commercial and industrial waste is set for June 2021, which aligns with the NSW
Waste and Resource Recovery Strategy 2014-21. The Environmental Action Plan also
sets a more ambitious target of 90 per cent recovery for June 2030. Reducing barriers
to participation and supporting the increased use of separate food waste collection
programs will be crucial in meeting these targets.

The Environmental Action Plan recognises greenhouse gas emissions from waste
breaking down in landfill as an important component of the City's total greenhouse gas
emissions. Organic waste, including food waste, makes up a significant contribution to
greenhouse gas emissions, because it releases methane as it decomposes under the
anaerobic conditions of landfill. According to the most recent research from the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, methane is 34 times more potent than
carbon dioxide as a greenhouse gas. For these reasons, diverting food waste from
landfill is an effective way to reduce a large proportion of greenhouse gas emissions
from waste.

Bulky waste

70.

71.

72.

73.

Bulky waste consists of mattresses, furniture, whitegoods, large packaging, fitout
waste and other items that are too large to fit in a mobile garbage bin. While the City of
Sydney operates free weekly bulky waste collection for all residents, up to 4,000
tonnes of bulky waste is illegally dumped in the City of Sydney each year, representing
35 per cent of the waste managed by the City's cleansing and waste team.

To help prevent bulky waste being dumped, the DCP amendment and the proposed
Guidelines specify that adequate space be provided for storing bulky waste on-site.

A separate room of eight square metres for storing bulky waste within multi-unit
residential developments is an existing requirement in Sydney DCP 2012. The DCP
amendment allows more flexibility in how this space is provided, including as a
screened-off area within a waste and recycling area. The updated space requirements
are specified in the proposed Guidelines. They allow a minimum of four square metres
for residential buildings with 6-20 units, and additional space for larger buildings on a
sliding scale. The intent of this change is for the size of bulky waste storage areas to
more accurately reflect the number of residents in the building and for bulky waste
storage to be more visible and accessible to residents.

For non-residential buildings, a new requirement to provide space for bulky waste
storage is introduced in Sydney DCP 2012 and the proposed Guidelines. This
specifies minimum space requirements dependent on floor space and type of
development. By specifying size requirements for bulky waste storage in line with floor
space, this provision will help ensure storage space is sufficient to handle a
development's bulky waste generation.

14



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

Other changes

74.

75.

76.

The proposed Guidelines include other new provisions to facilitate better waste
management and source separation. They include providing space for textile
recycling/charity collection and storage for problem waste, such as light bulbs,
electronic waste, batteries and chemicals, in multi-unit residential developments, and
providing space for container deposit scheme (CDS) collection in non-residential
developments.

Minor changes regarding chutes in residential apartment buildings are proposed in the
DCP amendment and are detailed in the proposed Guidelines. The new requirements
allow more flexibility in how a building can provide access to waste and recycling
areas, and remove the requirement to provide chutes in buildings over three storeys.

These provisions will allow new developments to better respond to new opportunities
to separate specific waste streams and engage in more effective resource recovery
programs. In the case of CDS collection, it can provide a revenue stream for building
managers and businesses.

Stakeholder consultation

77.

78.

79.

The proposed Guidelines were reviewed and developed in conjunction with MRA
Consulting (a waste consultant) to incorporate recent waste data and research, as well
as the NSW EPA's Draft Better Waste Guidelines for New Developments and
feedback from key stakeholders.

In developing the proposed Guidelines, the City had preliminary consultation with the
Better Buildings Partnership, waste consultants, property managers and developers.
All parties are generally supportive of the new requirements, and relevant feedback
was incorporated.

Engagement on the proposed Guidelines extended to Sustainability Victoria who are
updating their Guide to Best Practice for Waste Management in Multi-unit
Developments. The Victorian guide will apply to all new development across Victoria.
Their industry stakeholder engagement sessions have highlighted the importance of
providing sufficient space at the building design stage for organics and other emerging
waste streams, such as e-waste and textile waste, as retrofitting for additional waste
separation needs in the future is difficult and costly.

Strategic Alignment - Sustainable Sydney 2030 Vision

80.

Sustainable Sydney 2030 is a vision for the sustainable development of the City to
2030 and beyond. It includes 10 strategic directions to guide the future of the City, as
well as 10 targets against which to measure progress. This DCP amendment is
aligned with the following strategic directions and objectives:

(a) Direction 2 provides a road map for the City to become A Leading Environmental
Performer - the amendment assists in meeting the City's targets that include
reducing greenhouse gas emissions across the City of Sydney.

(i)  Amendment 1 - the amendment will directly reduce greenhouse gas
emissions through more energy efficient building design in the commercial
office sector.

(i)  Amendment 3 - the amendment will reduce waste to landfill through

improved waste recovery, and reduce greenhouse gas emissions
associated with organic waste in landfill.

15



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

(b) Direction 9 - Sustainable Development, Renewal and Design - the proposed
amendments facilitate ecologically sustainable development by seeking to
manage the effects of development on the environment.

(i)  Amendment 1 - the amendment will directly reduce greenhouse gas
emissions through more energy efficient building design in the commercial
office sector.

(i)  Amendment 3 - the amendment and proposed Guidelines include new
development requirements for buildings to function better and promote
sustainability in relation to how tenants and residents manage their waste.

(c) Direction 10 - Implementation through Effective Governance and Partnerships -
the amendment allows for a more user-friendly document for the community,
proponents and Council.

Organisational Impact

81. One aim of the DCP amendments is to achieve greater clarity and consistency in the
application of the provisions. This can improve the process of assessment of
development applications.

Social / Cultural / Community

82. The proposed amendments will provide the community and proponents with clearer
and more robust development controls.

Amendment 3 - Waste

83. Proposed amendments will have positive benefits to the community by reducing illegal
dumping and improving public amenity. The amendments ensure that enough space is
provided, especially for larger buildings and non-residential developments, and help
ensure the space is more accessible and better able to be used by residents and
tenants.

Relevant Legislation

84. The Environmental Planning Assessment Act 1979 and the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Regulations 2000 outline the requirements for amending a
development control plan.

85. Building Energy Efficiency Disclosure Act 2010 (Commonwealth) establishes the
Commercial Building Disclosure program, and the Building Energy Efficiency Register.

86. The Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997 gives the Environment
Protection Authority (EPA) NSW its regulatory powers, setting out offences relating to
environmental damage, including littering, pollution and improper waste management.

87. The Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Act 2001 requires the EPA to develop
waste strategies that include targets for waste reduction, resource recovery and
diversion of waste from landfill disposal, and gives the EPA power to request councils
to report on their compliance with the current waste strategy. The City of Sydney’s
waste targets align with the NSW Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Strategy
2014-21, and Amendment 3 contains measures to meet these targets.

16



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

Critical Dates / Time Frames

88.

If Council approves the public exhibition of the DCP amendment and proposed
Guidelines, it is anticipated that the public exhibition will occur in the second quarter of
2018. All submissions received will be considered and the DCP amendment and
proposed Guidelines will be reported back to Council by the second half of 2018.

Public Consultation

89.

90.

91.

92.

The purpose of this report is to seek approval to publicly exhibit and seek community
input on the DCP amendment and proposed Guidelines for Waste Management in
New Developments. The DCP amendment and proposed Guidelines will be placed on
public exhibition for a minimum of 28 days in line with the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979 and the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation
2000.

The DCP amendment and proposed Guidelines will be advertised in local newspapers
and on the City's website and will be made available at neighbourhood centres for
inspection.

The City will review all submissions to the DCP amendment and the proposed
Guidelines and report the outcomes of the public exhibition and any post-exhibition
changes back to Council for final approval prior to formal adoption.

Council should note that although preliminary industry stakeholder discussions
occurred prior to this report, all industry stakeholders will have the opportunity to make
submissions.

GRAHAM JAHN, AM

Director City Planning, Development and Transport

Dustin Moore, Specialist Planner - Strategic (Sustainability)

Jarrod Booth, Student Planner

17



Attachment A

Proposed Sydney Development Control
Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
Development Control Plan 2012 — Energy

and Waste Amendment 2018

18




Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green
Square Town Centre Development Control Plan 2012 — Energy and
Waste Amendment 2018

Amend the section below by:
- inserting new text shown as underlined and deleted as strikethrough.

The following changes are proposed to Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green
Square Town Centre Development Control Plan 2012:

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012

Ecologically Sustainable Development

3.6 Ecologically Sustainable Development

This section sets out objectives and controls to provide a framework for the application of
ecologically sustainable development principles in the design, construction and operation of
buildings across Sydney local government area.

Council encourages all-applicants-to-implement-the-principles the application of ecologically
sustainable development principles i-the-propesed for all development. Implementing the
principles ef-ESDB means that the development will be designed and constructed so that it
complies with the following objectives:

a) Greenhouse gas emissions will be reduced.

b) The use of cogeneration and tri-generation systems will be increased.

c) Energy that is used will be renewable and low carbon.

d) Potable water use will be reduced.

e) Development can adapt to climate change.

f) Waste will be reduced.

g) Recycling of waste and use of products from recycled sources will be increased.

h) Indoor environmental quality will be improved.

i) The environmental impact from building materials will be reduced through reduction,
re-use and recycling of materials, resources and building components.

j) The biodiversity will be improved.

Section J of the Building Code of Australia alse contains mandatory requirements for the design
of building envelopes and fixtures to minimise energy use.

The Commonwealth Commercial Building Disclosure Program requires energy efficiency
information to be provided in most cases when commercial office space of 1,000 sgm or more is
offered for sale or lease. The aim is to improve the energy efficiency of Australia’s large office
buildings and to ensure prospective buyers and tenants are informed. The Commercial Building
Disclosure Program is an initiative of the Council of Australian Governments. It was established

Attachment A. Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
Development Control Plan 2012 — Energy and Waste Amendment 2018

19



by the Building Enerqy Efficiency Disclosure Act 2010 and is managed by the Australian
Government Department of the Environment and Enerqy.

In NSW, State Environmental Planning Policy (Building Sustainability Index: BASIX) 2004 (BASIX
SEPP) mandates provisions that aim to reduce consumption of mains-supplied potable water,
reduce emissions of greenhouse gases and improve thermal comfort in all residential
development. The BASIX SEPP sets the minimum standards that a development is to achieve.
The BASIX SEPP also mandates that a DCP cannot include provisions which require a
development to exceed its minimum standards. However, where voluntarily proposed, Council
encourages development to exceed minimum BASIX scores. QeemeJ—dees—net—Feqw;e-a

From time to time Council may provide guidelines or other relevant information that will assist
applicants to implement the principles of ecologically sustainable development ESB.

In the absence of comprehensive government standards and building rating tools which can be
used to assess the environmental performance of buildings, Council encourages applicants to
use an environmental building rating tool, such as Green Star or any similar rating tool, to
demonstrate the environmental performance of a proposed development.

Attachment A. Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
Development Control Plan 2012 — Energy and Waste Amendment 2018

20



Applicants should contact the operator of the rating tool, such as the Green Building Council of
Australia, if they wish to obtain a certified rating. Where an applicant voluntarily proposes
achieving a Green Star or other building tool rating Council will apply a condition of
development consent that requires the development to obtain the certified rating that was
nominated by the applicant.

3.6.1 Energy efficiency in non residential development

(1) Developmentis to be designed and constructed to reduce the need for active heating
and cooling by incorporating passive design measures including design, location and
thermal properties of glazing, natural ventilation, appropriate use of thermal mass and
external shading, including vegetation.

(2) Lighting for streets, parks and any other public domain spaces provided as part of a
development should be energy efficient lighting such as LED lighting.

(3) In multi-tenant or strata-subdivided developments, electricity sub-metering is to be
provided for lighting, air-conditioning and power within each tenancy or strata unit.
Locations are to be identified on the development plans.

(4) Electricity sub-metering is to be provided for significant end uses that will consume
more than 10,000 k\Wh/a.

(5) Car parking areas are to be designed and constructed so that electric vehicle
charging points can be installed at a later time.

(6) Where appropriate and possible, the development of the public domain should
include electric vehicle charging points or the capacity for electric vehicle charging
points to be installed at a later time.

(7) Applications for new developments containing office premises with a net lettable area
of 1,000sgm or more are to be submitted with documentation confirming that the
building will be capable of supporting a Base Building National Australian Built
Environment Rating System (NABERS) Energy Commitment Agreement of 5.5 stars
with the NSW Office and Environment Heritage. Such an agreement is to be entered
into prior to any construction certificate being issued for the approved development.

(8) Applications for developments involving alterations, additions and refurbishments to
existing office premises where the estimated cost of works is over $5 million, and
contains a net lettable area of 1,000sgm or more, are to be submitted with
documentation confirming that the building will be capable of supporting a Base
Building National Australian Built Environment Rating System (NABERS) Energy
Commitment Agreement of 5.5 stars with the NSW Office and Environment Heritage.
Such an agreement is to be entered into prior to any construction certificate being
issued for the approved development. Notwithstanding, a Base Building National
Australian Built Environment Rating System (NABERS) Energy Commitment
Agreement of 5.5 stars is not required where the consent authority is satisfied that:

(a) the upgrade works would negatively impact on significant heritage fabric or
the heritage significance of a listed heritage item, or

(b) the costs associated with the energy efficiency upgrade works are
unreasonable when compared to the overall estimated cost of works for the
alterations, additions and refurbishment.

Attachment A. Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
Development Control Plan 2012 — Energy and Waste Amendment 2018

21



(9) Any application which may impact on significant heritage fabric or the heritage
significance of a listed item is to be supported by a Heritage Impact Statement
prepared by an appropriately experienced heritage consultant.

(10) Where it is asserted that the costs are unreasonable under subclause (8)(b) the
development application is to be supported by a registered Quantity Surveyor's
detailed cost report itemising and verifying the cost of the required energy efficiency
upgrade works.

Attachment A. Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
Development Control Plan 2012 — Energy and Waste Amendment 2018

22



Transport and Parking

3.11.13 Design and location of waste collection points and loading areas

(1) Waste collection and loading is to be accommodated wholly within new development to

reduce noise impacts on surrounding residents, in-one-of-the-following-ways in order of

preference:

(a) in the building’s basement; or

(b) at grade within the building in a dedicated collection or loading bay; or

(c) at grade and off street within a safe vehicular circulation system where in all cases
vehicles will enter and exit the premises in a forward direction.

Consideration will only be given to less preferable options if the consent authority is
satisfied the preferred options are unreasonable.

(2) The waste collection and loading point is to be designed to:

(a) allow waste collection and loading operations to occur on a level surface away and
from vehicle ramps; and

(b) provide sufficient side and vertical clearance to allow the lifting arc for automated bin
lifters to remain clear of any walls or ceilings and all ducts, pipes and other services.

(3) Vehicle access for collection and loading will provide for:

(a) a 9.25m Council garbage truck and a small rigid delivery vehicle;

(b) minimum vertical clearance of 4.0 metres forresidential-developmentorelse
3.8metres clear of all ducts, pipes and other services, depending on the gradient of
the access and the type of collection vehicle;

(c) collection vehicles to be able to enter and exit the premises in a forward direction.
Where a vehicle turntable is necessary to meet this requirement, it is to have a
capacity of 30 tonnes;

(d) maximum grades of 1:20 for the first 6m from the street, then a maximum of 1:8 with
a transition of 1:12 for 4m at the lower end;

(e) a minimum driveway width of 3.6m; and

(f) a minimum turning circle radius of 10.5m.

(5) Where vehicle access is via a ramp, design requirements for the gradient, surface
treatment and curved sections are critical and must be analysed at an early stage in the
design process.

Attachment A. Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
Development Control Plan 2012 — Energy and Waste Amendment 2018

23



Waste

3.14 Waste

The City of Sydney’s Guidelines for Waste Management in New Developments (the
Guidelines) provide the minimum waste management requirements for all new and ‘change
of use’ developments requiring consent and are to be used in the design, management and
operation of a building’s waste and recycling systems. They include design and construction
specifications for waste storage areas, the typical dimensions of collection vehicles, what
streams need to be recovered in the design and operation and waste generation rates to
help calculate the number, size and type of bins required.

The purpose of the Guidelines is to ensure all new buildings will provide for the efficient
storage, separation, collection and handling of waste to maximise resource recovery and
provide safe and healthy spaces for people to live and work in.

Waste and Recycling Management Plans are to be prepared in accordance with the
Guidelines and the City’'s Waste Management Local Approvals Policy, which outlines how
waste and recycling must be managed, stored and collected in public places.

Objectives

(a) Reduce the amount of construction and demolition waste going to landfill.

(b) Reduce amount of waste generated in the operation of a development from going to
landfill and maximise resource recovery.

(c) Ensure waste from within developments can be collected and disposed in a manner that
is healthy, efficient, minimises disruption to amenity, and is conducive to the overall
minimisation of waste generated.

3.14.1 Waste and Recycling Management Plans

(1) A-waste-management-plan A Waste and Recycling Management Plan is to be submitted
with the Development Application and will be used to assess and monitor the waste

management-process-within-a-development management of waste and recycling during

construction and operational phases of the proposed development. The Waste and
Recycling Management Plan is to be consistent with the City-of-Sydney-Policy-forWaste

Attachment A. Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
Development Control Plan 2012 — Energy and Waste Amendment 2018

24



Minimisation-in-New-Developments-2005 City of Sydney Guidelines for Waste Management

in New Developments.

3.14.2 Construction and demolition waste

The Waste and Recycling Management Plan is to address construction and demolition
waste and include:

(a) details regarding how waste is to be minimised within a development;

(b) estimations of quantities and types of materials to be re-used or left over for removal
from the site;

(c) details regarding the types of waste and likely quantities of waste to be produced;

(d) a site plan showing storage areas away from public access for reusable materials
and recyclables during demolition and construction and the vehicle access to these
areas;

f) targets for recycllng and reuse;

g) nomination of the role/person responsible for ensuring targets are met and the
person responsible for retaining waste dockets from facilities appropriately licensed
to receive the development’s construction and demolition waste;

(h) confirmation that all waste going to landfill is not recyclable or hazardous; and

(i) measures to reuse or recycle at least 80% of construction and demolition waste,

either on site or diverted for reuse and recycling with receipts sufficient to

demonstrate the target will be achieved.

3.14.3 Collection and minimisation of waste during occupation

(1) The Waste and Recycling Management Plan is to address the generation of waste from
the occupants of the development and include:

a) plans and drawings of the proposed development that show:
i. the location and space allocated to the waste and recycling management
systems; facilities
ii. nominatien-of the nominated waste collection point/s for the site; and
iii. ldentification-of |dentify the path of access for users and collection vehicles.
b) details of the on-going management of the storage and collection of waste and
recycling, including responsibility for cleaning, transfer of bins between storage areas
and collection points, maintenance of signage, and security of storage areas; and
c) where appropriate to the nature of the development, a summary document for
tenants and residents to inform them of waste and recycling management
arrangements.
(2) Waste incineration devices are not permitted.

(3) Development is to include sufficient space in kitchens to separate food waste for
collection or compostable material and-other-areas-where-waste-might-be-generatedfor-the
separation-of- waste-into-recyclables;-waste-to-landfill-and-organies for composting or worm

farming.

Attachment A. Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
Development Control Plan 2012 — Energy and Waste Amendment 2018

25



(4) Development is to include a separate space in a room or screened area for the storage
and management of bulky waste (this can include furniture, mattresses and stripout waste)
and problem waste (this can include light bulbs and electronic waste) for recycling collection.

Attachment A. Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
Development Control Plan 2012 — Energy and Waste Amendment 2018

26



Residential Flat, Commercial Non-Residential and Mixed Use
Developments

4.2.6 Waste and recycling management minimisation

Refer to more detalled waste nd recycllng management controls in the C|ty of Sydney )

Gu:delmes for Waste Management in New Developments (the Gwdellnes) are to be

considered in conjunction with the City’'s Waste Management Local Approvals Policy, which
outlines how waste and recycling must be managed, stored and collected in public places.

Development must also comply with Section 3.14.1 Waste minimisation-plans and Recycling
Management Plans.

Objectives

(a) Ensure that each dwelling has adequate space to manage waste and recycling.

(b) Ensure that buildings provide appropriate facilities to manage waste and maximise
recovery of resources.

(c) Ensure that residential amenity is not impacted by waste systems and collection.

4.2.6.1 General
(1) Comply with the City of Sydney's Policy-for Waste-Minimisation-in-New-Developments

2005 Guidelines for Waste Management in New Developments

4.2.6.2 Residential flat buildings and serviced apartments

(1) A space is to be provided inside each dwelling for separate storage of at least ere two
day’s volume of general waste, recyclables and compostable materials.

(2) Provide a centralised waste and recycling reem storage area (s) near the collection point

with capacity to store all waste and recycling likely to be generated in the building in the
period between normal collection times.

(3) Provide a separate space such as a room or screened area (in a designated area or
room in or attached to the waste and recycling storage area) for the storage and recycling of
bulky waste, textile waste and problem waste for collection.

Attachment A. Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
Development Control Plan 2012 — Energy and Waste Amendment 2018

10
27


http://www.resource.nsw.gov/

(4) The maximum walking distance from any entrance of a residential dwelling to the waste
and recycling storage area is not to exceed 30 metres (lift travel distance not included) and
should be located close to lifts and/or stairwells.

(8 5) Space for composting and worm farming is to be available for all residents in a
communal facility or in small private courtyards. Composting facilities are to be sited on an
unpaved area with soil depth of at least 300mm.

(6) If a chute system is used, a dual chute system (two separate chutes, one for waste and
one for recycling) is to be constructed for buildings with more than nine storeys.

(7) If a chute system is used in buildings with nine or less storeys, a waste chute is required
plus space for recycling bins within chute rooms (at least two 240L recycling MGB per six
residences serviced by that chute). A recycling chute is not required.

(8) A chute room is required on each habitable floor that has a chute system. The chute
room is to be designed in accordance with Section B in the Guidelines for Waste
Management in New Developments

(# 9) Minimise noise from the operation of the waste and recycling management system to
residential units by:

(a) locating chutes away from habitable rooms, and

(b) provide acoustic insulation to the waste service facilities or residential units adjacent
to or above chutes, waste storage facilities, chute discharge, waste compaction
equipment and waste collection vehicle access points.

4.2.6.3 Additional provisions for mixed use developments

(1) The waste handling, storage and collection systems for residential and commerecial non-
residential waste are to be completely separate and self-contained, this includes separate
keys and locking systems.

(2) Provide easy access from each central waste and recycling storage area to the
nominated collection point.

(3) The Waste Management and Recycling Plan is required to separately identify the
collection points and management systems for both residential and commereial non-
residential waste streams.

(4) Demonstrate that noise and odour from the commercial non-residential waste facility and
recycling management system does not impact on residents other occupants within the

development.
(5) The design and management of the waste and recycling management system is to

physically and actively discourage eemmereial non-residential tenants from using residential
waste and recycling systems facilities.

Attachment A. Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
Development Control Plan 2012 — Energy and Waste Amendment 2018

11
28



4.2.6.4 Additional provisions for non-residential developments

(8 1) Provide a waste service compartment or a waste and recycling area on each floor of
the building with sufficient capacity to store at least ene two day’s volume of waste and
recycling.

(2) Storage facilities for separating waste, such as paper, cardboard, containers and erganic
food waste on each floor and in the centralised waste storage area, are to be included in all
commereial non-residential developments and indicated on the plans. The storage of paper
and cardboard is to be in a dry, vermin proof area.

(# 3)Kitchens, office tearooms, service and food preparation areas are to be designed with
sufficient space for the interim storage of reeyclable; recycling, erganic food and regular
general waste in separate receptacles and is to be indicated on plans.

(4) Provide a dedicated space for storing bulky waste and problem waste for recycling as
appropriate but no less than:

(a) 2m2 for developments under 100m?

(b) 4m? for developments between 100m? and 2,000m?

(c) An additional 4m? is required for each retail, accommodation or entertainment
development over 2,000 m? and for every 20,000 m? of office space.

(3 5) Where communal composting areas are proposed, it is preferred they are managed by
a gardener or caretaker and located:

(a) in an accessible and visible area to increase awareness and so that it is well
maintained;

(b) away from with dwellings on site and on adjacent properties, so they are not affected
by potential odours; and

(c) so that potential run-off is away from site drainage points.

(4 6) Waste and recycling storage facilities are to be easily accessible to building occupants
and removal vehicles and of a sufficient size and capacity to service the building.

(5 7) Screen storage facilities from any public place or adjoining property.

(7) In addition to the standard provision for wastes and recyclables, premises are to allocate
sufficient space for the separate storage of:

(b) reusable items such as crates, pallets, kegs so that storage in a public place is
avoided; and

(c) liquid wastes such as oils with storage areas bunded, and drained to a grease trap, in
accordance with the requirements of Sydney-Water state government authorities and

agencies.

Attachment A. Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
Development Control Plan 2012 — Energy and Waste Amendment 2018

12
29



(40 8) If more than 10m cubic metres of uncompacted waste and recycling is likely to be
generated per day the central waste and recycling room is to be separate from the goods
receiving dock and waste is to be collected in a compaction unit.

(9) For specific premise types refer to Section D in the Guidelines for Waste Management in
New Developments for additional provisions.

Attachment A. Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
Development Control Plan 2012 — Energy and Waste Amendment 2018

13
30



Green Square Town Centre Development Control Plan 2012

Ecologically Sustainable Development

GSTC 8.2.1 Energy efficiency in non residential developments

(1) Applications for new developments containing office premises with a net lettable area
of 1,000sgm or more are to be submitted with documentation confirming that the
building will be capable of supporting a Base Building National Australian Built
Environment Rating System (NABERS) Energy Commitment Agreement of 5.5 stars
with the NSW Office and Environment Heritage. Such an agreement is to be entered
into prior to any construction certificate being issued for the approved development.

(2) Applications for developments involving alterations, additions and refurbishments to
existing office premises where the estimated cost of works is over $5 million, and
contains a net lettable area of 1,000sgm or more, are to be submitted with
documentation confirming that the building will be capable of supporting a Base
Building National Australian Built Environment Rating System (NABERS) Energy
Commitment Agreement of 5.5 stars with the NSW Office and Environment Heritage.
Such an agreement is to be entered into prior to any construction certificate being
issued for the approved development.

Attachment A. Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square Town Centre
Development Control Plan 2012 — Energy and Waste Amendment 2018

14
31



Attachment B

Summary Table of Amendments

32




SUMMARY TABLE OF AMENDMENTS

DRAFT AMENDMENTS TO TEXT — SYDNEY DCP 2012

Reference to DCP Provisions

Proposed change and rationale

Ecologically Sustainable Development

Section 3.6 Ecologically Sustainable
Development

Amendment to Section 3.6 to include new
introductory text which identifies the

purpose of the section, and rearranging of
paragraph order for a more coherent logic.

Amendment to the Australian Government's
Commercial Building Disclosure Program's
current mandatory disclosure threshold.
The existing threshold reference is out of
date.

Deletion of references to Master Plans
which are no longer applicable.

Provision 3.6.1 Energy efficiency in non
residential developments

Insertion of new provision to meet the
objectives of Sustainable Sydney 2030 and
Environmental Action 2016-2021 Strategy &
Action Plan.

The provision introduces a requirement for
new commercial office buildings, and major
commercial office refurbishments, of 1,000
square metres or more to enter into a Base
Building National Australian Built
Environment Rating Scheme (NABERS)
Energy Commitment Agreement of 5.5 star.

Transport and Parking

Provision 3.11.13 Design and location of
waste collection points and loading areas

Amendment to provision (1) options for
accommodating waste collection and
loading within new development to refer
specifically to the priority of reducing noise
impacts on surrounding residents. This was
previously implicit, and reinforced by
provision (4).

Deletion of provision (4), as the above
amendment makes the provision
redundant.

Amendment of provision (3) to extend the
minimum vertical clearance to 4.0 metres
for all developments, not just residential

Attachment B. Summary table of amendments

33



and remove ‘for residential development or
else 3.8m’ from vertical minimum clearance.

Waste

Section 3.14 Waste

Amendment to introductory text to replace
references to the Policy for Waste
Minimisation in New Developments 2005
with the Guidelines for Waste Management
in New Developments.

Amendment to text to explain in more detail
the purpose of the controls and the role of
Waste and Recycling Management Plans.

Amendment to objectives to emphasise
maximising the recovery of resources.
Previously the objectives only referenced
managing waste.

Provision 3.14.1 Waste management plans

Amendment to heading and text to
reference new ‘Waste and Recycling
Management Plans’ as per the new
Guidelines for Waste Management in New
Developments.

Provision 3.14.2 Construction and
demolition waste

Deletion of (e) ‘details of reusing or
recycling methods for waste either on-site
or off-site’.

Removed as provision (i) is similar, clearer
and more specific ‘measures to reuse or
recycle at least 80% of construction and
demolition waste, either on-site or diverted
for reuse and recycling with receipts
sufficient to demonstrate the target will be
achieved'.

Provision 3.14.3 Collection and
minimisation of waste during occupation

Provision to include a separate space for
bulky waste, problem waste and food waste
storage is introduced to reinforce similar
provisions in section 4.2.6.

Provision to include a separate space for
organics has been replaced with 'food
waste for collection or compostable material
for composting and worm farming'. The
replacement reinforces similar provisions in
section 4.2.6.

Attachment B. Summary table of amendments

34



Provision to include space in kitchens for
waste separation is removed to avoid
conflicts with provisions in section 4.2.6.

Residential Flat, Commercial and Mixed Use Developments

Provision 4.2.6 Waste minimisation

Amendment to heading to read ‘Waste and
recycling management’ and updating the
introduction to reference the new
Guidelines for Waste Management in New
Developments and Waste and Recycling
Management Plans.

Amendment to objectives to emphasise
recycling and recovery of resources.
Previously the objectives only referenced
managing waste. This reflects the role of
design to facilitate improved source
separation and resource recovery.

Provision 4.2.6.1 General

Updated to refer to the Guidelines for
Waste Management in New Developments.

Provision 4.2.6.2 Residential flat buildings
and serviced apartments

Amendment to volume of waste to be
accommodated within each dwelling, from
one day to two day’s volume. This is to
better reflect real world behaviour.

Minor amendment to provision (1) to
replace the reference to compostable
materials with compostable material to
provide consistency with the Guidelines.

Amendment to bulky waste storage space.
Removes eight square metre requirement
which is replaced by a graduated space
requirement starting at four square metres
in the Guidelines. It is more appropriate for
the high level of detail to be in the
Guidelines rather than Sydney DCP 2012.

Clarification to how bulky waste storage
space can be provided, and amendment to
ensure the space is in, or attached to, a
waste and recycling area. This is to prevent
a bulky waste storage area being provided
elsewhere in the building unrelated to the
waste and recycling area.

Attachment B. Summary table of amendments

35



Amendment to include textile waste and
problem waste space requirements within
bulky waste storage area.

Amendment to requirements regarding
chutes. Removes requirement to provide
chutes in buildings with more than three
storeys, changes distance between
dwellings to collection point from 40 metres
to 30 metres, clarifies that this distance
does not include lift travel.

Amendments to requirements regarding
chutes, requiring a dual chute for separate
general waste and recycling for buildings
with more than nine storeys, and to provide
a chute room on each floor.

Provision 4.2.6.3 Additional provisions for
mixed use developments

Minor amendment to reference non-
residential premises rather than
commercial. This is to provide consistency
with provision 4.2.6.4 and to reduce
confusion over what type of premises
requires private waste collection.

Provision 4.2.6.4 Additional provisions for
non-residential developments

Amendment to the volume of waste and
recycling storage on each floor of a building
from one day’s generation to two days’.
This is to better reflect real world behaviour.

Minor amendments to replace references to
commercial premises with non-residential.

Minor amendments to replace references to
organic waste storage with food waste. This
is to improve clarity and reinforce food
waste separation and collection. This also
provides more consistency with the
Guidelines.

Provision (4) to include minimum storage
space size requirements for bulky and
problem waste to ensure sufficient space is
allocated based on size and type of
development.

Removal of provision (6) regarding
recommendations about the waste
contracts that non-residential premises
should hold. This requirement is not

Attachment B. Summary table of amendments

36



enforceable by Council through the DCP or
otherwise. The Guidelines provide more
detail and guidance about the types of
waste services available to non-residential
premises.

Removal of provision (7a), regarding
allocating space for storage of recyclable
electronic goods, as this is captured by the
new bulky and problem waste provision (4).

Amendment to move requirements in
provision (9) regarding the storage of
cardboard into provision (2). This makes the
requirements more concise and easy to
read.

Minor amendment to replace a reference to
Sydney Water with state government
authorities and agencies.

Provision to refer to the Guidelines for
additional provisions for specific premises.

Attachment B. Summary table of amendments

37



DRAFT AMENDMENTS TO TEXT - GREEN SQUARE TOWN CENTRE DCP 2012

Reference to DCP Provisions Proposed change and rationale

Environmental Management

Provision GSTC 8.2.1 Energy efficiency in Insertion of new provision to meet the

non residential developments objectives of Sustainable Sydney 2030 and
Environmental Action 2016-2021 Strategy &
Action Plan.

The provisions introduces a requirement for
new commercial office buildings, and major
commercial office refurbishments, of 1,000
square metres or more to enter into a Base
Building National Australian Built
Environment Rating Scheme (NABERS)
Energy Commitment Agreement of 5.5 star.

Attachment B. Summary table of amendments

38



Attachment C

Proposed Guidelines for Waste
Management in New Developments

39




PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

40



Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected I}IW[IDFSY"NEY@ @

Guidelines for

Waste Management
in new developments

ity of vellages



Cover Image: Archibald Avenue, Wate

Above Image: Garbage truck, City O, e: Brendan Read




Sections

References

Appendix — Waste and Recycling Management Plan forms
A
B
C




Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

01
Introduction

Purpose

The City of Sydney’s Guidelines for Waste Management in
New Developments (the Guidelines) promote the efficient
storage, separation, collection and handling of waste to
maximise resource recovery and provide safe and healthy
spaces for people to live and work in.

The Guidelines provide the minimum waste management
requirements for all development and for completing
Waste and Recycling Management Plans for Development
Applications (DAS).

All new developments that will generate demolition,
construction and operational waste are required to submit a
Waste and Recycling Management Plan. Operational waste
is waste generated by occupants of developments as part
of typical occupancy and use.

Context

The City of Sydney is committed to environmental
leadership. The City’s Sustainable Sydney 2030 —
Community Strategic Plan 2017-2021 and Environmental
Action 2016-2021 — Strategy and Action Plan set bold
targets, including a long-term goal of zero waste to landfill.

The City’s Leave nothing to waste — Managing resources

in the City of Sydney area: Waste strategy and action plan
2017-2030 focuses on managing Sydney’s resources to
2030 by setting clear targets and recommendations to
maximise diversion from landfill. It sets out priority areas
that will integrate sustainable resource management within
a dynamic and developing urban environment.

One priority area is sustainable design. The City is
committed to focusing on sustainable waste management
in new developments and these should provide safe and
convenient facilities for residents and workers to store
recyclables and unwanted waste items for collection and
recovery.

The Guidelines are integral in ensuring the City’'s new
buildings maximise resource recovery opportunities through
smart, innovative and sustainable design.

44

Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Introduction

How to be rewarded

for recyclin

Our Targets

Targets for our residents
» Todivert 70 per cent of waste (with a minimum of 35 per cent as source-separated recycling) away from landfill

Targets for our operations

* To divert 50 per cent of waste from City parks, streets, and public places away from landfill

» Todivert 70 per cent of waste from City-managed properties away from landfill

* To divert 80 per cent of construction and demolition waste, generated and managed by City operations, away from landfill

Targets for our businesses
* Todivert 70 per cent of waste from operating businesses in the local government area away from landfill
* To divert 80 per cent of waste from construction and demolition activities in the local government area away from landfill

Targets for our residents
* To divert 90 per cent of waste (with a minimum of 35 per cent as source-separated recycling) from landfill

Targets for our operations

* To divert 90 per cent of waste from City parks, streets, and public places from landfill

* Todivert 90 per cent of waste from City-managed properties from landfill

* To divert 90 per cent of waste from construction and demolition, generated and managed by City operations, from landfill

Targets for our businesses
» Todivert 90 per cent of waste from operating businesses in the local government area from landfill
» To divert 90 per cent of waste from construction and demolition activities in the local government area from landfill

Where and when do the guidelines apply?

The Guidelines apply to all development within the City
of Sydney local government area. The Guidelines were
approved by the City of Sydney Council (the Council) on
XXXX.

45 5
Sydney2030/



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

02
How to use
the guidelines

The Guidelines should be used by architects, designers,
developers, planners, waste consultants, builders, building
managers and those involved with the construction, design,
management and operation of a building’s waste and
recycling systems.

The Guidelines also assist with those developments
required to prepare a Waste and Recycling Management
Plan in accordance with the Apartment Design Guide.

The Guidelines are divided into general and individual
sections based on development type. Individual sections
set out the provisions specific to that type of development
for operational waste management. The criteria in each
section relevant to the development being proposed should
be reviewed and applied as required.

Each section sets out provisions for waste management for
development types in relation to:

Space - to allocate sufficient areas within developments
for the efficient access, storage and collection of waste and
recycling

Access — to ensure waste systems are easy to use and that
collection vehicles are able to access buildings to remove
waste safely and efficiently

Amenity — to maintain a visually appealing streetscape and
minimise the impacts of noise and odour from waste and
recycling handling on building occupants, near neighbours
and the local area

Safety - to ensure safe practices for storage, handling and
collection of waste and recycling

Services — to provide guidance on the Council’s
expectations for delivering effective waste services
including bin handling and collection points, and managing
bulky, problem waste and stripout waste

Management — to ensure clarity regarding the roles
providing waste management systems for developments
and to demarcate service provision

A final section specifies the requirements for managing
demolition and construction waste from new and change-
of-use developments.

46

Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



How to use the guidelines

Reference section Supporting resources

The References section contains technical information Applicants may also make reference to the following

that is to be used to inform the design, management and documents that provide additional guidance for

operation of a building’s waste and recycling systems. developments to achieve best practice in waste and

It includes specific waste generation rates, Council’s recycling management. (Note: any future iterations of these
waste services, collection truck information, construction documents will supersede older versions).

requirements, food waste recycling options, and

. : * NSW EPA, Better Practice Guide for Waste Management
comparative waste storage and collection systems.

in Multi-unit Dwellings, 2008

Waste Generation Rates * NSW EPA, Better Practice Guidelines for Waste
The waste generation rates for specific premises should be Management and Recycling in Commercial and Industrial

used to calculate the waste and recycling storage space Facilties, 2013

required where there is no existing or previous data on * NSW, State Environmental Planning Policy No 65—
the operational waste data for the development. These Design Quality of Residential Flat Development, 2017
calculations and other information as specified can be used

in the completion of the Waste and Recycling Management

Plans provided in the Appendix.

Waste management local approvals policy

The Guidelines are to be considered in conjunction with
the City’'s Waste Management Local Approvals Policy

which outlines how waste and recycling is to be managed,
stored and collected in public places. Waste and Recycling
Management Plans are to adhere to this policy, which can
be found at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.

47 7?
Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

ity recycliné station in S|

Waste and Recycling Management Plan
process

A Waste and Recycling Management Plan is to be
submitted with all development applications for new
and change-of-use developments that will generate
construction, demolition and operational waste.

Development applications for change-of-use are to address
the adjustment of waste management requirements on

the basis of these Guidelines to suit the proposed new
development type.

Waste and Recycling Management Plan forms are provided
at the end of this document.

Applicants need to complete these forms in accordance
with the requirements included in these Guidelines and
are to provide the following information in the Waste and
Recycling Management Plan:

1 Plans and drawings of the proposed development that
show the location and space allocated to the waste
management systems and facilities and the nominated
waste collection point for the site.

2 Details of the types and estimated quantities of waste
streams.

3 Identification of the path of access for users and
collection vehicles.

4 Details of ongoing management, storage and collection
of waste, including responsibility for cleaning, transfer
of bins between storage areas and collection points,
implementation and maintenance of signage, and
security of storage areas.

5 Where appropriate to the nature of the development, a
summary document for tenants and residents to inform
them of the building’s waste management arrangements.

6 Details of the handling of construction, demolition and
ongoing waste outputs of the development.

The completed Waste and Recycling Management Plans,
including drawings submitted by the applicant, will be
used in the Council assessment of the waste management
provisions for the new development.

Please note that inaccurate or incomplete Waste and
Recycling Management Plans can delay development
approval decisions.

For all residential, non-residential and mixed use
developments with a construction value greater than

$5 million, a Waste and Recycling Management Plan is

to be prepared by a suitably qualified waste consultant
experienced in the appropriate management of waste and
recycling generated by new or upgraded developments.

Assessment and approval

The Guidelines are to be used when developing a Waste
and Recycling Management Plan throughout the following
planning approval stages:

Pre Lodgement
Advice

Occupation

Submit DA Certificate

48

Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



How to use the guidelines

Pre-lodgement advice

You may contact Council’s customer service, planners or
waste staff prior to the lodgment of a plan with questions
about the requirements contained in these Guidelines. For
larger developments, a pre-lodgment meeting to discuss
the proposed Waste and Recycling Management Plan is
recommended.

Submission of development application

All physical elements of the Waste and Recycling
Management Plan is to be detailed on the DA plans for
assessment.

The Waste and Recycling Management Plan will form
part of the DA application and will be assessed as part of
the development assessment process. Key performance
criteria for the assessment of Waste and Recycling
Management Plans will include:

* Waste storage facilities are designed to minimise
impacts on the streetscape, building entry and
amenity of residents and tenants

* The recovery of waste is maximised by providing
safe, convenient and appropriate space for source
separation and recycling

* Waste is separated for maximum recycling

Sydney2030/

'p % i.&

MIXED
RECYCLING

T 2

Occupation certificate

For all developments with a residential component,

the Council needs to approve the constructed waste
management facilities prior to issuing the occupation
certificate, and a condition of consent will also be required.

For non-residential developments, the certifying authority is
to certify that the constructed waste management facilities
conforms to the approved waste management system as
set out in the Waste and Recycling Management Plan.



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Seclion A
General
requirements

This section sets out the Waste and recycling storage areas
requirements for all development 1.1 All waste and recycling is to be wholly located in a
types exc|uding residential single dedicated room or storage area. Provide adequate

capacity for storing all the waste and recycling likely

dwelllngs. It is to be read in to be generated between collection cycles, based on

conjunction with the requirements for expected waste generation and selected bin types.
the specific development types that Accommodate likely peak demand for waste storage
are set out in the sections that follow. capacity. Indicative waste and recycling generation

rates for residential and various non-residential
sector premises are listed in the Waste and Recycling
Generation Rates reference section.

1.2 Storage areas should reflect the equipment,
infrastructure, maneuvering space and potential future
needs of the development.

1.3 The storage area(s) is to be detailed on DA plans and
drawings submitted to Council.

1.4 More than one storage area may be required in order
to provide sufficient storage or to meet criteria for the
access and transfer of waste and recycling.

1.5 Waste and recycling areas are to be located in a
position that is convenient for both users and waste
collection staff and that promotes source separation
and reduces contamination.

10 "
Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Section A

A :
at Bay Street Depa ltimo / ImagesDamian Shaw

1.6 Thelayout of the storags area isto be designed to ikl
encourage easy recycling and separation of different Space for waste not suitable for bins
waste types by all users. Many businesses and residents need to dispose
1.7 Storage areas are to be provided within the premises of items that do not fit within standard collection
in reasonable proximity to the vehicle entrance, and no bins. Allocation of space at the design stage for
lower than one level below street level. improved source-separated recycling adds flexibility
in buildings to handle these items.
1.8 Storage areas are not to be located adjacent to a

habitable room.

Refurbishment waste and other bulky items are

a regular addition to the waste collected within

the City and space to store these for collection is
required. Mattresses and e-waste are a significant
feature of residential waste that can be recycled if
collected separately. ltems such as batteries, mobile
phones and fluorescent lights can be harmful to the
environment if not collected separately for recovery.

Many business premises rely on transport packaging
for products, such as kegs, pallets, crates and
boxes. It is important to provide an opportunity for
interim storage of these re-usable items to minimise
breakage and loss, to reduce reliance on single-use
packaging, and to minimise waste, litter and the use
of natural resources.

.......................................................................................

51 ﬂﬂ

Sydney2030/



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Space for bulky, problem, food waste and
compostable material

2.1

2.2

2.3

Separate dedicated space such as a room or
screened area (in or attached to the waste and
recycling storage area) is to also be provided for the
storage and recycling of bulky waste and problem
waste for collection (refer to relevant sections for
specific size requirements according to development
type.)

A caged section is to be provided for gas bottle
disposal within this dedicated space.

Food waste and compostable material management
options can include providing space for:

2.4.1 Composting and worm farming, on an unpaved
earth surface or within a bunded and drained
area, for developments with external space or in
private courtyards that is to be managed by the
development.

2.4.2 On-site food waste processing system (refer to
reference section Management and treatment of
food waste).

12

.......................................................................................

What is bulky and problem waste?

Bulky waste are those recyclable items too large to
fit into bins and includes furniture, cardboard boxes,
whitegoods, electronics and mattresses.

Problem wastes are hazardous items that are not
permitted in the general waste bin. This include
paints, chemicals, batteries, light bulbs, gas bottles,
motor and cooking oils which can be recycled if
separately collected and managed.

52
Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Section A

Waste and recycling collection points

A waste and recycling collection point is the designated
position or area where waste or recyclables are loaded
onto the collection vehicle.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

The collection point is to be level, free of obstructions
and with sufficient height clearance to enable the safe
mechanical pick up and set down of bins.

The location of the proposed waste and recycling
collection point(s) is to be detailed on the DA plans.
Collection points for residential and non-residential
loads may be shared.

Collection and vehicle access points are not to be
located adjacent to a habitable room.

Residential developments are to provide on-site
collection of waste, recycling and bulky items by
Council vehicles. Waste collection and loading is to
be accommodated within new developments in one
of the following ways to reduce noise impacts on
surrounding residents, in order of preference:

* |nthe building’s basement

* At grade within the building in a dedicated
collection or loading bay

* At grade and off-street within a safe vehicular
circulation system where, in all cases, vehicles will
enter and exit the premises in a forward direction

Sydney2030/

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

53

~ Business waste recycling at Liberty Place /Image: Jamie Williams

Residential waste from developments with six
residential units or less are permitted to have kerbside
collection in the following circumstances:

* Where the space required for presentation at kerb
does not exceed one-third of the width of the
property frontage

*  Where collection activity does not create an
obstruction of the pathway or roadway or cause an
illegal hazard

*  Where the collection point is to be located so as to
minimise the impacts from noise and odour during
collection

*  Where collection complies with the City’s Waste
Management Local Approvals Policy

All collection of non-residential waste is to be
conducted on-site. Consideration will be given to
smaller developments where this is not possible.

All externally located on-site collection points are to
be constructed within 15 metres from the property
boundary at which access is provided for collectors.

The following allowances are to be made for the
nominated collection point:

* Vehicle access for collection and loading will
provide for a maximum grade of 1:20 for the first 6
metres from the street, then a maximum of 1:8 with
a transition of 1:12 for 4 metres at the lower end

* A minimum vertical clearance of 4 metres, including
clearances of all ducts, pipes and other services

* A minimum width of driveway of 3.6 metres

e A minimum turning circle radius of 10.5 metres
or provision for changing the facing direction of a
waste or recycling collection vehicle.



ndan Read

Garbage truck, City Operations Waste & Cleansing /|

3.9 Each collection point is to be easily accessible from
the nominated waste and recycling storage area. The
access pathway for wheeling bins between a storage
point and the collection point is to be level and free
of steps or kerbs. The maximum manual handling
distance between the storage point and the collection
point for bins is:

e 10 metres for bins including 120L, 240L, 660L and
1,100L Mobile Garbage Bins (MGBs)

e 3 metres for 1,500L and 2,000L bulk bins

Any proposed variations require further assessment
and discussion with relevant Council officers.

3.10 The path for wheeling bins between a storage point
and the collection point is not to exceed a grade of
1:14 at any point.

3.11 The collection point is to be located where the waste
or recycling collection vehicle(s) can stand safely.

3.12 Entry and exit of a collection vehicle from a site is
to be in a forward direction. It is acceptable to use
a vehicle turntable to accomplish this. If a vehicle
turntable is used, it is to have a 30-tonne capacity.

3.13 Collection vehicles are to be able to service the
development with minimal reversing. If a collection
vehicle needs to reverse to complete a collection run,
this needs to be detailed in the development’s traffic
management plan.

3.14 Waste and recycling storage containers are to
be stored at all times within the boundary of the
development.

14

oee

cee

54

....................................................................................

Internal waste collection points

The City of Sydney has a population density of over
5,000 persons per square kilometre. To ensure the
City’s streets are safe, uncluttered and welcoming,
it is not feasible for all bins to be presented on the
street front for collection.

The Guidelines set out the required clearances

for collection vehicle access to buildings, and the
options for secure residential and non-residential
internal waste and recycling storage rooms. These
requirements will allow standard waste and recycling
collection to proceed on-site without obstruction or
loss of amenity, improving the quality of the City’s
public spaces.

....................................................................................

Forward travel collection

Standard collection vehicles are almost 10 metres
long and weigh over 20 tonnes when loaded. The
width of these vehicles impedes rear vision. Such
vehicles are not suited to maneuvers requiring
major reversing or multiple-point turns. Such driving
maneuvers are a common source of accidents
involving large collection vehicles, and can be
avoided through improved design of collection point
access. These Guidelines set out practical solutions
to allow forward movement of a vehicle to collect
waste. Forward truck movement improves the safety
and efficiency of waste and recycling collection.

....................................................................................

Sydney2030/



Section A

Management

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Responsibility for regular cleaning of waste and
recycling storage areas (including MGBs) and transfer
of bins rests with the managing body and is to be
detailed in the Waste and Recycling Management
Plan.

Standard signage on how to use the waste
management system for residential dwellings and
what materials are acceptable in the recycling is to

be posted in all waste and recycling storage areas,
including chute rooms. Signage indicating acceptable
materials that are suitable for residential dwellings is
available from Council.

All waste and recycling storage areas, chute rooms
and access paths are to be kept clean and free of
obstructions at all times.

All storage containers for waste and recycling are to
be kept in serviceable condition and at the agreed bin
numbers at all times. Bin cleaning will be conducted
on a regular basis by the managing body.

‘DANGER’ warning signs and other appropriate
Workplace Health and Safety (WHS) signage are to be
prominently displayed at any point of entry to an area
of waste chute discharge, or where balers, crushers or
compactors operate.

A Domestic Waste Management Charge will be levied
by Council on every residential rateable property.
Current waste service charges are as listed on
Council’s Schedule of Fees and Charges at www.
cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.

Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected

/,.15.

The Elan Apa';tmen.ls, 1 Kings Cross Road, Darlinghurst / Image: Kathe

Bin requirements

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

All waste and recycling containers are to be clearly
and correctly labelled to identify which materials are
to be placed into which container. Mobile Garbage
Bins (MGBs) will be designed and colour-coded in
accordance with the Australian Standard 4123: Mobile
Garbage Containers.

Waste and recycling containers will have a fixed tight-
fitting lid and a smooth, washable internal surface.

All residential waste and recycling awaiting collection
is to be stored in the largest suitable Council-
approved container (such as a MGB up to 1100L
capacity), the details of which are outlined in the
Council Residential Waste and Recycling Services
reference section.

Non-residential waste collection containers are to
display contractor information in accordance with the
provisions in the Council’s Waste Management Local
Approvals Policy.

Other

6.1
6.2

6.3

55

No waste incineration devices are permitted.

All waste and recycling systems are to comply with the
Building Code of Australia and all relevant Australian
Standards.

Heritage conservation considerations may alter some
requirements of the Guidelines for the refurbishment of
an existing building on agreement with Council.

15



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Secion B

Multi-unit residential

developments

This section details the waste and
recycling requirements for residential
developments with shared waste and
recycling bins. Applicants should
also apply the waste management
criteria set out in the Apartment
Design Guide [note: multi-unit
residential developments are
residential flat buildings].

16

The City’s target is to divert 70 per cent of
residential waste from landfill (with a minimum

of 35 per cent as source-separated recycling) by
June 2021

Space within each residence

1.1 Space is to be allocated inside each residence for
the storage of at least two day’s generation of waste
and recycling (refer to reference section Waste and
Recycling Generation Rates).

Waste and recycling storage area

2.1 The waste and recycling storage area is to provide
space for waste and recycling Mobile Garbage Bins
(MGBs), bulky waste, problem waste and textile waste.

2.2 Alockable cage, designated screened area or room in
or attached to the storage area is to be dedicated for
bulky waste and problem waste. The space should be
appropriate with the minimum being:

2.2.1 Between 6 and 20 units: a minimum of 4 m?
total space.

2.2.2 Between 21 and 40 units: a minimum size of 4
m? + 1 m? for every 10 additional units above
20 units (or part thereof).

2.2.3 Between 41 and 100 units: a minimum size of
8 m? + 1 m? per 20 additional units (or part
thereof) above 40 units.

56

Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



2.3

2.4

25

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.2.4 Over 101 units: a minimum of 12 m? + 1 m?
per 50 additional units above 100 units (or part
thereof).

Additional space is required for recycling textile waste
such as a clothes bin. The size required is 1 m? per
50 units to a maximum 2 m?, with more frequent
collections for developments with over 101 units. This
space should be in or attached to the storage area.

Waste storage areas are to be easily accessible by
the residents of the development, designed to be
conveniently used by residents and are to provide
access for all residents in accordance with the
Council’s Access Policy.

The maximum walking distance from any entrance of
a residential dwelling to the storage area should not
exceed 30 metres (lift travel distance not included)
and should be located close to lifts and/or stairwells.

Waste storage areas are to be located so as to
minimise odour and noise.

The design requirements of the waste storage area are
found in the reference section Waste and Recycling
Storage Area construction.

If the storage area is in a secure street-level holding
area, a Council-approved key system will be required
where necessary to allow access by collection staff.
Liaison with Council’s Cleansing and Waste Services
Unit will be needed to install this system prior to an
Occupation Certificate being issued. All costs for this
are to be borne by the property management.

Chute systems

3.1

3.2

3.3

If a chute system is used, a dual-chute system (two
separate chutes, one for waste and one for recycling)
is to be constructed for buildings with more than nine
storeys.

If a chute system is used in buildings with less than
nine storeys, a waste chute is required plus space for
recycling bins within chute rooms (at least one 240L
MGB per six residences serviced by that chute). A
recycling chute is not required.

Chutes are to be provided with an opening on each
floor, designed to be used by all residents and
enclosed within a chute room. Chutes are not to open
onto any habitable space and chute openings are to
have an effective self-sealing system.

Sydney2030/

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Chutes are to terminate in a waste and recycling
storage area and discharge directly into a waste or
recycling container in a manner designed to avoid
spillage and overflow. Protective skirting between
chute and containers is permitted to prevent spillage
and minimise dust or spray.

For safety reasons, residents are not to be able to
access the area where the chute discharges.

The total maximum travel distance from any residential
dwelling entry to a chute system on any given storey
is not to exceed 30 metres. Additional chutes may

be required for buildings in order not to exceed the
maximum travel distance.

Please refer to the reference section Waste chutes,
compactors, balers and crushers for technical
requirements.

Chute rooms

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

A chute room is required on each habitable floor of a
development that has a chute system.

The chute room will include (in addition to space for
recycling MGBs as required):

4.2.1 The chute inlet hopper

4.2.2 Space for spare MGBs (in case of chute failure)
allowing for at least one 240L MGB for each six
residences serviced by that chute.

4.2.3 Space for large cardboard and/or bulky items to
reduce the likelihood of blockages in chutes

Each chute room is to provide access for all persons
in accordance with Council’s Access Policy. Chute
rooms are to allow sufficient space to permit easy
opening of the chute and chute room door and the
storage and maneuvering of MGBs.

A chute room is not to be located adjacent to a
habitable room.

Chute rooms are to display instructions on the use of
the waste and/or recycling chute including instructions
not to dispose hazardous and bulky material into the
chute, and what materials can be recycled using the
container(s) provided.

Management

5.1

57

Responsibility for cleaning chute rooms rests with the
managing body.

17



Acoustic considerations

6.1

6.2

6.3

Chutes should be certified in design to be constructed
to meet the minimum performance requirements for
both airborne and impact noise protection.

Performance requirements are given for both airborne
and impact noise protection respectively in terms of
a Weighted Sound Reduction Index with Spectrum
Adaption Term (RW + Ctr) and a Normalised Impact
Sound Pressure level with Spectrum Adaption Term
(Ln,W + Cl) as follows for waste chutes in residential
premises.

Any chute, duct or service which carries only
residential waste and is to be located in a building to
serve, pass through or near a separate habitable area
(non-residential or residential) is to be designed and
built to be separated by a construction methodology
that achieves the following minimum performance
requirements:

6.2.1 Be of a discontinuous/vibration isolated
construction methodology.

6.2.2 Be certified in design by an appropriately
qualified acoustic consultant to the satisfaction
of a lawful certifying authority to achieve an RW
+ Ctr of not less than 55 if the adjacent rooms
are habitable rooms (includes a kitchen, laundry
and hallway) and achieve a DnT,w + Ctr of not

less than 50 in verification prior to occupation.

6.2.3 Be certified in design by an appropriately
qualified acoustic consultant to the satisfaction
of a lawful certifying authority to achieve an
Ln,W + CI of not more than 55 if the adjacent
rooms are habitable rooms (includes a kitchen,
laundry and hallway) and achieve a LnT,w +

Cl of not more than 55 in verification prior to

occupation.

Chutes are not to carry waste from non-residential
developments unless permitted by development
consent and have been appropriately considered by a
qualified acoustic consultant.

Case study

Improved recycling in apartments

More than 75% of the city’s residents live in residential
apartments. This can often present a number of
challenges and opportunities for managing waste
and recycling. Challenges can often include: minimal
space for waste and recycling bins, uncertainty about
what should go in the bins and lack of appropriate
signage on or close to bins.

In response to some of these challenges the City has
run or supported a number of programs aimed at
creating easier access to recycling opportunities for
residents and improving recycling outcomes.

The City’s Smart Green Apartments program works
with a group of 20 apartment buildings each year

to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and water
consumption and improve waste management. Each
apartment building will receive a waste and recycling
operational assessment with tailored solutions.

In one of the city’s apartment buildings the owners
corporation purchased a car space to create a
dedicated recycling depot. In addition to the existing
recycling and green waste collection services the
apartment residents are now able to segregate
batteries, light globes, mobile phones, e-waste,
clothes and shoes.

Baotteries
Light Globes
bile Phones

o

auhaus Apartments, Pyrmont / Image: Katherine Griffiths

An appropriately qualified acoustic consultant is a

consultant who in the certifying authorities’ view possesses
the necessary skills to render them eligible at the grade

of member in the capacity to practise acoustics with

the Australian Acoustical Society or Engineers Australia

or works for a firm that would be capable of obtaining
membership with the Association of Australian Acoustical
Consultants.

58

18

Sydney2030/



Secion C
Residential
single dwellings

1.1 Space is to be allocated inside each residence for the
storage of at least two day’s generation of waste and
recycling.

1.2 Space (for a kitchen caddy or similar) should be
allocated in the kitchen for the separation of food
waste or compostable material.

1.3 Space is to be allocated within each property
boundary for storing at least one each of Council-
specified waste, recycling, food waste and garden
organic bins awaiting collection (see reference section
Council Residential Waste and Recycling Services).
This space is to be detailed on DA plans and
drawings.

1.4 Thereis to be an access path with sufficient clearance
and of a suitable grade to wheel waste and recycling
bins from the bin storage within the property boundary
to the collection point. The collection point may be
at a Council footpath in proximity to the residence or
a nominated collection point within the development
agreed to by Council. The access path is not to enter
or traverse a dwelling.

1.5 The distance from a dwelling to the collection point is
not to exceed 30 metres.

1.6 A location (within the development boundary) for
bulky waste and problem waste collection is to be
nominated for multiple villas, townhouses or similar
developments.

1.7 The location of the proposed collection point is to be
detailed on DA plans and drawings.

Residential worm farming / Image: John Dennis

59 @
Sydney2030/ ﬂ



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Seciion D
Non-residential
developments

This section includes special _ e

- . The City’s target is to divert 70 per cent of
provisions for waste and recycllng waste from operating businesses in the local
management in industrial and government area away from landfill by June 2021
commercial developments including
food and drink premises, small-
scale commercial premises, offices, Space
accommodation and entertainment 1.1 There is to be space dedicatgd for storing bulky waste
premises (e g hotels. restaurants and problem waste for recycling of at least:

.g. s
and pubs) and retail outlets (e.g.
supermarkets groceries and 1.1.2 4m? for developments between 100m? and
: ’ - ! 2,000m?
convenience stores). This section N , _ _
. itv faciliti 1.1.3 An additional 4m? is required for each retall,

also app"es to communlty aciliues. accommodation or entertainment development

over 2,000 m? and for every 20,000 m? of office
space.

1.1.1 2m?2 for developments under 100m?

1.2 Dedicated space (in or attached to the waste and
recycling storage area) is to be provided for the
storage and recycling of food waste for collection.

1.3 Space is to be provided on-site in reasonable
proximity to retail or commercial premises to store
re-usable commercial items such as crates, pallets,
kegs, stripout waste and similar items so that storage
in a public place is completely avoided.

1.4 Kitchens, office tearooms, and service and food
preparation areas are to be designed with sufficient,
dedicated space to collect and recycle food waste;
this is to be indicated on plans.

20 :
Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Secure space is to be allocated for the separate
storage of each waste stream including liquid wastes,
commercial cleaning products, chemicals, paints,
solvents, and motor and cooking oil. These areas for
liquid waste storage are to be bunded, and drained
to a grease trap, in accordance with legislation and
the requirements of State government authorities and
agencies.

The use of cardboard balers/compactors and glass
crushers for developments with a high generation

of cardboard and glass recyclable waste should

be considered. The space allocation for storage

of recycling in MGBs may be reduced if alternative
systems demonstrate the need for less storage space.

Space should be provided for the separate collection
of beverage containers suitable for redemption under
the NSW Container Deposit Scheme.

Separate dedicated space such as a room or
screened area should be provided for the separate
interim storage and management of stripout waste

for re-use or recycling. Alternatively, this space is not
required if the removal of old furniture and material is
conducted by a professional stripout service or by the
company hired for installing new items. Refer to Better
Buildings Partnership, Stripout Waste Guidelines at
www.betterbuildingspartnership.com.au.

Access

2.1

Where collection takes place inside a building,
appropriate clearances need to be allowed for the
collection vehicle to enter the premises, clear the
waste and recycling containers, and exit the premises.
Note that some systems require the container to

be lifted above the collection vehicle in order to be
emptied (such as front-lifted bulk bins or hook lift
bins).

Collection

3.1

3.2

The location of collection points for waste will be
located wholly within the boundary of a development
and in an area that minimises any noise or odour
impacts on the amenity of nearby premises.

Commercial waste collection vehicle specifications
should be matched to Council waste collection vehicle
specifications as set out in Design requirements for
collection vehicle access.

Sydney2030/

Management

4.1 Businesses, commercial building tenants and building
managers should have written evidence of a valid
and current contract (held on-site) with a collector
for waste and recycling collection for disposal or
processing.

4.2 All businesses should include provisions in their waste
contracts that allow for the collection and recycling
of high-grade and low-grade office paper, cardboard
packaging, paper from secure document destruction,
soft plastics, food waste and other recyclable
resources from the waste stream.

4.3 Contracts with cleaners, building managers and
tenants are to clearly outline the waste management
and collection system, and are to clearly allocate
responsibilities.

4.4 Waste management systems should preference on-
site weighing of materials.

4.5 Where communal composting or worm farming is
proposed, it is to be managed and well maintained
by the building (preferably by a caretaker, gardener or
facilities management) and located in an accessible
and visible area to increase awareness and to ensure
minimal impacts from any potential odours and that
potential run-off is away from site drainage points.

4.6 Fittings should be deconstructed or demolished
by methods that permit re-use or storage of items
such as workstations, and allow for the separation of
valuable resources such as metals for recycling.

61 gﬂ



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Requirements for specific non-residential
premises

Offices

5.1 Provision is to be made on each floor, and in the waste
and recycling storage area or any interim holding
area, for the separation and storage of all recyclable
items (including mixed containers, cardboard, paper
and paper products) likely to be produced from the
premises.

5.2 Provision is to be made in cleaning contracts for
this material to be transferred to a central waste and
recycling storage area at least once daily. Refer to the
Better Buildings Partnership Best Practice Operational
Waste Guidelines at www.betterbuildingspartnership.
com.au. for examples of best practice waste
management in commercial office.

5.3 Storage of paper and cardboard is to be in a dry,
vermin-proof area. Paper and cardboard is not to be
stored for more than two weeks to prevent breeding of
vermin in the stored material.

5.4 Rooms or areas designated for printing or
photocopying are to provide space for the interim
storage of waste paper (in MGBs up to 240 litres) and
used toner and/or printer cartridges for recycling.

5.5 Each tenancy and common areas should have centrally
located bin stations for each stream to remove the need
for individual waste bins under desks.

5.6 If the development includes more than 20,000
m? of office space, an area for a cardboard baler
or compactor is to be provided within or in close
proximity to the waste and recycling storage area.

22

Food retailers and producers

Food retailers and producers can include restaurants,
cafes, grocery stores, supermarkets, pubs, clubs and
commercial kitchens.

5.7 Food premises are to comply with the requirements of
AS 4674-2004 Design, construction and fit-out of food
premises, including the general waste and recyclable
materials requirements. These Guidelines are not
intended to alter obligations under that Standard, and
in the event of any conflict between these Guidelines
and the Australian Standard, the Standard prevails.

5.8 The following waste is to be collected daily or stored in a
refrigerated waste room until collection (refer to reference
section Waste and Recycling Storage Area construction):

* 50 litres of seafood, poultry, and/or meat waste in
total each day of operating

* Waste that contains 20 per cent fish, poultry or
meat by weight or volume

5.9 Premises preparing food for wholesale distribution
or retail should include waste separation systems
within or in close proximity to the preparation area to
allow for plastic and cardboard waste to be collected
and handled separately from food waste. If within the
preparation area, all waste is to be removed daily.

5.10 Waste oils should be kept separate from food and
other wastes.

Retail

5.11 For premises with high volumes of cardboard waste,
consideration should be made to allocate space
for a cardboard compactor, baler, shredder or other
volume-reduction equipment.

5.12 If the development includes more than 2,000 m? of
retail space, an area for a cardboard baler/compactor
is to be provided within or in close proximity to the
waste and recycling storage area.

5.13 Additional space or reduction systems for handling
and storing plastic shrink-wrap should be allocated
where applicable.

62

Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Pubs, clubs and hotels

5.14 Clubs and hotels should consider the use of glass
crushers to minimise the noise impacts of recycling
practices on neighbouring premises. Both glass
crushers and cardboard balers/compactors reduce
the dedicated space needed to manage recycling,
and eliminate the unnecessary collection of bins filled
to less than capacity. Use of glass crushers and the
allocation of interim storage areas may reduce the
space required for recycling storage bins.

5.15 If the internal serving area of a club or hotel is larger than
1,000 m?, space for a glass crusher is to be allocated.

Accommodation

5.16 Hotel accommodation premises with a rise of more
than three storeys is to provide on each habitable
floor an interim waste storage room or area for
separated waste and recycling sufficient for one day’s
generation of waste and recycling. Such storage room
or handling system is to comply with the building’s
fire management system. Provision is to be made in
cleaning contracts for this material to be transferred
to a central waste and recycling storage area at least
once daily.

5.17 Any waste and recycling storage area for Boarding
Houses shall be located towards the rear of the
property, and enclosed to minimise odour or noise
disturbance for adjoining properties. If storage is
proposed at the front of the site, it shall be screened
from view from the streetscape to minimise any visual
impact (refer to reference section Waste and Recycling
Storage Area Construction).

Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected

Case study

Barangaroo South - Designing a place
for zero waste

Lendlease is the developer for Barangaroo

South which has 159 residential apartments and
approximately 260,000 square metres of commercial
space and 65 retailers. It has a target of net zero
waste to landfill by 2020 and 80% diversion of waste
from landfill from day one of operations.

In the first 2 V2 years of operation, Lendlease has
prevented more than 4,000 tonnes of waste from
going to landfill (almost 80% diversion). This success
is due to many factors:

e The condition that tenants be plastic bag free,
use only compostable packaging so that it can
be processed with food waste into fertiliser and
separate a minimum of five waste streams

* Waste diversion targets are reflected in all tenancy
leases and contracts.

* Exceptional data — all waste bins are weighed
and monitored. This allows us to identify issues
and develop targeted education campaigns and
interventions

* Resourcing - the precinct has an onsite waste
manager, tenant engagement specialist and
dedicated cleaning staff all focused on supporting
tenants to achieve the best possible waste
diversion rates.

jEEEEEEaEs

Fr A FE
TN

i
[
B
]
']
[
[
]
]
]
L]
n
]
]
"
L]

i

—;HF S A

Barangaroo South Precinct / Source: Lendlease

63



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Secition =
Mixed use

developments

This section details the waste

and recycling requirements for
developments where residential and
non-residential premises occupy the
same overall site. Applicants should
also apply the relevant criteria set
out in the Apartment Design Guide.

24

The below requirements are to be met along with the
residential and non-residential development requirements
in Sections A, B and D.

1.1 Where a residential development and non-residential
development occupy the same site, the waste and
recycling handling and storage systems for residential
waste and non-residential waste are to be separate
and self-contained. Commercial and retail tenants
are not to be able to access residential waste and
recycling storage area(s) or interim storage containers
or chutes used for residential waste and recycling.

1.2 Collection points for both residential and non-
residential waste and recycling may be shared.

1.3 The Waste and Recycling Management Plan is to
identify the storage areas, collection points and
management systems for both residential and non-
residential waste streams.

1.4 For non-residential spaces, interim waste storage
containers for waste and recycling is to be located on
each occupied floor sufficient for one day’s generation
of waste and recycling. Provision is to be made in
cleaning contracts for this material to be transferred
to a central waste and recycling storage area at least
once daily.

64

Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Section E

skineville ./ Image: Katherine Griffiths ..

S L

.......................................................................................

1.5 The collection point is to be designed to

accommodate collection vehicles wholly on-site. Waste generation rates

1.6 Any chute located within the residential component The City has worked closely with businesses to
of a mixed use development is not permitted to carry ¢ improve its understanding of waste and recycling
waste generated by non-residential premises. i levels from non-residential developments. The

waste and recycling generation rates included in the
Guidelines were compiled from actual operations,
audits and business surveys. Waste and recycling
generation rates for various business premises are
important for determining an appropriate storage
space for waste collection. The City will continue to
work with the commercial sector to update this data
to reflect the changes in generation rates over time.

Waste and recycling generation rates for the
residential sector are based on residential waste
audits of the City’s residential collection services.
Sufficient storage area means improved recycling
levels, and reduced vehicle movements throughout
the City to service waste and recycling. These
benefits improve the liveability and sustainability of
the city.

.......................................................................................

Sydney2030/ % 25



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Secion F

Construction and
demolition waste

requirements

This section details the requirements

for the management of waste
from construction and demolition
activities.

25

The City’s target is to divert 80 percent of waste

from construction and demolition activities away
from landfill by June 2021

66

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

The management of waste from construction and
demolition activities is to be minimised by avoidance
and reduction practices, re-use on-site and the
recycling of materials.

A Waste and Recycling Management Plan detailing
these practices is to be completed and included with
any new DA (this includes DAs for the change-of-use
of a development). The plan should include a target
for resource recovery that aims to achieve a minimum
80 per cent recovery rate.

Materials should be sorted on-site for separate
recycling collection. If this is not possible, sorting and
recycling after the collection of mixed materials from
construction and demolition is required. If the ability to
recycle a material is adversely affected by being mixed
with other waste types, the material is to be stored and
collected separately.

On-site or off-site re-use of materials is allowed for
unscheduled waste materials not hazardous to human
health or safety. Any use of waste materials off-site

is subject to the provisions within the Protection of

the Environment Operations Act 1997 and associated
regulations.

Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Section F

1.5 The Waste and Recycling Management Plan is to 1.5.6 A site plan showing storage areas away from
address construction and demolition waste and public access for re-usable materials and
include: recyclables during demolition and construction,

1.5.1 Full disclosure of any asbestos-contaminated and the vehicle access to these areas.

material known to be at the site, details of 1.5.7 Nomination of the role/person responsible

quantities, the licence details of any asbestos
removalist, and the designated disposal site
licensed to accept asbestos-related waste.

for ensuring targets are met and the person
responsible for retaining waste dockets from
facilities.

1.5.2 Details regarding how all other waste is to
be minimised within a development; and
estimations of quantities and types of materials
to be re-used or left over for removal from the
site.

1.5.8 Designation of appropriately licensed facilities
to receive the development’s construction and
demolition waste.

1.5.9 Confirmation that all waste going to landfill is
not hazardous.

1.5.3 Details regarding the types of waste and likely
quantities of waste to be produced.

1.5.4 Details to re-use or recycle at least 80 per cent
of construction and demolition waste, either
on-site or diverted for re-use and recycling, with
receipts sufficient to demonstrate the target will
be achieved.

1.5.5 Details of the off-site recycler’s primary
destination for materials for multi-unit residential
developments over three storeys and all non-
residential developments.

67 27

Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Abbreviations

City the City of Sydney

Council The Council of the City of Sydney
DA Development Application

L litres

m metres

m? square metres

m?3 cubic metres

MGB Mobile Garbage Bin

28 >
Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Glossary

A device that compresses waste into a mould to form bales that may be self-supporting or retained in shape

e by wire ties and strapping

bulk bin A moveable container for storing waste and having a capacity of 1.5 m3 or 2 mé. Also known as a skip bin

bulky waste Solid waste too large to fit into MGBs that typically includes household items, furniture, whitegoods,
electronics, packaging and/or mattresses

bunded To be enclosed by a low wall intended to contain any liquid spillage or inundation from extending beyond an area

chute A ventilated, essentially vertical pipe for waste disposal, passing from floor to floor of a building with openings as
required to connect with hoppers and normally terminating at the lower end within a waste and recycling storage area

chute room A room located on each floor of a building to enclose waste and/or recycling chutes or the interim storage of
recyclable materials

clean-up service A booked, weekly collection service for large and bulky items such as furniture, whitegoods or garden waste
offered by the Council to residents

collection point The designated position or area where waste or recyclables are loaded onto the collection vehicle

commercial waste All' solid waste generated by a commercial building. Excludes any liquid, clinical, demoalition and construction waste

compactor A machine for compressing waste

compostable material All vegetable and fruit peelings, coffee grinds, tea bags, egg shells and garden prunings

domestic recycling Separated recyclable materials (such as cans, glass and plastic bottles, paper and cardboard) generated
from households and collected in a marked container for processing

domestic waste General waste generated from households, commonly termed ‘garbage’

dual-chute system A chute system consisting of two separate chutes, one for waste and one for recycling, each with their own
chute opening and exit point

electronic waste or Unwanted or broken electronic goods that can be recycled, including TVs, computers and peripherals,
e-waste electric appliances, mobile phones, VCRs, stereos, photocopiers and fax machines
food waste All waste from the preparation or consumption of food, including fruit and vegetables, dairy products, coffee

grinds, tea bags, bread, rice, pasta, meat, chicken and fish. It does not include grease-trap waste or any
packaging. It is often referred to as organic waste

general waste All non-recyclable, non-hazardous and non-food waste that fits inside the red-lid bin, commonly termed ‘garbage’
garden organics Garden prunings and leaves
incineration device Any device for the combustion of waste by fire

Sydney2030/ °° 2 @



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

inlet hopper A fitting into which waste is placed and from which it passes into a chute or directly into a waste container. It
consists of a fixed frame and hood unit (the frame) and a hinged or pivoted combined door and receiving unit

habitable room A bedroom, living room or kitchen, dining room, study, play room or sun room. This includes rooms in the
subject development and neighbouring developments

liquid waste Non-hazardous liquid waste generated by non-residential premises that is supposed to be connected to a
sewer or collected for treatment and disposal by a liquid waste contractor (including grease trap waste)

Lock to lock time Lock-to-lock time is the time that it takes the driver of the vehicle to turn the steering from full lock in one
direction to full lock in the opposite direction in a single continuous movement.

Mobile Garbage A waste container generally constructed of plastic with wheels with a capacity in litres of 120, 240, 660, 1,000,
Bin (MGB) 1,100 or 1,500

multi-unit Also known as a multi-unit dwelling (MUD), residential flat building or apartment building. It is a residential
residential development with multiple units that have shared waste and recycling bins. It includes low-rise, medium-rise
development and high-rise developments

non-residential All developments excluding residential developments. Includes industrial, community and commercial
developments developments including food and drink premises, small-scale commercial premises, offices, accommodation

and entertainment premises (e.g. hotels, restaurants and pubs) and retail outlets (e.g. supermarkets,
groceries and convenience stores)

on-site collection Collection of all waste and recycling is conducted within the property (in the building’s basement, at grade
within the building in a dedicated collection bay or at grade and off-street within a safe vehicular circulation
system where in all cases vehicles will enter and exit the premises in a forward direction) and not on kerbside

operational waste Waste generated by occupants of developments as part of typical occupancy and use. This includes all
waste streams and materials irrespective of how they are disposed or recovered

problem waste Waste that cannot easily be managed by regular waste and recycling services and is often hazardous in
nature. Problem waste includes paints, chemicals, batteries, light bulbs, gas bottles, and motor and cooking
oils. The majority of these items can be recycled if separately collected and managed

refrigerated waste A waste room which is refrigerated by a cooling system which maintains the temperature below 5°C
room
storey A space within a building that is situated between one floor level and the floor level next above, or if there is

no floor above, the ceiling or roof above, but does not include a space that contains only a lift shaft, stairway
or meter room, or a mezzanine or attic

stripout waste Refurbishment waste from commercial buildings

textile waste Clothing, sheets, linen and other household fabric and textiles

Waste and A written plan prepared by the applicant(s) setting out the volume and type of waste to be generated during
Recycling demolition, excavation, construction and ongoing operation associated with a development. It nominates on-
Management Plan site re-use; processes and destinations for recycling and/or disposal of residue wastes; and the operational

management of waste and recycling to meet best practice standards. Also known as a ‘Waste Management Plan’

Waste and A dedicated space (including a bin room or bin bay) for the storage of waste, recycling, food and/or garden
recycling storage organics bins, and bulky waste, problem waste and textile waste that is convenient for residents and
area occupiers to access and use

0 ?
Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



References




Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Rielerence A
Waste
generation rates

The waste and recycling generation rates in this section are provided as minimum requirements only. Industry
information should be referred to for further details on waste generation rates where available and for specific building
developments not covered in this section.

Litres per week

Residential developments

waste recycling garden organics food waste
Multl-uplt Residential Developments 120 120 100** N/A
(per unit)
Single-dwellings (houses, small-
scale villas or townhouse-type 100 120 120 40

developments)*

* Waste and recycling generation rates for single dwellings also depend upon the number of people residing in the dwelling.
** Only applies to multi-residential dwellings that generate garden organics (e.g. garden prunings and leaves).

32 "
Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Reference A

Expected litres per 100m? per day*
Non-residential developments

waste recycling food waste

Accomodation and entertainment

Hotels 20 25 15
Backpackers 30 30 20
Boarding house / guest house / student accommodation 30 30 30
Serviced apartments 20 25 15
Convention/conference / event centres (no accommodation) 50 225 20
Entertainment venues 100 125 30
Restaurant / eating 100 500 100
Pubs / clubs 100 150 40

Commercial offices

Commercial offices 15 25 &
Retail

Supermarkets 75 450 25
Specialised grocery 150 300 50
Convenience stores 50 250 10
Bulky goods / department store 40 300 10
General retailing 25 200 8
Community

General (including libraries) 20 50 8
Child care centres and facilities with kitchens 50 50 15

* Based on data from the Commercial Waste Data Review commissioned by the City of Sydney, document dated 22 Feb 2017. General
waste (uncompacted putrescible) and co-mingled recycling waste density factors are applied according to Western Australia Waste
Authority figures. Food waste generation is based on a 2016 analysis of the City of Sydney businesses.

73 @@
Sydney2030/



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Rarrence 3
Council residential

wasteand
recycling services

Australian standard sizes for mobile garbage bins (MGBs)

Standard measurements

1100L MGB

Height 940 mm 1080 mm 1250 mm
Length 560 mm 735 mm 850 mm
Width 485 mm 580 mm 1370 mm

240 litre MGB 660 litre MGB

120 litre MGB

1470 mm

1245 mm

1370 mm

S b
Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Reference B

Standard colours

Stream Bin body Bin lid colour
General waste Dark green Red

Recycling Dark green Yellow

Garden organics waste Dark green Lime green

Collection Services

At the time of publication, Council’s residential waste and recycling services are as outlined below. To check the current
waste and recycling services, collection zones and waste service charges as listed on Council’s current Schedule of Fees
and Charges, visit the Council's website at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.

Council is planning to introduce regular e-waste collections, trial a separate food waste collection service and investigate
providing regular textile and clothing collection for residents by 2021. Please check the Council’s website for the latest
information on new residential waste and recycling services.

A method for calculating the number of bins required is provided in the reference section Waste and Recycling Generation
Rates for residential premises. Minimum collection frequency is once per week. Council will only consider more frequent
collection services for approval where it is satisfied that all other options to deliver sufficient storage capacity have been
exhausted.

Council does not provide waste and recycling services to non-residential properties.

For multi-unit residential developments

e Waste and recycling collected in 240, 660 or 1,100 litre MGBs

* The use of 1,500 or 2,000 litre bulk bins is allowed only in consultation with Council’'s Waste Services Unit
e Opt-in Garden Organics collected in 120 or 240 litre MGBs once per fortnight

*  Weekly mattress recycling and clean-up service by booking only

* Regular e-waste recycling drop-off days and chemical cleanout events for problem waste.

For single dwellings such as houses and terraces:

*  Waste collected in 120 or 240 litre MGBs weekly

* Recycling collected in 120 or 240 litre MGBs weekly

e Opt-in Garden Organics collected in 240 litre MGBs once per fortnight
*  Weekly mattress recycling and clean-up service by booking only

* Regular e-waste recycling drop-off days and chemical cleanout events for problem waste.

75 @ 5
Sydney2030/



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Relference C
Design requirements
for collection vehicle

dCCEesSS

Waste collection vehicles may be side loading, rear loading or front-end loading. The size of vehicle varies according to the
collection service. Council and its waste contractors use rear-loading, compacting collection vehicles of various capacities to

20 m® for collecting waste and recycling.
Council and its waste contractors use rear-loading, compacting collection vehicles of various capacities to 20 m? for

collecting waste and recycling.
The following characteristics represent the typical rear-end loading collection vehicle for guidance only.

A
<
E
=
%
@ m—
( )
o o o I |
o — o
Y l I l I
~2.6m (includes mirrors & controls) ~ 9.25m (front bumper to rear step) _
Di ions of typical collection vehicle (rear loader)

76

@@ Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Vehicle dimensions and design parameters for swept path analysis

The following dimensions are of a typical rear loading collection vehicle and should be used as the design parameters for a
swept path analysis.

Length overall (m) 9.25
Width overall (m) 2.6
Travel height (m) 3.8
Minimum vertical clearance required (m) 40
Maximum weight (t) 26

Turning circle radius — wall to wall (m) 10.5
Lock to lock time (sec) 6

Minimum clearance on both sides of the wheel path (mm) 600
Vehicle turning speed (km/hr) 5-10

Vehicle access and turning requirements

A turning path analysis should be used to check that the paths of vehicles travelling in the forward direction when negotiating
access driveways and circulation roadways, can be accommodated within the proposed location. Turning path analysis
should also be used to check the movement out of a loading dock to establish that sufficient width is provided for the vehicle
swept path, including maneuvering clearances. In providing turning path analysis, the following should be provided:

* Details of road geometry (details dimension of the driveway, width of the road (carriage way), footpath, kerb and gutter,
median and on-street parking where applicable.)

e Dimension details of the design vehicle
e Turning radius and operable speed

¢ Lock to lock time. It is recommended that a value between three and six seconds is reasonable for most conventional
vehicles. It should come through a vehicle data sheet, however, if not a six seconds should be chosen.

e Three clear swept paths line namely wheel path, vehicle body path and 0.6m clearance path

The parameter of the design vehicle for swept path analysis should be obtained from the manufacturer specification (with
reference) or the parameters in the vehicle dimension table can be used.

Best design practice for access and egress from a development calls for a separate entrance and exit to allow the collection
vehicle to travel in a forward direction at all times. Where there is a requirement for collection vehicles to turn at a cul-de-sac
head within a development, the design is to incorporate either a bowl or ‘T’ or “Y’-shaped arrangement.

The design aspects to be taken into account include:

¢ Placement of waste and recycling bins outside each home, or in a common collection area
e The presence of parked cars on access roads

e Trucks are to only be expected to make a three-point turn to complete a U-turn

* Allowing for collection vehicle overhang and possible interference with bins and road furniture.

" 3
Sydney2030/ 7



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Road geometry

The design parameters are to comply with the following road geometry:

A maximum desirable gradient of 10 per cent for turning heads

Vehicle access for collection and loading will provide for a maximum grade of 1:20 for the first 6 metres from the street,
then a maximum of 1:8 with a transition of 1:12 for 4 metres at the lower end

A maximum longitudinal road gradient of 15 per cent
A minimum kerb radius of 8.5 metres at the outside of the turn where there is to be on-site collection
A minimum kerb radius of 10 metres at the outside of the turn where there is to be kerbside collection

A minimum pavement width of 6.5 metres if 25 or more parking spaces for cars are required (use of passing bays is
acceptable)

An industrial-type strength pavement designed for a maximum wheel loading of 7 tonnes per axle in order to
accommodate waste and recycling collection trucks (the standard road pavement design specifications for an individual
driveway entry on public land is 150 mm thick concrete, 20 MPa concrete with F82 mesh).

Collection from enclosures

Collection vehicles may enter building basements for the collection of waste and/or recyclables provided the following
requirements are met:

The gradient of the ramp access to basement is not to exceed 1:8

The height of the structural members and upper floor ceiling are to allow for a typical collection vehicle travel height/
operational height consistent with the type of vehicle employed

The provision of space is to be adequate to allow the typical three-point turn of collection vehicles

The basement floor is to be of industrial-type strength pavement and designed for a maximum wheel loading of 7
tonnes per axle in order to accommodate waste and recycling collection trucks (the standard road pavement design
specifications for an industrial driveway entry on public land is 150 mm thick concrete, 20 MPa concrete with F82 mesh).

56 "
Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Rererence D
Waste and

recycling storage
area construction

Construction

1.1 The floors, walls and ceilings of waste and recycling storage areas and chute room(s) are to be finished with a rigid,
smooth-faced impermeable material capable of being easily cleaned.

1.2 The floors of waste and recycling storage areas are to be graded and drained to drainage fitting approved by Sydney
Water located in the room(s). The floor is to be provided with a ramp to the doorway where necessary.

1.3 A close-fitting and self-closing door or gate operable from within the room is to be fitted to all waste and recycling
storage areas.

1.4 Doors/gates to the waste and recycling storage rooms are to provide a minimum clearance width of 900 mm.

1.5 At least one door or gate to the waste and recycling storage area is to have sufficient dimensions to allow the entry and
exit of waste containers of a capacity nominated for the development.

1.6 Lightweight roller shutter-type doors or grilles should be considered for access to waste and recycling storage areas,
as these do not impact on the available storage space. If these types of doors or grilles are used, the requirement for
a close-fitting and self-closing door remains, so that waste collectors can access the waste and recycling storage area
other than through the roller door or grille.

1.7 The design shall restrict the entry of trespassers, vermin or other animals into the area.

1.8 The waste and recycling storage area is to be provided with an adequate supply of water for cleaning purposes with a
hose cock. This does not include within chute rooms.

1.9 The waste and recycling storage area is to be adequately ventilated by either:

1.9.1 Natural ventilation openings to external air. The dimension of the openings are not to be less than 5 per cent of
the bin bay or bin room floor area.

1.9.2 A mechanical exhaust ventilation system in accordance with relevant Australian standards.

1.10 Waste and recycling areas are to be provided with artificial light controlled by switches located both outside and inside
the storage area.

1.11 Any compactors or mechanical devices, if permitted for the mechanical handling and storage of waste and recycling,
are to be fitted with safety operating and cut-off systems.

1.12 Any facet of the waste and recycling management system that is visible from outside the building is to be in keeping
with the dominant design of the remainder of the development.

h 9
Sydney2030/



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Refrigerated waste storage

2.1 In some instances, Council may require that waste storage be refrigerated. This is likely if large quantities of food waste
are generated on-site and waste removal from this site is difficult due to its location or long trading hours. Where a
waste room is refrigerated, the temperature is to be maintained at or below 5°C with all refrigeration equipment installed
with sufficient space for cleaning.

2.2 The floor, walls and ceiling of the refrigerated waste room are to be constructed of a rigid, smooth-faced impermeable
material capable of being easily cleaned.

2.3 The floor of the refrigerated waste room is to be graded to the doorway.

2.4 An adequate supply of hot and cold water is to be provided through a centralised mixing valve with the hose cock
located as close as practicable to the doorway.

2.5 The refrigerated waste room is to comply with Section G.1 of the Building Code of Australia as well as being provided
with artificial light controllable from within the room.

2.6 Noise from the use of the refrigeration equipment associated with the waste room is not to give rise to “offensive noise”,
as defined under the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997.

%
Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Relerence &
Waste chutes,
compactors, balers
and crushers

Waste chutes

1.1 Chutes, service openings and inlet hoppers are to be constructed of metal or other smooth-faced, durable, fire-resistant
and impervious material of a non-corrosive nature, capable of being easily cleaned.

1.2 Chutes are to be cylindrical in cross-section and the internal diameter is to be a minimum 500 mm and adequate for
material being deposited.

1.3 Chutes are to be vertical without bends or ‘off-sets’ and not reduce in diameter over the fall.
1.4 Chutes are to be ventilated to ensure that air does not flow from the chute through any service opening.

1.5 A cut-off is to be provided at or near the base of the chute to effectively close off the chute while the storage container
or compacting device is withdrawn.

1.6 Chute rooms are to be provided with an inlet hopper and be in a convenient, well-lit and ventilated positions.

1.7 The floor below each charging device and service opening is to be finished with a smooth impervious material with a
minimum area of not less than one square metre (1 m?) situated centrally below the inlet hopper.

1.8 Inlet hoppers are to be designed to:
1.8.1 Effectively close off the service opening in the chute when the device is opened for loading
1.8.2 Automatically return to the closed position after use
1.8.3 Permit free flow of waste into the chute
1.8.4 Not project into the chute
1.8.5 Permit easy cleaning of the device and connection between the service opening and the chute
1.8.6 Be not less than one metre (1 m) or more than one and one-half metres (1.5 m) above the floor level.

1.9 Inlet hoppers are to be capable of delivering the waste to the chute without using force.

81 ﬂ
Sydney2030/ 4



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Compactors

Compactors are used to compress waste into collection containers to reduce the volume of waste, and are often used
in conjunction with chute systems. There are many types of compaction systems. The compaction ratio is typically set at
around 2:1.

Compactors are to be fitted with optical or visual sensors to provide warning to a nominated caretaker that a bin is to be
replaced. A closed circuit camera may be used, providing it is frequently monitored, such as part of a building security
system.

Compactors require regular ongoing maintenance. In particular, systems fed from a chute can be prone to blockages or
failure of the ‘electronic eye’, which can result in waste overflowing or backing up the chute. They also require electricity for
operation, which may not be an advantage in buildings seeking to reduce energy demand.

Residential use

Council does not encourage the use of compaction systems for residential general waste using 240 litre MGB systems, due
to issues related to weight, handling and the reduction of bin life.

Compactors will only be permitted by Council as a development condition if other options to reduce waste storage issues,
such as optimal bin sizes, have been thoroughly considered and have been proven unable to be used. Compactors are not
to be used for recycling material with the exception of cardboard, as specially designed balers and crusher systems are
more effective.

Balers

Balers compress bulky materials such as cardboard and plastic film, and tie them into bales so they remain compacted.
They are advantageous in situations where large amounts of bulky materials are produced, space is limited and the materials
can be compressed so as not to occupy valuable bin capacity.

Balers come in a wide variety of sizes and capacities and have a small footprint. Balers can be customised by size and use
requirements. Although some balers operate automatically, someone is normally required to load and operate the baler,
which is a disadvantage. The bales can also be large, heavy and difficult to move by hand. Sometimes equipment such as a
forklift is required to move them.

Glass bottle crushers

Bottle crushers are designed to break glass into small but recyclable-sized fragments, known as ‘cullet’. Most crushers
are integrated with a small mobile bin (typically 60 litres) to keep the weight of the cullet within limits for ease of handling.
Crushers allow for much larger weights of glass to be stored in smaller volumes, reducing the storage space required for
glass recycling by well over 50 per cent.

In addition, the crushers minimise noise associated with handling glass recycling by reducing the need to tip bottles from a
bar-sized bin to a larger storage bin, and also from reducing the noise at collection.

Glass bottle crushers are available in different sizes and configurations to suit venues ranging from small bars to larger clubs.

These crushers should be considered in areas of close proximity to residential dwellings to reduce the loss of amenity from
recycling noise levels, and where bottle disposal is high and storage areas are limited.

42 .
Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Rererence F
Advanced waste
collection systems

Developers of precincts or large sites with multiple buildings are encouraged to consider options for advanced waste
collection systems. These options are to be discussed and approved by Council before development.

Next-generation advanced waste collection systems which could be considered include automated waste collection systems
and alternative bin or container systems.
Automated waste collection systems

Automated waste collection is an integrated network of underground pipes and chute inlets that transport both waste and
recycling directly from residential or commercial buildings to a centralised collection point using a vacuum transport. These
systems can collect all waste and recycling from an area up to 2.5 kilometres from the central station.

The use of automated waste collection is widespread internationally. Some systems have operated continuously for 50
years. Over 100 cities around the world operate at least one area with automated collection systems, and over one million
households are currently connected to an automated waste collection system.

Automated waste is most effectively installed if included at the design stage for new developments. This allows for optimum
conveyance pipe layout across the precinct and the incorporation of waste and recycling chutes in multiple buildings
integrated with the system.

The key requirements for bins, collection points, access and waste collection for service rooms referred to in these
Guidelines may be open to amendment if an automated waste collection system is considered.

Developers interested in installing these systems within a new development should contact Council waste and planning staff
at the earliest stage possible.

Benefits

Benefits of automated waste collection include:

* Improved amenity for residents and businesses (reduced odour, noise, spillage and vermin)

* Reduced need for space allocated to waste handling and waste storage in buildings

* Reduced or eliminated need for waste management equipment and bins

» 24/7 access to waste removal (offering reduced commercial waste storage allocation)

* Reduced or eliminated vehicle collection and access at individual buildings, as waste collection would be at a central
location rather than scattered throughout a precinct

. 43
Sydney2030/



Requirements
If an automated waste collection system is included in a DA, the following requirements will need to be taken into account:
e The ventilation, air intake and air outlet units shall be located to minimise nuisance to neighbouring premises

e The waste and recycling storage capacity within a building shall be at least one day’s waste or recycling output of the
building

* Waste and recycling collection points and storage stations shall be accessible to Council collection vehicles, and be
located to minimise nuisance to neighbouring premises

e Space for bulky and problem waste storage will still be required
* Adequate measures shall be taken to minimise noise resulting from the operation of the system

* Adequate measures shall be provided to remove dust and smell from the air used for waste conveyance before it is
discharged into the atmosphere. The discharge point shall be located away from neighbouring premises

Schematic of automated waste collection system within a development / Source: Envac

Alternative bin systems

Underground bins

Underground bins use hidden capacity by installing large collection containers below ground level. The general user does
not see the container but simply a small portion of the container or a small bin above ground. Underground bins are available
in a range of sizes including over 5,000 litres. These bins offer the advantage of having a large storage capacity that can be
used to effectively manage the waste from many dwellings, while only requiring a small above-ground footprint.

Below-ground storage of waste is an advantage, particularly in summer as the waste is kept cool. The frequency of bin
collection may also be reduced significantly, subject to appropriate control of odour and liquids from decay.

Waste collection from underground bin systems can be made by a vehicle that has been modified with a hook-arm or crane.
In some systems, the underground bin can be hydraulically lifted for collection from more standard-sized bins.

Both an appropriate location for underground bins and access for collection vehicles are therefore very important due to the
servicing method.

o Sydney2030/



Reference F

Shared compaction bins

A number of designs are now available for externally located compaction systems. These systems are typically suited for
high-density retail areas. Access is secure, usually by a card identification system. Waste is deposited through an inlet
hopper suitable for regular smaller loads arising from retail outlets or some commercial premises. The compactor storage
container is typically collected by a hook-lift-type vehicle. When considering these systems, noise impacts and collection
access should be taken into account.

. 45
Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Reference G
Management

and treatment of

food waste and
compostable material

Composting

Compost bins and piles are a way of processing compostable material and garden organics on-site. This not only reduces
the volume of waste but also creates a useful soil enhancer (compost).

Composting can be more versatile than worm farms but needs to be placed directly on the ground so the compostable
material are in contact with the earth. Compost bins operate in a very similar way to worm farms but can generally process a
wider range of materials including garden organics and citrus. Meat can also be placed in compost bins provided the bins

are well managed.
There are a variety of compost bin arrangements and systems that are commercially available.

The footprint area requirement for a typical compost bin is about 1 square metre.

Example compost bin type / Image: Jamie Williams Compost bin on residential apartment roof top in Sydney / Image: Richard Payne

45 ”
Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Reference G

N

AT IA

- = ,
5y

" | Wy
L

wlorm F}"““
St @
ease e‘MFJ"'I\I}-\J'
Wul\'} liﬁtj |

Worm Farms

Worms farms can be a cheap and effective method of managing compostable material except for citrus fruit, garlic and
onions. Worm farms or vermiculture systems transform compostable material into vermicast (worm compost) and vermi-
liquid (liquid extract from the worm farm). These outputs can be used in gardens to promote plant growth. Worm farms can
occupy a small footprint and can be located on balconies or in gardens.

Space requirements for a typical worm farm for an average household are (indicative only):

* Height — 300 mm per level

e Width — 600 mm

e Length —900 mm

There are a number of commercially available worm farms of different designs. They are sold through hardware stores and
some specialist suppliers.

On-site food waste systems

The on-site food waste systems summarised here are presented as options only. Further investigation is required by the
developer to assess their feasibility. Any on-site food waste system is to be purchased, maintained and managed by the
development.

The factors below need to be considered when assessing the viability of separated food waste systems for any development:
e Size of the development and quantities of waste

* Presence of retailers and commercial occupants and quantities and types of waste generated

* Availability of trained staff to manage and operate systems

e Space available for their location

* Ability to separate waste streams or some of their components

* Treatment options required to process any residual food waste

e Commercial collection arrangements needed to collect food waste

e Purchasing of systems and all ongoing maintenance and cleaning is the responsibility of the development.

Developers interested in installing the following systems within a new development should contact Council waste and
planning officers at the earliest stage possible.

87 4‘7?
Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Guidelines for Waste Management in new developments

Food macerators

These systems pulp food and store it in a tank at the source. They are commonly found in commercial premises and have
the potential for use in residential buildings. When the tank is full, the contents are collected by truck and taken to a treatment
facility, such as an anaerobic digester.

Decomposers and dehydraters

These systems are scalable and rapidly decompose or dehydrate food waste by heating and agitating the waste over 24
hours. This can occur with or without the addition of bacterial starter cultures. They reduce the volume of food waste by
removing most of the water it holds. They do not produce compost but only dehydrate waste. Generally these containers
need a sewer connection to dispose of the waste water and/or a filter for the vapours vented to the air. This may require
additional Council approval. The outputs from these containers can be sent to a lawful facility such as a commercial
composting facility.

The organic matter captured from these containers cannot be directly applied to land without an environment protection
licence or a Resource Recovery Order and Resource Recovery Exemption.
Anaerobic digester

On-site anaerobic digesters are systems that use bacteria to break down food waste in an oxygen-free environment. The
resulting biogas that is produced during this process can be used as an on-site energy source.

Although anaerobic digester technology isn't new, an on-site closed loop system to treat a building’s food waste is a
relatively new development in Australia. Some trials are currently underway across the country and viable systems will
become more commonplace in the future.

Food waste disposal units

A kitchen food waste disposal (FWD) unit (also known as an in-sink macerator) is a mechanical appliance that is installed
under the kitchen sink and connects to the drain. Householders feed food waste into the unit which grinds it and, diluted with
tap water, sends it into the sewer system or into a septic tank.

Council generally does not support the use of this technology, due to the increased load it puts on the sewage system and
because of its relatively low resource recovery rates. However, some FWD systems which may be considered have on-site
collection and containment which do not need attachment to the sewer system but instead require periodic pumping.

Sydney Water does not generally encourage the use of FWDs in residential households due to the issues below. However, it
is recommended that developers contact Sydney Water if considering FWDs to seek the latest advice.

The disadvantages of FWD units include:
* Increase in wastewater services costs to customers due to additional organic load on the sewer system

* Increased disposal of fats and oils in sewers, which can harm the environment around sewerage outlets and contribute to
pipe blockages

* Increased water use for flushing the food waste

* Increased energy use to run the appliance

:
Sydney2030/Green/Global/Connected



Appendix




I'W Construction Waste and Recycling Management Plan

Refer to the Construction and Demolition Waste Requirements.

&3) @ANIAS IS

Site Address: ’ | DA Number: | ‘
Will you use Site Cleaners? O Yes, for some work Estimated total volume or weight
O VYes, for all work ‘ |
LI No

Please supply details of site ABN Number | ‘
cleaners used

Name | ‘

Phone | Mobile |
All Excavation Material (including ] Less than 10 m3 [0 Re-use on-site
from Swimming Pool excavations) [ More than 10 m? (if more than O Re-use off site

10 m®, specify estimated volume O Landfill Disposal
below)
Address if re-used off site |
Name and Address of licensed landfill | |
How will you manage this waste?
Re-use Recycle Recycle Landfill % of
Less Please specify on-site (separate (off-site material
Type of Material than estimated volumes collection  separation) diverted
10m®  if more than 10 m® from site) from
landfill

Bricks O O O O 0 [ %
Concrete O O O O O \:l%
Tiles 0 0 0 0 0 L%

Timber (clean)

| |

| |

| |

O | | = m O =

Timber (treated) | | [ %
Plasterboard 0 | | O m 0 0 [ %
Glass o | | 0 0 0 o [ s
Ceiling tiles O | ‘ O O O 0 E%
Metals (ferrous) | | E%
Metals (non-ferrous) - | | - - - - E%
Carpet 0 | | 0 0 0 0 |j%
Electronic waste m | | O O O O [ %

Total diversion of waste from landfill (needs to be minimum 80% diversion): \:|%

90
A2



Declaration

Name of applicant (please print):

Signature of applicant: |

91

Date:

&) @MNIUSIIS

A3



=N Demolition Waste and Recycling Management Plan

Refer to the Construction and Demolition Waste Requirements.

Site Address: ’

| DA Number: | |

Does demolition contain asbestos?

All asbestos waste is to be managed in accordance with provisions of the NSW
Work Health and Safety Regulation 2011 and the City of Sydney Asbestos Policy.

WorkCover Licence No. and Class

Demolition contractor details

Licensed landfill

[ Yes 0 No

O Tick M if under 10 m?
O Tick ™ if over 10 m?

General demolition waste

Type of Material

Bricks

Concrete

Tiles

Timber (clean)
Timber (treated)
Plasterboard

Metals (ferrous)
Metals (non-ferrous)

Mixed recycling

Less
than
10 m?

Please specify
estimated volumes
if more than 10 m?

| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |

Re-use
on-site

O

O

92

How will you manage this waste?

Recycle Recycle Landfill

(separate (off-site

collection separation)

from site)
O O O
[l O O
O O O
] O 0
O O O
] O 0
[l O O
L U [

Total diversion of waste from landfill (needs to be minimum 80% diversion):

&3) @ANIAS IS

% of
material
diverted

from

landfill

A4



Declaration

Name of applicant (please print):

Signature of applicant: |

93

Date:

&) @MNIUSIIS

A5



oV

| | |

| |

|| |

| an ove | | 008 | | oL | | ove | | oove | | 6| | ove | | 000z | | 0z o |
| L] ove | | ove | | e| | ove | | oz | | e| | ove | | 009 | | 969 |
(Auo ch___msc (Auo mwc___osc (BUIEMP/0Z 1) (BuIEMPI00L)
pajewnss H_,MH_HVMN,W %m e cﬂ%% pajewnse (1) 8zis uiq HOHP v_omows pelewmnse (1) azIs uiq oA v_mows sBuljjamp jo JaquinN
sulq 1o 81SeM POoo} Juoneiaush suiq Jo Buiohoal Juoneiauab sulq Jo a1sem Juonessuab | SHONITIIMA ITONIS
Jaguinu [ejo] paleuIWoN 9]SEM POO4  Jaquinu [eloL paleuIWON Bulpkosy  Jeqwinu [e}0]  PAJEUIWON aiseMm IVILN3aIS3H
| | | | | | | | | | | || |
| | || | | | | || | |
| | | | | | | | | | | || 9|
| oL | | ove | | oove | | 6| | ovz | | 0002 | | 0z 6o |
| e| | ove | | oz | | e| | ove | | 009 | | 969 |
8] §)

pajewnsa (7) azis uiq A c___mzv\.v__ww% perewnss () 8zis uiq A c___msu\.v__ww% sBuljjomp o JaquinN
sulq Jo BuipAoal Juoljeiauab sulq Jo a1sem Juoljeiauab LINN-ILININ
Jaquinu [ejo| PaeUILION Buipkosy  Jeqwinu [B}0]  PSJBUIWON aI1SEM 1VILNIQISTH
*SaUI|oPING Ul S8JeJ UONBIausK) 9)SEM dU) O} Jajoy
31SEM JO UOI}BIdUdK)

Juswdojana [euUSPISAY-UON/[enuapISey PaxIN []

wawdojanag AjuQ enuapisay [

7 _ JJaquInN va 7 :SS2IppY 2US

EUSYDNEY® (=9

ue|d Juawabeuely BuipAsay pue aisep) jeuonesdadO Ke)



| | |

| | 2

002! |

O@@_

052 | [¢wose) weneiser 6o |

0082 |

omw_

00€Z | | (w000't1) feioH b |

IR LE

eale pue adAy
sosiwald uo paseq
uoijesauab ajenoje)

IVILN3AIS3H-NON



General requirements

All multi-unit residential and non-residential development is to address the following.

Refer to the General Requirements section in Guidelines.

Have the Guidelines been considered in conjunction with the City’s Waste
Management Local Approvals Policy (found at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au)?

Is there a waste and recycling storage area provided?

Is the waste and recycling areas located in a position that is convenient for
both users and waste collection staff?

Location of waste and recycling Distance (m) from the waste and
storage areas: (e.g. level 2) recycling storage area to the
collection point

] Yes [0 No

] Yes [0 No

O Yes [0 No

Size of waste and recycling

storage areas (m?)

What is the total area of bin storage provided?

Is the layout of the waste and recycling storage area designed to encourage
easy recycling and separation of different waste types by all users?

What is the ceiling height of the waste and recycling storage area?

Have you submitted a detailed plan of the waste and recycling storage area,
together with the nominated collection point and access pathway marked?

Please include name and location of relevant drawings:

O Yes No

] Yes [0 No

Is there sufficient space provided for the estimated general waste and
recycling bins PLUS handling?

How much separate space is dedicated for storing bulky waste and
problem waste?

What type of storage space for bulky and problem waste has been
allocated? (e.g. designated area, lockable cage, within waste and
recycling storage room or other)

Is food waste or compostable material managed in any way? (tick the
applicable management system/s below)

* Suitable space available for composting and worm farming

* On-site food waste processing system

* Other (please specify)

96

O Yes 1 No

U Yes Ll No

[
L] System type:

&3) @ANIAS IS

A-8



Is the collection point sufficiently accessible by collection operators?

What is the maximum manual handling distance between the storage
point and the collection point for bins?

Are any collection and vehicle access points located adjacent to a
habitable room?

What is the maximum grade of the path for wheeling bins between a
storage point and the collection point?

Are all externally located on-site collection points constructed within
15 metres from the property boundary?

What is the clearance height allowed for collection vehicles to enter
the site for collection?

Is entry and exit of a collection vehicle from the site in a forward
direction?

Can collection vehicles service the development with minimal
reversing?

Have the following allowances been made for all collection points?

* Vehicle access for collection and loading will provide for a
maximum grade of 1:20 for the first 6 metres from the street, then a
maximum of 1:8 with a transition of 1:12 for 4 metres at the lower

* A minimum width of driveway of 3.6 metres

* A minimum radius turning circle of 10.5 metres or provision for
changing the facing direction

Who will be responsible for waste management (waste storage area management, cleaning, bin

transfer, etc.) for the development?

Yes O No
|m

Yes No

| |

Yes O No
|'m

Yes O No

Yes O No

O Yes O No

Will appropriate signage for waste storage areas and equipment
(including bins) for effective waste management and safe handling be
implemented where necessary?

J Yes

O

No

Please provide a summary of the development’s waste management system and arrangements,
i.e. how a resident, tenant and/or cleaner will use the waste management system within this

development.

(This is to be consistent with the drawings attached.)

97

&3) @ANIAS IS

A9



Multi-unit residential developments dwellings
All residential developments which shared waste and recycling bins are to address the following.

Refer to Multi-Unit Residential Developments Dwellings section in Guidelines.

Has space for at least two day’s generation of waste and recycling been

&3) @ANIAS IS

1 provided per unit? S 8o
Is the waste and recycling storage area(s) easily accessible by all residents O Yes O No
of the development?
How far is the waste and recycling storage area from the farthest residential
dwelling? m
Are you requesting any additional infrastructure in the waste and recycling
storage room (carousel, optic sensors, number of bins, automatic bin O Yes O No
exchange, size)?
If yes, fill in the section below
Please detail the type of additional infrastructure:
2
If a compactor is included, what is the proposed compaction ratio (it is not
to exceed 2:1)?
Will the development elect to have kerbside collection?
(only applies to developments with less than 6 units that satisfy the 0 Yes 0 No
requirements outlined in the General Requirements section )
What type of problem waste will be dealt with in this development?
(e.g. electronic waste, batteries, fluorescent tubes and mobile phones)
How much space in the waste and recycling storage area has been ‘ m2

allocated for textile waste?

Will a chute system be utilised in the new development? If yes, will the O Yes
chute system be a single (general waste) or dual system (two separate [ single or [ dual
chutes for waste and recycling)?

If no, move onto question 5. D No

Has the chute system been designed according to the relevant minimum

3  manufacturing standard? LRl u

What is the total maximum travel distance from any residential
dwelling entry to a chute system on any given storey? m
(It is not to exceed 30 metres)

Has the chute system been designed and certified according to the

relevant acoustic standards? O Yes 0 No

98
A-10



Is there a chute room on each habitable floor of a development with a

chute system?

Does the chute room include space for:

4 » recycling MGBs (if a single chute system is used)
e the chute inlet hopper
* spare MGBs

* large cardboard and/or bulky items to reduce the likelihood of
blockages in chutes.

In which of the following ways will on-site collection of waste, recycling , textile waste and bulky items

take place?

1 Inthe building’s basement

2 At grade within the building in a dedicated collection or loading bay

3 At grade and off-street within a safe vehicular circulation system
where, in all cases, vehicles will enter and exit the premises in a
forward direction

Residential single dwellings

[ Yes

O Yes

O Yes

O Yes

[J Yes

1 No

[J No

1 No

1 No

J No

&3) @ANIAS IS

All single-dwelling houses, small-scale villas or townhouse-type developments with bins allocated to and managed at

each individual dwelling is to address the following.

Refer to Residential Single Dwellings section in Guidelines.
Has space for at least two day’s generation of waste, recycling and food
waste been provided per dwelling?

Has storage area for one each of council’s specified waste bins been
allocated per unit? (including general waste, recycling, food waste and
1 garden organics)

Has appropriate access between the waste and recycling storage area and
kerbside collection point been allocated?

Has sufficient space for the storage of bulky waste, textile waste and
problem waste been allocated?

99

O Yes

O Yes

O Yes

O Yes

LI No

A-11



Non-residential developments

All new non-residential developments are to address the following.

Refer to Non-Residential Developments section in Guidelines.

1 How much space is dedicated for storing bulky waste and problem waste ‘ | m2
for recycling?
Dedicated space (in or attached to the waste and recycling storage area) is 0 Ve 0N
provided for the storage and recycling of food waste for collection es °
How much space has been allocated for management of re-usable items ‘ | =

(such as crates, pallets, kegs and fit-out waste)?

Have kitchens, office tearooms, service and food preparation areas been

2 designed with dedicated space to collect and recycle food waste? B AGE oL
Has secure space for the storage of liquid wastes been allocated 0 v ON
(such as chemicals, paints, solvents, and motor and cooking oil)? es °

3 Will collection of non-residential waste take place inside the new O Yes O No
development?

Will thg site employ the.use of a waste caretaker or cleaner for O Yes O No

4 Managing non-residential waste?

Will the development employ on-site weighing of waste materials? L Yes T No

Has the ‘Non-Residential Developments’ section of the Guidelines
5 been consulted for specific requirements of different non-residential [ Yes 1 No
occupancies at the site?

Mixed use developments

All developments containing both residential and non-residential units are to address the following.

Refer to Mixed Use Developments section in Guidelines.

Has separate waste and recycling storage been allocated for residential and

non-residential aspects of the site? oG e
Will the collection point be shared for residential and non-residential waste? I Yes 1 No

Have relevant site plans identified the storage areas, collection points
and management systems for both residential and non-residential waste LI Yes [0 No
streams?

Declaration

Name of applicant (please print):

Signature of applicant: ’ Date:

100

&3) @ANIAS IS

A-12






&) SMENUSIIS

pajdauuoy/jeqoln/usain/ogozAsupis

oA Help shape the future of Sydney.
Have your say at
SydneyYourSay.com.au




Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

Item 4.

Fire Safety Reports

File No: S$105001.002

Summary

The City has received inspection reports with recommendations from Fire and Rescue NSW
in relation to inspections carried out on buildings located within the City’s local government
area.

Fire and Rescue NSW has powers under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act
1979 (the “Act”) to carry out inspections of buildings and it is required to forward its findings
to the City.

Fire and Rescue NSW reports received by Council are required to be tabled before the
Council.

Council is then required to determine whether or not to exercise its power to give a fire
safety order under Division 9.3 and Schedule 5 of the Act (previously s 121B of the Act).

This determination may be made at the next meeting of the Council held after the tabling of
the Fire and Rescue NSW reports.

Attached are details of the reports received by the City from Fire and Rescue NSW that are
required to be tabled. As these reports were received prior to the renumbering of the Act on
1 March 2018 they refer to the section numbering in effect at that time. Any compliance
action taken after 1 March 2018 refers to the new section numbering and terminology.

The attachments deal with a specific property and include the Fire and Rescue NSW report
and the findings (preliminary or final) by Council’s Investigation Officer, along with other
documentation relevant to that property.

A recommendation is made in the attachment setting out the action that is recommended to
be the most appropriate to take in the circumstances.

Recommendation

It is resolved that Council:

(A) note the contents of the Fire Safety Report Summary Sheet, as shown at Attachment
A to the subject report;

(B) note the inspection reports by Fire and Rescue NSW, as shown at Attachments B to F
to the subject report;



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

(C)

(D)

exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order as recommended by Council's
Investigation Officer to address the identified fire safety deficiencies in 591 George
Street, Sydney, as detailed in Attachment B;

exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order as recommended by Council's
Investigation Officer to address the identified fire safety deficiencies in 53, 53A and
53B Bourke Road, Alexandria, as detailed in Attachment C;

not exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order at this time but note the compliance
action taken and as recommended by Council's Investigation Officer in 51 Bourke
Road, Alexandria, as detailed in Attachment C;

exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order as recommended by Council's
Investigation Officer to address the identified fire safety deficiencies in 200 Pitt Street,
Waterloo, as detailed in Attachment D;

exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order as recommended by Council's
Investigation Officer to address the identified fire safety deficiencies in 2A Forsyth
Street, Glebe, as detailed in Attachment E; and

exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order as recommended by Council's
Investigation Officer to address the identified fire safety deficiencies in 42 Morehead
Street, Redfern, as detailed in Attachment F.

Attachments

Attachment A. Fire Safety Report Summary Sheet

Attachment B. Council Officer Inspection Report, 591 George Street, Sydney

Attachment C. Council Officer Inspection Report, 51-53 Bourke Road, Alexandria

Attachment D. Council Officer Inspection Report, 200 Pitt Street, Waterloo

Attachment E. Council Officer Inspection Report, 2A Forsyth Street, Glebe

Attachment F. Council Officer Inspection Report, 42 Morehead Street, Redfern



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 9 April 2018

Background

1.

The City receives inspection reports and recommendations from Fire and Rescue
NSW in relation to inspections carried out on buildings located within the City's local
government area.

Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the “Act”), Fire and
Rescue NSW has the power to carry out inspections of certain buildings to determine if
the building has adequate provision for fire safety and/or is compliant with legislation.

On average, the City receives approximately 50 such reports each year. They can be
prompted by reports from the Police or other people who have a concern relating to
fire safety in a building.

When Fire and Rescue NSW carries out such an inspection, a report and any
recommendations must be provided to the City.

Under the Act, Council is then required to table the report and make a determination
as to whether it will exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order 1 or 2 in Schedule
5, Part 2 of the Act. Fire Safety Order 1 requires a person to do, or stop doing, certain
specified things to improve fire safety; Fire Safety Order 2 requires a person to cease
conducting an activity on premises where that activity constitutes, or is likely to
constitute, a life-threatening hazard or a threat to public health or public safety.

Attached are the details of the reports received from Fire and Rescue NSW, including
recommendations for further action. The properties have also been reviewed by a City
Building Officer.

Personal information has been redacted from these reports in accordance with the
Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998.

Relevant Legislation

8.

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

GRAHAM JAHN, AM

Director City Planning, Development and Transport

(Craig Hann, Acting Fire Safety and Essential Services Specialist)



Attachment A

Fire Safety Report Summary Sheet




L jo | ebey

Jeayg Alewwing/spodayy Aejes aui

saipusioysp Ayeses suly payiuspl Apawes 0} penssl aq 0} pauinbau si Jeplo Aiejes sjuswypedy

SJl B anss| 0] uojuajul Jo spj0U E Jey) P8UILLISISP sey Jsoyo uonebsaul [1ounon ‘Pejoadsul sesjwald | [enuspisay ‘Ulsjpay ‘Jeauis pesyalop zp 4
Salousioysp Ayajes sy paynusp Apswsi o) panssi eq o} paiinbai s Jopio Ajejes sjuswpedy

941} B anss| 0] uojuUB)UI JO BK30U B Jeyy pPsuiwIsIop sey Jaolyo uonebisanul jounon ‘pejoadsul sesiwaig [eluspisay ‘8gs|D) Jealis yihsio vz 3
seuslep Ayeses auly paynuspl Apawa. 0} pansst aq 0} pauinbai s| Jap.o Ajojes sjuswyuedy

8Jl B 8Nnss| 0} uojuajul Jo sop0U E Jey) PSuluLIslsp sey Jsolyo uoyebliseul 1ounod ‘pejoadsul sesiwaly [BljUSPISaY ‘00liB)epn 198NS Hid 002 a

pe}sldwos Ajuooesnes ale sxiom Ajeges auyy aunsue o) uSMeUspun aq o} aie suopoadsul e)is soueldwiod "
dn mojjoy ‘eouspuodse.ios UONOE SAI108LI0D Y)IM Panss] 8q 0} SISUMO ‘pojoadsul peoy ayinog |g sesjwald

Ssalousidlep Aeses auy paiuspl Apaiuss 0} panssi 8q 03 paiinbai si Jopio Ajeses auy e anssj 0} uoyusUi Jo sasiWald [BloIoWwwoD

8J1j0u € jey) paujwisiep sey Jeoiyo uopebisaAul [1ounog ‘pajoadsul PEOY a)inog geg pue yeg ‘eg sesiwalg ‘BlpUEXS|Y PEOY ¥iNog £6-1.G o)
sslousioyap Ayeyes auyy payusp Apswe 0} penssi 8q 0} paiinbau si Japlo Ajojes sjuswpedy

Sll} B 8nss| 0} uojuaul Jo sn0U ke Jey) PaullLIsIop sey Jeolyo uoebiisanu; jounoy ‘pojoadsu) sesiwaid [enuapisay ‘AoupAs ‘yesng obioes) Lgg q

‘Buigesw j1ounog je psjqe) SI8HeW g 8|npeyog ‘/| esneo jo Atewwng ‘8|geoiidde joN v

(esn buipjing (F-v)

uojjepuaiiodsy jsuonoy sjeuwopaid) soyivadg sosiwolg ny

9[qe] Aleliwing

8102 |udy -Jodey

G poiqe) seped oid jo sequinu jejoy.

¢00°L00S0LS ‘I1ounoY 03 syiodai ‘6261 Joy Juslussassy pue Buluueld [ejuswiuosiaug 343 Jo g 9INpayods ‘2119

J99ys Aewwing Jioday Ayogeg auig

8102 udy WO-eeys Arewuwing




Attachment B

Council Officer Inspection Report,
591 George Street, Sydney




591 George S'treet,ﬂ Sydney

Capyright ©2018 City of Sydney Councit & Land and Praperty information & Sinclair Knight My
All Rights Reserved. This map has been pifed from various and the publisher and/or 8 13
contributors accept no respenslbility for any Injury, toss or damage arising from the use, emor or 1500 atad

omissions therein. While alf care is taken to ensure a high degree of accuracy, users are invited to
notify Council of any map discrepancies. Mo part of this map may be reproduced without permission. 02/03/2018

25 Meters




Council officer Inspection and Recommendation Report
Schedule 5, clause 17 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the
Act)

File: Fire/2018/10 Officer: J. Kalgovas Date: 1 March 2018

Premises: 591 George Street, Sydney

Executive Summary:

Council received correspondence from the Commissioner of Fire and Rescue NSW (FRNSW) in
relation to the subject premises at 591 George Street, Sydney, with respect to matters of fire
safety.

The building is a high rise twin tower mixed use office and apartment building including ground
floor retail and basement car parking.

Observation of the external features of the building did not identify metallic sheet cladding.

The annual fire safety certification for the building is current and compliant. The annual fire safety
certification was on display within the building in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000.

The premises are equipped with numerous (28) fire safety systems (both active and passive) that
would provide adequate provision for fire safety for occupants in the event of a fire.

A joint inspection by Council and FRNSW officers revealed that whilst there remains several fire
safety “maintenance and management” works to attend to, the overall fire safety systems provided
within the subject premises are considered adequate in the circumstances. The required works
include maintenance of the fire alarm system, keeping exit ways clear of obstructions, sealing
penetrations in fire resisting construction and rectification of the closing operation of fire doors.

It is considered that the scope of the above fire safety works are of a degree which require a fire
safety order be addressed to the owner of the building.

Council investigations have revealed that the premises are deficient in the provisions for fire safety
and that an order under Section 9.34 and Schedule 5, Part 2 of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979 is required to be issued so as to ensure and promote adequate facilities for
fire safety/fire safety awareness.

Chronology:

Date Event

29/11/2017 | Joint inspection by Council officer carried out with Authorised Fire Officers at the
request of FRNSW noting certain fire safety measures had not been adequately
maintained.

The inspection identified several items relating to maintenance of the fire alarm
system, obstruction of exit ways, inadequate sealing of service penetrations and
the non-compliant operation of self-closing doors.

Facade check was also undertaken in relation to external wall cladding.

As a result of the inspection FRNSW issued an emergency order on 29 November
2017 to address maintenance of the fire alarm system and obstruction of exit ways.

C:\Users\chanm\TRIM\Offline Records (CS)\591 George ~ LAWS & ENFORCEMENT - NOTIFICATIONS & PROSECUTIONS - Fire Notices &
Orders\Internal Correspondence - Council officer Inspection and Recommendation Report. DOCX/591 George Street Sydney/April 2018-CM
Page 1 of 3

8




FRNSW reinspected the building on 30 January 2018 and found the order to be
complied with.

13/02/2018 | Received FRNSW correspondence concernihg fire safety at premises referred to
as 589-593 George Street, Sydney. Council knows the building by address 591
George Street Sydney.

14/02/2018 | Desktop review undertaken.

FIRE AND RESCUE NSW REPORT:

References: [FRNSW - D18/8074, 2018/075798-03]

FRNSW conducted a joint inspection of the subject premises under S. 119T (4) of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, after receiving correspondence in relation to
the adequacy of the provision of fire safety.

Issues

The report from FRNSW detailed a number of issues, in particular noting:

maintenance works réquired rectify faults and isolations to the fire alarm systém;
some exit ways were obstructed by a variety of miscellaneous items;

pipes pass through fire resisting wall construction without adequate sealing being installed;
several doors had non-compliant self-closing operation.

hob=

FRNSW issued an emergency order dated 29 November 2017 to have items 1 and 2 above
rectified.

On 30 January 2018 FRNSW carried out a reinspection and found that the terms of the emergency
order were compliant.

Items 3 and 4 above have been referred to Council for investigation.

FRNSW Recommendations

FRNSW have made recommendations within their report. In general FRNSW have requested that
Council.

1. Inspect the subject premises and take action to have the identified fire safety issues
appropriately addressed;

FRNSW has referred the matter to Council as the regulatory authority and have also requested
that as soon as practical after the above recommendations have been tabled and considered that
notice of any determination in respect of the recommendations is forwarded to them in accordance
with Section 121ZD (4) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

COUNCIL OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS:

Emergency Order | Complianceletier | Gited-Matters Other
f instructi found to !
compliant

C:\Users\chann\TRIM\Offline Records (CS)\591 George ~ LAWS & ENFORCEMENT - NOTIFICATIONS & PROSECUTIONS - Fire Notices &
Orders\Internal Correspondence - Council officer Inspection and Recommendation Report. DOCX/591 George Street Sydney/April 2018-CM
Page 2 of 3

9




As a result of a site inspection undertaken by a Council investigation officer it is recommended that
Council exercise its powers to give a notice of intention (NOI) for a Fire Safety Order under Section
9.34 and Schedule 5, Part 2 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 to address
the fire safety deficiencies identified by FRNSW and Council’s building officer.

The issue of a fire safety order will ensure that suitable fire safety systems are in position throughout
the building to provide improved and adequate provisions for fire safety.

That the commissioner of FRNSW be advised of Council’s actions and outcomes.

Referenced documents:

No# Document type Trim reference
A1l. Fire and Rescue NSW report 2018/075798-03
A2. Locality Plan 2018/075798-02
A3 Attachment cover sheet 2018/075798-01
Trim Reference: 2018/075798 CSM reference No#: 1848693

C:\Users\chann\TRIM\Offline Records (CS)\591 George ~ LAWS & ENFORCEMENT - NOTIFICATIONS & PROSECUTIONS - Fire Notices &
Orders\Internal Correspondence - Council officer Inspection and Recommendation Report. DOCX/591 George Street Sydney/April 2018-CM
Page 3 of 3

10




Unclassified

File Ref. No:  BFS17/2597 (1866)
TRIM Ref. No:  D18/8074

Contact: Station Officer _

12 February 2018

General Manager
City of Sydney

GPO Box 1591
SYDNEY NSW 2001

Email: council@cityofsydney.nsw.qgov.au

Attention: Manager Compliance/Fire Safety
Dear Sir/Madam,

Re: INSPECTION REPORT

SUNLORD TOWER AND CASSIA GARDEN

589-593 GEORGE STREET SYDNEY (“the premises”)

Fire & Rescue NSW (FRNSW) received correspondence on 1 November 2017, in
relation to the adequacy of the provision for fire safety in or in connection with ‘the

premises’.

The correspondence stated that:

s It appears when speaking with m the building
management are not paying bills so ey are hesitant

to attend and remedy

faults and service the installations properly.
We attended this premises 6 times this last shift alone and that was after

isolating up to 25 faulty alarms and havi g the servicing company attend and
attempt to resolve issues with no resuit

The FIP itself appears to have electrical or wiring issues are alarms multiply
in different levels and areas of the building for no apparent reason or cause.

The fire stairs are in a disgraceful state - absolutely covered from top to
bottom with cigarette butts, refuse and other materials . The smell of urine in
the stairs by itself is bad enough ...

The sprinkler installation for the premises appears to have an issue that is
possibly with alarm valves not reseating once activated as in particular
installation 4 just constantly attempts to re-pressurise itself whilst at the
same time water is running out numerous drain valves from the same

system. ‘
Unclassified
Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page1of7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

11




Unclassified

Due fo this we had to isolate jacking pumps and the installation itself

BGA alarms in the isolated fire stairs are (manual call points) have been
cracked and are too numerous to list here.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 119T (1) of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act), an inspection of ‘the premises’ on 29 November
2017 was conducted by Authorised Fire Officers from the Fire Safety Compliance Unit
of FRNSW along with Council Officer,

The inspection was Iimiwt'édv‘“fé‘fﬁé%lhlgwing:

e A visual inspection of the essential Fire Safety Measures as identified in this
report only. ‘

On behalf of the Commissioner of FRNSW, the following comments are provided for
your information in accordance with Section 119T (4) and Section 121ZD (1) of the
EP&A Act. Please be advised that Section 121ZD (2) requires any report or
recommendation from the Commissioner of FRNSW to be tabled at a Council meeting.

COMMENTS

The following items were identified as concerns at the time of the inspection:

1. The Fire Indicator Pahel (FIP) displayed 46 faults and 11 isolations, contrary to
the requirements of Clause 182 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Regulation 2000 (EP&A Regulation);

2. Smoke detectors in the carpark were found to have dust caps installed, contrary
to the requirements of Clause 182 of the EP&A Regulation;

3. The Alarm Signalling Equipment (ASE) displayed a fault which indicated that
one of the communication lines to a Third-Party Provider was disconnected,
contrary to the requirements of Clause 182 of the EP&A Regulation;

4. The free passage of persons to a final exit door in fire isolated passageways
and stairwells were obstructed by building material, furniture and general
rubbish, contrary to the requirements of Clause 184 of the EP&A Regulation
and Clause D1.6 of the National Construction Code 2016 Volume One, Building
Code of Australia (NCC);

5. Garbage bins were stored in the path of travel to egress doors in the B1 carpark,
contrary to the requirements of Clause 186 of the EP&A Regulation;

Unclassified
Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 2 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

12




Unclassified

Compartmentation

6. Multiple PVC pipe pass through fire walls into fire isolated corridors without
adequate means to prevent the spread of fire and smoke to other areas of the
building, contrary to the requirements of Clause C3.9 of the NCC;

7. The sliding fire door in the B1 carpark was isolated from automatic operation
due to the placement of building material against the door, contrary to the
requirements of Clause C3.6 of the NCC;

8. The doors in the B1 garbage room did not return to a fully closed position
automatically, contrary to the requirements of Clause C3.5 of the NCC.

FRNSW is therefore of the opinioh that there are inadequate provisions for fire safety
within the building.

FIRE SAFETY ORDER NO. 6

The inspecting Authorised Fire Officers from the Fire Safety Compliance Unit of
FRNSW issued an Order No. 6, dated 29 November 2017, in accordance with the
provisions of Section 121B of the EP&A Act, to have item no. 1 through to item no. 5
of this report rectified.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 121ZE of the EP&A Act, a copy of the
Order is attached for your information. FRNSW has conducted further inspections of
the building to assess compliance with the terms of this Order.

In this regard, FRNSW does not consider Council is required to take action in relation
to item no. 1 through to item no. 5 of this report. ’

RE-INSPECTION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 119T(1)(b) of the EP&A Act and Ciause 189(a)
of the EP&A Regulation, muitiple inspections of the premises were conducted between
the 8 December 2017 and 30 January 2018 by Authorised Fire Officers from the Fire
Safety Compliance Unit of FRNSW.

At the time of an inspection on 30 January 2018, the terms of ‘the order issued on ‘the
premises’ were compliant. Please be advised that ‘the order is not an exhaustive list
of non-compliances, it is at Council's discretion to inspect and address any other
deficiencies identified on ‘the premises’.

Unclassified
Fire & Rescue NSW "~ ABN 12593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 3 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

13




Unclassified

RECOMMENDATIONS

FRNSW recommends that Council:

a. Inspect and address item no. 6 through to item no. 8 of this report and any other
deficiencies identified on ‘the premises’.

This matter is referred to Council as the appropriate regulatory authority. FRNSW
therefore awaits Council's advice regarding its determination in accordance with
Section 121ZD (4) of the EP&A Act.

Should you have any enquiries regardin any of the above matters, please do not
hesitate to contact Station Oﬁicer“)f FRNSW's Fire Safety Compliance Unit
on (02) 9742 7434. Please ensure that you refer to file reference BFS17/2597 (1866)
for any future correspondence in relation to this matter.

Yours faithfully

Building Surveyor
Fire Safety Compliance Unit

Attachment: [Appendix 1, Emergency Fire Safety Order — Two - pages]

Unclassified
Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www . fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 4 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

14




Unclassified

Appendix 1

) Unclassified
W | Fire &
NSW |Rescue NSW

Emergency Fire Safety Order

Under the Environmentat Planning snd Assessment Act 1979
Part 6 - Implementation and Enforcement: Division 24 - Orders
Tables to Sectlon 1218: Emergency Order No. 6 - Fire Safety Order
Fleass note :

o Pursusn! ko Secfion 121G (2) of the Act, iivs Order has been given es an Emsrgency Crder as the
fssuing officer bellevas aotivity or dsficiencies identified constitule an emargency or & serious risk to
salsly, :

o Pursuantto Seation 1212K (2} of the Act, there ia no Hghf of appeal agains! this Orer

o Failure o comply with this Order may result in further Orders andiar fines belng ssued.

»  Substantisl penalties may be imbosed undar Section 125 of the Aci for fallure to comply with an Order.

L Station Officer
{nama} {rank) (number)

belng an authorised Fire Officer within the meaning of Section 1212 of the Environmentat
Planning and Assessment Act 1979, and duly authorised for the purpose, hereby order:

The Proprietors of Strata Plan 756886 Owner

(name of petson whom Qrcar is sanmd) [pog.tor i 8. owner, Bu i hg manager)
with respect ta the premise
‘SUNLORD TOWER B CASSIA GARDEN®
589-693 GEORGE STREET, SYDNEY (“the premises”)
{ngmesaddrass of prerrises to which Order s servad)

to do, or refrain from doing, the following things:

1. Ensure the Automatic Smoke Detection and Alarm System installed in ‘the préemises’
is fully operational, by: ) ,

a. Remaving all faults and isolations displayed on the Fire Indicator Panel (FIP)

b. Removing the dust cap covering the smoke detector located adjacent to the
sliding fire door on the B1 carpark leve!.

2. Ensure the Alarm Signalling Equipment (ASE) continually monitors 'the premise’ by;

a. Repairing or re-instating the secondary/backup telecommurications fink

Unclassified

Flre & Rescue NSW ABWN 12 593473 130 ) W, firenaw, gov.eu

Cuarmunity Safaty Orectorate Leckad Bag 12 T {D2) Y742 7434

Fire Safety Cormorace Unt e GQ?HQCYE NSW 2130 F {U2) 6742 7483

firesafely@fire new gov.au Paga 1 © Capyright State Govt NBW

Unclassified

Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T(02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2180 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 50of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

15




Unclassified

Unclassified

3. Clear alt bullding material, rubbish and other itams from the fire-isolatad starways,
passageways and corridors throughout ‘the premises’,

4. Remove all garbage bins stored in the path of traval to the axit on the B1 carpark
level.

The terma of the Order are to be complled with:

By no later than 1200 hours on the & December 2017
The reasons for the laaue of this Order are:

a. At the time of the inspectian, the Fire Indicator Panel (FIP) was displaying forty-six
(46) faults and eleven (11) isolations.

b. At the of the Inspection, the smoke detector located ad jacent 1o the stiding fire door
on the B1 carpark level, was covered with a plastic cap.

c. Atthe time of the inspection. the Alarm Signalling Equipment (ASE) was displaying a
primary link failure, indicating a secondary/backup telecommunications link errar.

d. A conversation with the nominated Automatic Fire Alarm Service Pravider (AFASP),
at the time of the inspection, revealed that the secandary/backup PSTN landline
telephone link for the ASF was disconnected,

e. The disconnection of the secondary communications link for the ASE means that in
the event of a fire there is only one link to the emergency services. A single link is
likely to compramise the life and safaty of the occupants in an emergency as there is
no backup link,

. Atthe time of the inspection, materials were stored/ocated within the fire-isolated
stairways, passageways and corridors, throughout ‘the pramises’. The matetlal
included, but are not limited to, building material and products, garbage bins, furniture
and general rublbish

g. Atthe time of the Inspection, garbage bins ware stored in the dedicated/marked path
of travel to the exit on the B1 carpark lavel, hindering access to the fire-isolated
stalrway.

h. Clearing all kems within the fire-isolated stalrways, passageways and corridors
safaguard the occupants from iliness or injury while evacuating in an emergency

i. To ensure that the Automnatic Smoke Detection and Alarm Systsm is capabie to
operaling in accordance with the standard of performance it was designed ang
installed 1o,

Unclassitied

Fieg & Rascus NSW A8N 12208423 110 VRO 1500 DEW. GOV DM

Cominu ity Sakely’Orectarate
Fug Sataty Conghancs Unt

firoastaly@fivn.naw.gov.au

Lached O i7
Cieengore NSW 2145

Pige 2

T (025 £742 243
F a2y k747 7303

Fire & Rescue NSW

% Copyright Suate Govi NSW

Unclassified

ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au

Community Safety Directorate
Fire Safety Compliance Unit

Locked Bag 12

T (02) 9742 7434
Greenacre NSW 2190

F (02) 9742 7483

firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au

Page 6 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

16




Unclassified

Unelaauiliod

J. To ensure that the ASE is capable o operating In accordance with the standard of
performance it was designed and instalied to.

k. To ensure compliance with the requirements of Clause 182 of the Environmantal
Flanning and Assessment Regulation 2000

I The storaga of ltems within the fire stalrs, is contrary to the requirements of Clause
184, Clause 186 and Clause 188 of the Environment Planning and Assessment

Regulations 2000,

m. To ensure that fire safety measures instaliad throughout the premises are maintained

and operating to thair standard of petformance.

This Order No, 6 was sent by mail on 28 Novembar 2017

Fire Safety Officar
Fire Safety Compliance Unit

Firg & Rescus NOW

Comrmunity Safety O rectorate
£ re Ssfaty Campfiance Unt

firesatoly@fire.nsw.gov.au

Fire & Rescue NSW

Unclassified
ABN 12 £43 473 11)

Lockedt Rag 17

G-eenace NSW 2190

Page 3

Unclassified
ABN 12 583 473 110

@ Copyright Btate Govt NSW

www fire new.gov.au

T 02} 8742 7434
F (D2, 9742 7483

www.fire.nsw.gov.au

Community Safety Directorate
Fire Safety Compliance Unit

Locked Bag 12
Greenacre NSW 2190

T (02) 9742 7434
F (02) 9742 7483

firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au

Page 7 of 7

17

© Copyright State Govt NSW




Attachment C

Council Officer Inspection Report,
51-53 Bourke Road, Alexandria

18




8102/20/80 ‘uoissjuLied Jnoyim pasnpoidal aq Aew dew )y jo ped ON “sajauedaiosip dew Aue jo [jounog Afjou]
0. 0} pajjau] sk siasn ‘AoBinode Jo eaibep ybY B 8INSLS o) usie) s| aied e 2fJup "ujossly suojssiiol

Yvie 00g':) 10 Jous ‘asn ay) woy Bujsye afeturp 1o sso} “Aanfup Aue joy Ayjiqisuodsal ou ydasoe SIo)nqUUes;
8¢ 10/puB Jaysiignd SU} Pue §52.N08 SNOUBA WO PapdIWIoD useq sBY deul sjij] "perissay sIYBIY 1y

sl 05} -7}
e e —— “ZI3IN WBRDY JjejoulS B uopeLLoju] Aadosd pue pue @ aunes AsupAs Jo Ao 21020 146iAdog)|

m_,%:mx,o_,«;.bmomvmvt:um e ‘peoy
SNOg YES ‘PROY S3iNog €6 ‘Peoy asinog |G




Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation Report
Schedule 5, clause 17 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the
Act) '

File: CSM 1840156 Officer: Luke Jeffree Date: 13 March 2018

Premises: 51 & 53 Bourke Road, Alexandria - Unitex

Executive Summary:

Council at its meeting to be held on 19 March 2018 will consider a report (Attachment E) dated 8
February 2018 (2018/048173) and determine a proposed resolution not to exercise its powers to
issue an Order 6 at this time and as recommended by Council’s Investigation Officer so the
building could be inspected to determine the appropriate action to take in the circumstances.

Council’'s Investigation Officer inspected the building on 1 March 2018 and this is the subsequent
report for Council’'s consideration.

Council received correspondence from the Commissioner of Fire and Rescue NSW (FRNSW) on
29 January 2018 and 9 March 2018 in relation to the subject premises with respect to matters of
fire safety. '

The site contains three (3) industrial/commercial buildings of varying sizes which are
interconnected by means of one way vehicular circulation systems and a central raised
carpark/docking platform within the site.

The site has an area of 10,442 square metres, located approximately 180 metres south of Huntley
Street and has been subdivided several times since December 2005 creating four separate
property addresses including; 51; 53; 53A and 53B Bourke Road Alexandria.

The buildings the subject of FRNSW enquiry include ‘Unitex tenancy’ (53A and 53B Bourke Road)
and 53 Bourke Road (self- storage facility) comprising a four storey warehouse building situated at
the rear of the site (rear building) and 51 Bourke Road, which is a two and four storey
commercial/warehouse facing Bourke Road.

Council investigations have revealed that the premises 53, 53A and 53B Bourke Road, Alexandria
are deficient in fire safety and egress provisions in the following areas:

(i) Inadequate facilities for firefighting (non-compliant fire hydrant block plans/FRNSW
operational concerns regarding fire hydrant system);

(i) Provision to prevent fire spread, to such extent to allow occupants to evacuate safely is
deficient as an automatic suppression (sprinkler) system coverage does not extend to office
levels;

(iii) Internal exit stairways are not fire isolated to protect persons evacuating during a fire
emergency;

(iv) Lack of suitable fire resisting construction to the prevent the spread of fire (walls between
office/ warehouse parts & defective fire shutters);

(v) Non-compliant exit travel distances within self-storage facility;

Council investigations have revealed that premises 53, 53A and 53B Bourke Road, Alexandria are
deficient in the provisions for fire safety and that an order under Section 9.34 and Schedule 5, Part
2 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the Act) is required to be issued so as
to ensure and promote adequate facilities for fire safety/fire safety awareness.

C:\Users\chann\TRIM\Offline Records (CS)\CSM - Documents - CUSTOMER SERVICE - REGISTRATION(2)\Internal
Correspondence - Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation Report. DOCX/April 2018-CM Page | of 4

20




Further, the investigations at premises 51 Bourke Road Alexandria revealed that whilst there
remains several minor fire safety “maintenance and management” works to attend to concerning
system block plans and valves, the overall fire safety systems provided within this premises are
considered adequate in the circumstances.

It is considered that the above fire safety works at 51 Bourke Road Alexandria are of a degree
which can be addressed by routine preventative and corrective maintenance actions undertaken by
the owner’s fire service contractor(s) through written instruction from Council.

Observation of the external features of the buildings identified the existence of what appears to be
metallic sheet cladding on the fagades of the buildings at 51; 53A and 53B Bourke Road
Alexandria. However it was unknown whether the cladding consisted of inner composite synthetic
material. Therefore, it is recommended that Council write to the owners of properties 51; 53A and
53B Bourke Road Alexandria to undertake a review of the external wall cladding.

Chronology:

Date

Event

29/01/2018

FRNSW correspondence received regarding premises Unitex, 51-53 Bourke Street,
Alexandria [known under council records as 51, 53, 53A and 53B Bourke Road
Alexandria]

08/02/2018

Report prepared, to table FRNSW report to Council meeting to be held on 27 March 2018.

01/03/2018

A joint inspection of the subject premises was undertaken by Council officer with FRNSW
officers. Also present during the inspection were the owners, strata managers and owner’'s
fire services contractors.

Council’s officer found the current annual fire certification was on display within the main
foyer of the buildings.

The inspection revealed that fire exits within workspace as mentioned in FRNSW
correspondence dated 29 January 2018 were no longer blocked. However the majority of
FRNSW concerns regarding egress, essential fire safety measures and lack of fire
separation & protection as stated their letter were non-compliant with the building
regulations and applicable Australian Standards.

FRNSW officer clarified their concerns regarding the inadequacies of the fire hydrant block
plans displayed on site and advised that they are hampering FRNSW operations.

It was observed by the Council officer that an exit door situated between the self-storage
facility & Unitex carpark within the ground floor of the rear building was closed off by a
concrete block wall. Council’s investigation revealed the door is a required exit way to
serve that part of the building. A fire safety order will require suitable compliant exit
arrangements be provided.

It was noted that a fire hydrant pump isn’t installed to serve the rear building (53; 53A and
53B Bourke Road) and considered that the fire hydrant system may not achieve adequate
pressure & flow at hydrant outlets. An audit of the fire safety measures including the fire
hydrant system serving the rear building will be required as part of the intended Council
fire safety order to ensure compliance with the relevant Australian Standards and
completion of remedial works, as necessary.

Observation of the external features of the buildings at 51, 53A and 53B Bourke Road
Alexandria identified the existence of metallic sheet cladding on the fagades of buildings.
However it was unknown whether the cladding consists of inner composite synthetic
material.

C:\Users\chann\TRIM\Offline Records (CS)\CSM - Documents - CUSTOMER SERVICE - REGISTRATION(2)\Internal
Correspondence - Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation Report. DOCX/April 2018-CM Page 2 of 4

21




Also the inspection revealed a number of additional fire safety deficiencies at premises 53,
53A and 53B Bourke Road including;

1. Lack of automatic sprinkler system coverage provided throughout office parts of rear
building to control early fire development, fire and smoke spread,;

2. Lack of fire separation in rear building between the warehouse and office areas;
3. Internal exit stairways serving office parts of rear building are not fire isolated:;
4. Sprinkler system compliance concerning exhaust not being lagged, valve set not

being housed in an enclosure and the pumproom door lock not provided with a
FRNSW compatible lock; ‘ '

09/03/2018

FRNSW correspondence received regarding premises Unitex, 51 and 53 Bourke Road,
Alexandria [known under Council records as 51, 53, 53A and 53B Bourke Road
Alexandria)

13/03/2018

Report prepared, to table FRNSW report to Council meeting to be held on 16 April 2018.

It is considered by Council investigation officer that matters (1 & 2) raised in FRNSW
correspondence dated 9 March 2018 relating to inadequate fire hydrant block plan and
missing label to drencher isolation valves at premises 51 Bourké Road Alexandria are of a
maintenance nature and can be remedied through the issue of a compliance letter. Follow-
up compliance inspections will be undertaken by Council investigation officer to ensure the
remedial works are complied with.

FIRE AND RESCUE NSW REPORT:

References: [D18/4618; 2018/037682, D18/14880; 2018/110447]

Fire and Rescue NSW conducted an inspection of the subject premises after receiving an enquiry
in relation to the adequacy of the provision for fire safety in or in connection with the premises.

Issues

The reports from FRNSW detailed a number of issues, in particular noting:

1. Concern regarding lack of fire separating construction between warehouse and office parts
of building;

2. A lack of fire protection to service penetrations within certain parts of building;

3. Lack of automatic sprinkler system coverage provided throughout office parts of building;

4. Fire hydrant block plans unclear/ not in accordance applicable standard and concerns
about inadequate pressure and flow in fire hydrant installation X

S. A concern regarding a blocked off exit and whether this has made exit travel distance non-
compliant with NCC ;

6. Fire shutters not operating and concerns regarding the fire resistance level of sh‘utters;

7. Obstructions within paths of egress travel to open space and exits;

FRNSW Recommendations

C:\Users\chann\TRIM\Offline Records (CS)\CSM - Documents - CUSTOMER SERVICE - REGISTRATION(2)\Internal
Correspondence - Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation Report. DOCX/April 2018-CM Page 3 of 4

22




FRNSW have made one recommendation within their reports. In general FRNSW have requested
that Council;

1. Inspect the subject premises and take action to have the |dent|f|ed fire safety issues
appropriately addressed,;

FRNSW have also requested that as soon as practical after the above recommendations have
been tabled and considered that notice of any determination in respect of the recommendations is
forwarded to them in accordance with Schedule 5, Part 8, clause 17(4) of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

COUNCIL INVESTIGATION OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS:

As a result of a site inspection undertaken by Council investigation officers it is recommended that

Council exercise its powers to give a notice of intention (NOI) for a Fire Safety Order under Section
9.34 and Schedule 5, Part 2 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 to address

the fire safety deficiencies at 53, 53A and 53B Bourke Road, Alexandria identified by FRNSW and

Council’s building officer.

The issue of a fire safety order will ensure that suitable fire safety systems are in position
throughout the identified buildings to provide improved and adequate provisions for fire safety

Further, as a result of site inspection undertaken by Council investigation officers it is
recommended that the owner of the building at premises 51 Bourke Road Alexandria be issued
with written instructions to rectify the identified fire safety deficiencies noted by FRNSW.

It is recommended that Council not exercise its powers to give a Fire Safety Order in relation to
premises 51 Bourke Road Alexandria at this time.

Follow-up compliance inspections will be undertaken by a Council investigation officer to ensure
already identified fire safety matters are suitably addressed and that compliance with the terms of
Councils correspondence and the recommendations of FRNSW occur.

The owners of properties 51, 53A and 53B Bourke Road Alexandria will also be advised to engage
an appropriately qualified person to undertake a detailed review of the external wall cladding to
ensure that the product installed complies with the relevant requirements of the National
Construction Code (Volume One).

That the Commissioner of FRNSW be advised of Council’s actions and outcomes.

Referenced documents:

No# Document type Trim reference

A1. Fire and Rescue NSW report 2018/080893-01

A2, Fire and Rescue NSW report 2018/080893-02

A3. Locality Plan (cadastre) 2018/080893-03

A4 Attachment cover sheet . 2018/080893-04

Trim Reference: 2018/080893 CSM reference No#: 1840156
C:\Users\chanm\TRIM\Offline Records (CS\CSM - Documents - CUSTOMER SERVICE - REGISTRATION(2)\Internal
Correspondence - Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation Report. DOCX/April 2018-CM Page 4 of 4

23




AWk [Fire &
NSW |Rescue NSW

File Ref. No: BFS17/2873 (2125)
TRIM Ref. No: D18/4618

Contact: Station Officer -
29 January 2018

General Manager

City of Sydney

GPO Box 1591

SYDNEY NSW 2001

Email: council@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au

Attention: Manager Compliance/Fire Safety

Dear Sir / Madam

Re:  INSPECTION REPORT ‘UNITEX’  51-53 BOURKE STREET
ALEXANDRIA (“the premises”)

Fire & Rescue NSW (FRNSW) received correspondence in relation to the adequacy of the
provision for fire safety in connection with ‘the premises’.

The correspondence stated that:
*  Fire exits within the workspace are constantly blocked.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 119T (1) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act 1979 (EP&A Act), an inspection of ‘the premises’ on 16 January 2018 was conducted by
Authorised Fire Officers from the Fire Safety Compliance Unit of FRNSW.

The inspection was limited to the following:

* A visual inspection of the essential Fire Safety Measures as identified in this report
only.

* A conceptual overview of the building, where an inspection had been conducted
without copies of the development ¢onsent or copies of the approved floor plans.

Fire & Rescue NSW : : www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 1 of 4 © Copyright State Govt NSW

24




ABN 12593473 110
Locked Bag 12

Greenacre NSW 2190 ) L2

On behalf of the Commissioner of FRNSW, the following comments are provided for %
your information in accordance with Section 119T (4) and Section 121ZD (1) of the EP&A
Act. Please be advised that Section 121ZD (2) requires any report or recommendation from

the Commissioner of FRNSW to be tabled at a Council meeting.

COMMENTS

This report is limited to observations and sections of the building accessed at the time of the
inspection. As such, this report lists potential deviations from the National Construction Code
2016, Volume 1 Building Code of Australia (N CC). Please be advised that whilst the report is
not an exhaustive list of non-compliances, the items as listed outline concerns that may
contradict development consent approval or relate to the building’s age. In this regard, it is
council’s discretion as the appropriate regulatory authority to conduct its own investigation and
consider the most appropriate action.

The following items were identified as concerns during the inspection:

1. Essential Fire Safety Measures
1A.  Annual Fire Safety Statement (AFSS) and a Fire Safety Schedule (FSS)— An AFSS
~ and FSS could not be located. As such may not be considered prominently
displayed at the premises contrary to the requirements of Clause 177 of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 (EP&A Reg).

1B Pire Shutter — It is unclear whether the fire sprinklér system and the roller shutters

achieved the required fire resistance level required for separation between the two
warehouses in accordance with Clause C3.5 of the NCC. In addition, the following
were present at the time of the inspection.

A.  Two of the three automatic closing fire shutters were prohibited from
operation as a screwdriver had been inserted in the lowering mechanism
preventing operation.

B.  Display racks were installed under the fire shutter tracks which would
interfere with the fire shutter operation.
1C.
Fire Hose Reel (FHR) — The FHR cabinet on level two, outside On Trend Fashion,
has PVC pipework connecting floors without adequate protection to prevent fire
spread between floors contrary to the requirements of Clause C3.12 of the NCC.

1D.
Fire Hydrant System — The two fire hydrant installations installed at the premises
and appear to have different flow rate requirements. The block plans identified as
51-53 Bourke Road and 53 Bourke Road would typically require:
A. The depiction of the other fire hydrant booster assembly installed at the site;

Fire & Rescue NSW ' ABN 12 593 473 110 www fire.nsw.gov.au

Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greena cre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483

firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 2 of 4 © Copyright State Govt NSW
vy g 2 Py

25




B.  The display of the hydrant installation connected to the Unitex warehouse,
the carpark or the commercial storage warehouse at the rear of the premises;

C. Consistent statements regarding the installations, relating to the number of
attack hydrants and the flow rate characteristics within each installation;

D. The location of the drencher isolation valves to be displayed in accordance
with Clause 7.11 (ix) of AS2419.1-2005;
1E.  Block Plan — The block plan on the southern side of the premises depicts that there
is potential for the hydrant installation when boosted by a firefighting appliance
will circulate around the hydrant booster assembly and may not provide pressure
and flow to the attack hydrants in the installation;

1F.  Drenchers — It appears that the fire sprinkler drenchers are integrated in the fire
hydrant installation to protect the opening at the roller shutter in the east building
carpark. At the time of the inspection, the isolation valve or signage for the
drenchers contrary to the requirements of Clause 3.3.2 of Australian Standard (AS)
2118.2-2010 could not be located.

2. Egress -

2A.  Trip Hazard — The path of travel to open space on the northern side of the building
was impeded by a sewerage inspection plate that was raised approximately 150mm
above the finished path level.

2B. Floor to Ceiling Height — The north-western fire stair of the warehouse (adjacent
to Rack No. W2-20-M2) incorporates a concrete member which is installed ata
height of approximately 1700mm which appears contrary to the requirements of
Clause D1.6 of the NCC.
2C. :
Egress General_ly:
A. Of the two doors located adjacent to the eastern fire roller shutter in the
warehouse:
1. One was not capable of being opened as the handle did not appear to be
installed in accordance with Clause D2.21 of the NCC.
ii.  The path of travel from the second door appears to be obstructed by a
100mm steel pipe. -
B. Multiple fire isolated tunnels did not appear to be provided with:
1. Adequate artificial lighting contrary to the requirements of Clause F4.4
of the NCC.
ii.  Emergency lights contrary to the requirements of Clause E4.2 of the
NCC.
iii. Safe passage for evacuating occupants as there appears to be a trip
hazards in the form of PVC pipes and broken pallet.
Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12593473110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greena cre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483

firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 3 of 4 - © Copyright State Govt NSW




3. Compartmentation
3A.  Fire Isolated Compartment — The electrical cables passing through the floor of the
electrical cabinet on level two, outside On Trend Fashion, are not adequately
protected, due to unfilled gaps in the fire pillows contrary to the requirements of
Clause C3.12 of the NCC;

3B.  Compartmentation Generally — It appears that the office and warehouse parts are
not provided with adequate safeguards resulting from fire contrary to the
requirements of Clause C2.8 of the NCC.

4. Generally

4A. Hydrant Audit — Given the anomalies observed of the hydrant system, it may be in
council’s interest to conduct an audit of the fire hydrant installation to determine:

A.  Pressure and flow requirements, based on the largest fire compartment at the
building in accordance with Table 2.1 of AS2419.1-2005;

B.  Coverage to all portions of the premises can be achieved in accordance with
Clause 3.2 of AS2419.1-2005;

C. The Unitex warehouse and basement parts are connected to a fire hydrant
installation in accordance with Clause E1.3 of the NCC.

FRNSW is therefore of the opinibn that there are inadequate provisions for fire safety within
the building.

RECOMMENDATIONS
FRNSW recommends that Council:

a. Inspect and address any other deficiencies identified on ‘the premises’, and require item
no. 1 through to item no. 4 of this report be addressed appropriately.

This matter is referred to Council as the appropriate regulatory authority. FRNSW therefore
awaits Council’s advice regarding its determination in accordance with Section 121ZD (4) of
the EP&A Act.

Should you have any enquiries regarding any of the above matters, please do not hesitate to
contact Station Officer — of FRNSW’s Fire Safety Compliance Unit on (02) 9742
7434. Please ensure that you refer to file reference BFS17/2873 (2125) for any future
correspondence in relation to this matter.

Yours faithfully ‘ i

Building Surveyor
Fire Safety Compliance Unit

Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greena cre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au i Page 4 of 4 © Copyright State Govt NSW

27




AWk | Fire & "
NSW |Rescue NSW

File Ref. No:  BFS18/529 (2874)
TRIM Ref. No: D18/14880

Contact: Station Officer -

9 March 2018

General Manager
City of Sydney

GPO Box 1591
SYDNEY NSW 2001

Email: council@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au

Attention: Manager Compliance/Fire Safety

Dear General Manager

Re: INSPECTION REPORT ‘UNITEX” 51 BOURKE ROAD ALEXANDRIA &
53 BOURKE ROAD ALEXANDRIA

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 9.32 (1) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act 1979 (EP&A Act), an inspection of ‘the premises’ on 1 March 2018 was conducted by
Authorised Fire Officers from the Fire Safety Compliance Unit of Fire and Rescue NSW
(FRNSW). The inspection was conducted in the company of

City of Sydney Council officer — following a request for a joint inspection. Also
present were the owners of 51 Bourke Road Alexandria and 53 Bourke Road Alexandria.

The inspection was limited to the following:

* A visual inspection of the essential Fire Safety Measures as identified in this report
only. |

* A conceptual overview of the building, where an inspection had been conducted
without copies of the development consent or copies of the approved floor plans.

On behalf of the Commissioner of FRNSW, the following comments are provided for your
information in accordance with Section 9.32 (4) and Schedule 5, Part 8, Section 17 (1) of the
EP&A Act. Please be advised that Schedule 5, Part 8, Section 17 (2) requires any report or
recommendation from the Commissioner of FRNSW to be tabled at a Council meeting.

Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434 Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2191
: " PR RS N
F02) 97427483 ﬁuaaxu_\'gg,um.lmgvvzm Tage L orJ CICOPYITZIT STae OUvE NS W e

28




COMMENTS

At council’s request, the joint inspection was conducted to clarify a number of items listed in
FRNSW’s Inspection Report, dated 24 January 2018 [D18/4617] (attached). As requested,
FRNSW?’s report was discussed including the additional items that are now identified in this
report:

51 Bourke Road

1. Fire Hydrant Block Plan.

1A. Fire Hydrant Block Plan — The block plan identified the fire hydrant booster
installation as serving 51-53 Bourke Road. This appears to cause confusion as 51
Bourke Road and 53 Bourke Road are distinctly separate properties, as such there
is insufficient information that explains this on the block plan.

A. The location of the ‘Fire Hydrant Block Plan’ may need to:
a. Be located directly behind the fire hydrant booster assembly;
b. Be a minimum size of A3;

c. In addition to the identifying the location of the drencher
isolation valve in accordance with Clause 7.11 of AS2419.1-
2005, it is suggested the following is also included:

i. The site identifier lettering be 15mm in height; e.g.
51 BOURKE ROAD ALEXANDRIA
ii. Include a precinct plan highlighting the area of coverage.

1B. Isolation Valve — Did not identify the location of the drencher isolation valve in
accordance with Clause 7.11 of Australian Standard (AS) 2419.12005;

2. Sprinkler System — The drencher isolation valve installed adjacent to the car park fire
~ shutter was not labelled. Typically, isolation valves are labelled in accordance with
Figure 3.3 of AS2118.2-2010.

53 Bourke Road

3. Fire hydrant installation,

3A. Fire Hydrant Block Plan — As discussed in item 1(1A), the block plan at 53 Bourke
Road was similar to 51 Bourke Road, in that the plan did not provide adequate
information to differentiate the buildings at the precinct.

A. it may be beneficial for the owners to consider the following in relation
to the Fire Hydrant Block Plan:

Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 20of 5 © Copyright State Govt NSW

29




a. Locate the fire hydrant block plan directly behind the fire
hydrant booster assembly;

b. Amend the size of the plan to be a minimum size of A3;

c¢. In addition to the identifying the location of the drencher
isolation valve in accordance with Clause 7.11 of AS2419 1-
2003, it is suggested the following is also included:

1. The site identifier lettering be 15mm in height; e.g.
53 BOURKE ROAD ALEXANDRIA
ii. Include a precinct plan highlighting the area of coverage.

3B. Pressure & Flow — Based on observations at the time, it is unclear if there is
adequate pressure and flow in the fire hydrant installation. Typically, pressures
and flows for hydrants are installed to comply with the requirements of Clause
2.3.3 0f AS2419.1-2005. In this regard, it may be beneficial for council to compel
the owners to confirm the pressure and flow for the ‘hydrant installation.
Moreover, that the pressure and flow comply with the relevant standard of
performance of AS2419.1 to assist firefighting operations and to protect life and

property.
4. Sprinkler Installation

4A. Sprinkler Coverage — Observations of the sprinkler installation indicated that it did
not extend to the office portion of the building. At first glance, it appears that
there was no separation provided between the warehouse and office areas. Given
this observation, it may be beneficial for council to review its records and confirm
whether the sprinkler installation should extend to the office portions of the
building in accordance with Clause E1.5
— Occupancies with Excessive Hazard;

4B. Fire Service Key — Forced entry may be required in an emergency as the fire
sprinkler pumproom door is not fitted with a fire service ‘003’ key;

4C. Sprinkler Valve Set — Typically, sprinkler valve sets are installed to comply with
Specification E1.5-6 of the National Construction Code 2016 Volume One,
Building Code of Australia (NCC). At the time of the inspection, the sprinkler
valve set was not housed in an enclosure.

4D. Lagging — Typically, exhaust systems are lagged to protect persons from injury in
accordance with Clause 9.3.5 of AS1941-2013. Observations at the time revealed that both
fire sprinkler pumpsets have not been lagged. 5. Egress

5A. Travel Distances — Atbﬁrst glance, it appears that a required exit between the Unitex
Carpark and the storage facility has been closed off by a besser block wall. This

Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483

firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 3 of 5 © Copyright State Govt NSW




appears to create extended travel distances. Council may need to review it’s
development consents to confirm whether the travel distances in the basement
storage area is contrary to the requirements of Clause D1.4 of the NCC.

6. Protection of Openings

6A. Roller Shutters — All roller shutters between the two warehouses do not appear to
be capable of manual operation or automatic operation. Typically rollers shutters
are to comply with the requirements of Clause C3.5 of the NCC.

FRNSW is therefore of the opinion that there are inadequate provisions for fire safety within
the building.

RECOMMENDATIONS

FRNSW recommends that Council:

a. Inspect and address any other deficiencies identified on ‘the precinct” and require item
no. 1 through to item no. 6 of this report be addressed appropriately.

This matter is referred to Council as the appropriate regulatory authority. FRNSW therefore
awaits Council’s advice regarding its determination in accordance with Schedule 5, Part 8,
Section 17(4) of the EP&A Act. °

Should you have any enquiries regarding any of the above matters, please do not hesitate to
contact Station Officer [l of FRNSWs Fire Safety Compliance Unit on (02) 9742
7434. Please ensure that you refer to file reference BFS18/529 (2874) for any future
correspondence in relation to this matter.

Yours faithfully

Building Surveyor |

Fire Safety Compliance Unit

Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483

firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 40of 5 © Copyright State Govt NSW




Fire & Rescue NSW

Unclassified

Unclassified
ABN 123593 473 110

www. fire.nsw.gov.au

Community Safety Directorate
Fire Safety Compliance Unit

Locked Bag 12
Greenacre NSW 2190

T (02) 9742 7434
F (02) 9742 7483

firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au

Page 5of 5
32

© Copyright State Govt NSW




Attachment D

Council Officer Inspection Report,
200 Pitt Street, Waterloo

33




tt Stree't, Wate

S

200P

Copyright ©2018 City of Sydney Council & Land and Property Information & Sinclair Knight Merz.
All Rights Reserved. This map has been compiled from various sources and the publisher and/or
contributors accept no responsibility for any injury, loss or damage arising from the use, error or
omissions therein. While all care is taken to ensure a high degree of accuracy, users are invited to

notify Council of any map discrepancies. No part of this map may be reproduced without permission. 3 4

1:1,000 atA4
07/03/2018

Meters




Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation Report
Schedule 5, clause 17 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the
Act)

File: CSM 1850739 Officer: Luke Jeffree Date: 6 March 2018

Premises: 200 Pitt Street, Waterloo — Jémes Cook Building

Executive Summary:

Council received correspondence from the Commissioner of Fire and Rescue NSW (FRNSW) in
relation to the subject premises with respect to matters of fire safety.

The site contains two high rise residential apartment towers within a public housing estate owned
by New South Wales Land and Housing Corporation (NSW L&HC).

The site has an area of 19646m? bounded by Ragland Street to the north, Wellington Street to the
south, George Street to the west and Pitt Street to the east.

The building, the subject of the FRNSW enquiry is located adjacent to the Pitt Street property
frontage and is known as ‘James Cook’ (200 Pitt Street, Waterloo). It comprises of a seventeen
storey residential apartment building.

Council investigations have revealed that the premises are deficient in fire safety and egress
provisions in the following areas:

® Inadequate fire detection and alarm communication system to alert people and assist
coordination during an emergency;

(i) Provision of adequate fire safety measures and systems, in relation to the building’s height,
to restrict the spread of fire/smoke to such an extent to allow occupants to safely evacuate
the building during a fire emergency;

(iii) Internal exit stairWays have balustrades too low, with excessive gaps in them posing a risk
to the likelihood of a person falling from the stairways;

(iv) Inadequate fire resisting construction to prevent the spread of fire (defective exit doors &
lack of smoke seals to electrical cupboards);

Council investigations have revealed that the premises are deficient in the provisions for fire safety
and that an order under Section 9.34 and Schedule 5 of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979 is required to be issued so as to ensure and promote adequate facilities for
fire safety/fire safety awareness.

Observation of the external features of the building did not identify the existence of metallic sheet
cladding on the facade of the building.

C:\Users\chann\TRIM\Offline Records (CS)\CSM - Documents - CUSTOMER SERVICE - REGISTRATION\Internal
Correspondence - Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation Report. DOCX/April 2018-CM Page 1

of 3 35




Chronology:

Date

Event

16/02/2018

FRNSW correspondence received regarding premises' James Cook, 200 Pitt Street,
Waterloo.

FRNSW conducted an inspection 13 February 2018. As a result of their inspection an
Emergency Fire Safety Order 6 was issued on 14 February 2018, under s.121B of the Act.
The order required remedial works to the building’s fire alarm system.

A desktop review by Council officer found that the building has been subject to several fire
safety upgrading works during the last 20 years that were considered to be suitable
measures at the time to provide adequate provision for fire safety of occupants in the event
of a fire.

19/02/2018

An initial inspection of the subject premises was undertaken by a Council officer. The
inspection revealed that the works listed in FRNSW’s emergency order had not been
completed. However, it was noted the compliance period of the order does not expire until 1
March 2018.

Also, the inspection revealed a number of additional fire safety deficiencies in the premises
including; "

1. Whether adequate fire safety measures and systems were installed to restrict the
spread of fire/smoke relative to the building’s height;

2. Internal exit stairways have balustrades too low, with excessive gaps in them;

3. Whether an adequate alarm communication system was installed to assist coordination
during an emergency;

4. Defective exit doors & lack of smoke seals to electrical cupboards;

28/02/2018

A further inspection of the subject building was undertaken by Council officer with the
building managers and their fire contractors.

The inspection revealed that the works listed in the emergency order had not been
completed as there were still several faults (approx. 8 faults) on the building’s fire panel.
At this time the building managers and their fire contractors were taking necessary actions
to clear the faults and comply with emergency order. The building managers and fire
contractors were unable to explain why the fire panel had accumulated the faults and
isolations identified by FRNSW.

Council’s officer explained the various fire safety deficiencies identified during the inspection
carried out on 19 February 2018.

A short test was performed on the building’s fire alarm system (at the fire panel) by the fire
contractor to sound the alarm briefly. The Council officer found that the alarm activated
correctly, but considered that a further test of the warning system’s sound pressure level is
required to ensure compliance with current regulatory requirements.

An audit of the fire safety measures including the smoke detection and alarm system will be
required as part of the intended Council fire safety order. The audit will ensure any
deficiencies in the smoke detection and alarm are rectified including the installation of
suitable detectors & warning speakers, as required.

C:\Users\chann\TRIM\Offline Records (CS\CSM - Documents - CUSTOMER SERVICE - REGISTRATION\Internal
Correspondence - Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation Report. DOCX/April 2018-CM Page 2

of 3

36




02/03/2018 Advice given by the owner’s representative to Council & FRNSW confirming all faults and
isolations identified in FRNSW’s emergency order had been rectified.

Follow-up compliance inspections will be undertaken by a Council investigation officer as
part of the fire safety order compliance process to ensure that the requirements of the
orders are complied with.

FIRE AND RESCUE NSW REPORT:

References: [D18/9339; 2018/068185]

Fire and Rescue NSW conducted an inspection of the subject premises on 13 February 2018.
Issues

The report from FRNSW detailed there were fire safety matters that were identified as a significant
concern to FRNSW, specifically a series of faults and isolations to the automatic fire detection and
alarm system. These matters were identified as constituting a serious risk to safety.

An Emergency Order was issued by FRNSW and a copy of this order was attached to FRNSW's
correspondence. The correspondence also advised that a supplementary report will be provided to

Council in due course.

FRNSW Recommendations

FRNSW have provided the above order under sections 119T, 121ZC, 121ZD and 121ZE of the Ac
with no specific recommendations. :

COUNCIL INVESTIGATION OFFICE

ompli

RRECOMMENDATIONS:

Issue | Emel
Order(NOIy = |

As a result of a site inspection undertaken by Council investigation officers it is recommended that
Council exercise its powers to give a notice of intention (NOI) for a Fire Safety Order under Section
9.34 & Schedule 5, Part 2 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 to address the
fire safety deficiencies identified by FRNSW and Council’s building officer.

The issue of a fire safety order will ensure that suitable fire safety systems are in position
throughout the building to provide improved and adequate provisions for fire safety

That the Commissioner of FRNSW be advised of Council’s actions and outcomes.

Referenced documents:

No# Document type Trim reference
A1l Fire and Rescue NSW Report dated 14 February 2018 | 2018/078074-01
A2. Locality Plan (cadastre) 2018/078074-02
A3 Attachment cover sheet 2018/078074-03
Trim Reference: 2018/078074 CSM reference No#: 1850739

C:\Users\chann\TRIM\Offline Records (CS\CSM - Documents - CUSTOMER SERVICE - REGISTRATION\Internal
Correspondence - Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation Report. DOCX/April 2018-CM Page 3

of 3 37




Unclassified

i |Fire &
i | Rescue NS\
File Ref. No: BFS18/356 (2714)

TRIM Ref. No:
Contact:

GOVERNMENT

14 February 2018

New South Wales Land and Housing Corporation
223-239 Liverpool Road ‘

ASHFIELD NSW 2131

CC Email: facsinfo@facs.nsw.qov.au

Dear Sir / Madam
RE: EMERGENCY ORDER
‘JAMES COOK’

200 PITT STREET, WATERLOO(“the premises”)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1 19T(1) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act 1979 (EP&A Act), an inspection of ‘the premises’ on 13 February 2018 was conducted by
Authorised Fire Officers from the Fire Safety Compliance Unit of Fire and Rescue NSW
(FRNSW).

At the time of the inspection there were fire safety matters that were identified as a significant
concern to FRNSW, as the activity or deficiencies identified constitute an emergency or a-
serious risk to safety. As a result an Emergency Fire Safety Order (Order No. 6) is issued in
accordance with the provisions of Section 121B of the EP&A Act (copy attached).

A report of the inspection and a copy of the Order will also be forwarded to City of Sydney
Council in accordance with the requirements of Sections 119T, 121ZC, 121ZD and 121ZE of
the EP&A Act. Further inspections will be conducted by FRNSW to assess compliance with
the terms of the Order.

Should you have any enquiries regarding any of the above matters, please do not hesitate to
contact SIS of FRNSW's Fire Safety Compliance Unit on (02) 9742 7434. Please
ensure that you refer to file reference BFS18/356 (2714) for any future correspondence in
relation to this matter.

Youré faithfull

ullding Surveyor
Fire Safety Compliance Unit

CC/-

Department of Family and Community Department of Family and Community

Services Vi
T -
Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 1 © Copyright State Govt NSW

38




Unclassified

Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979
Part 6 - Implementation and Enforcement: Division 2A — Orders
Tables to Section 121B: Emergency Order No. 6 — Fire Safety Order

Please note:

e Pursuant to Section 121ZC (2) of the Act, this Order has been given as an Emergency Order as the
issuing officer believes activity or deficiencies identified constitute an emergency or a serious risk to
safety.

Pursuant to Section 121ZK (2) of the Act, there is no right of appeal against this Order.
Failure to comply with this Order may result in further Orders and/or fines being issued.
Substantial penalties may be imposed under Section 125 of the Act for failure to comply with an Order.

I, _ Building Surveyor
name) (rank)

being an authorised Fire Officer within the meaning of Section 121ZC of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Act 1979, and duly authorised for the purpose, hereby order:

New South Wales Land and Housing Corporation Owner
(name of person whom Order is served) (pasition i.e. owner, building manager)

with respect to the premise

‘JAMES COOK’
200 PITT STREET, WATERLOO (“the premises”)

(name/address of premises to which Order is served)

to do, or refrain from doing, the following things:

1. Ensure the Automatic Fire Detection and Alarm System installed in ‘the premises’ is
fully operational, by:

a. Removing all faults and isolations, displayed on the Fire Indicator Panel (FIP).
The terms of the Order are to be complied with:

By no later than Close of Business on the 1 March 2018.

Unclassified
Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www. fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2180 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 1 © Copyright State Govt NSW

39




Unclassified
The reasons for the issue of this Order are:
a. At the time of the inspection on Tuesday 13 February 2017 the FIP:
i.  displayed forty-two (42) faults on the system.
ii. displayed seven (7) isolations on the system.

b. To ensure that the Automatic Fire Detection and Alarm System is capable to
operating in accordance with the standard of performance it was designed and
installed to.

c. To ensure that fire safety measures installed throughout the premises are maintained
and operating to their standard of performance.

d. Isolations and faults to the Automatic Fire Detection and Alarm System may leave
occupants uhaware of an emergency to allow timely evacuation. This may leave
occupants trapped, as safe evacuation routes may be compromised.

e. To ensure the Automatic Fire Detection and Alarm System is fully operational so that
occupants are provided with early notification of a fire within the premises so that they
may safely evacuate the premises in the event of a fire.

This Order No. 6 was sent by mail on 14 February 2018.

Building Surveyor
Fire Safety Compliance Unit

Unclassified
Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 2 © Copyright State Govt NSW

40




Attachment E

Council Officer Inspection Report,
2A Forsyth Street, Glebe

41




2A FORSYTH STREET, GLEBE

: . il i .
Copyright ©2018 City of Sydney Council & Land and Property Information & Sinclair Knight Merz.
All Rights Reserved. This map has been compiled from various sources and the publisher and/or
contributors accept no responsibility for any injury, loss or damage arising from the use, error or
omissions therein. While all care is taken to ensure a high degree of accuracy, users are invited to 1:1,000 atA4
notify Council of any map discrepancies. No part of this map may be reproduced without permission. 13/03/2018

n
No




Council officer Inspection and Recommendation Report
Schedule 5, clause 17 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the
Act)

File: CSM 1852048 Officer: Hieu Van Luu Date: 5 March 2018

Premises: 2A Forsyth Street, Glebe — Avon Tower

Executive Suminary:

Council received correspondence from the Commissioner of Fire and Rescue NSW (FRNSW) in
relation to the subject premises with respect to matters of fire safety.

Avon Tower is an 8 storey (plus lower ground carpark) residential apartment building, located on
the eastern side of Forsyth Street Glebe between Avon Lane to the north, Arden Lane to the south
and set back to the rear of 2 Forsyth Street. ‘

The building was built in around 1973 and is constructed of masonry walls and concrete floors.

An inspection of the premises undertaken by a Council officer in the presence of an owner’s
representative revealed that the premises are deficient in fire safety and egress provisions in the
following areas:

(i) System design aspects relative to the fire hydrant booster assembly and associated fire
hydrant system;

(i) System design and maintenance aspects of exit sign and other building system
installations in the exit way;

(iii) Safe and dignified emergency egress for occupants to safety evacuate the building in
the event of a fire.

Observation of the external features of the building did not identify the existence of metallic sheet
cladding on the fagade of the building.

It is recommended that a fire safety order under Section 9.34 and Schedule 5, Part 2 of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 is to be issued so as to ensure and promote
adequate facilities for fire safety/fire safety awareness.

Chronology:

Date Event

19/02/2018 | FRNSW correspondence received regarding premises 2A Forsyth Street, Glebe — Avon
Towers.

06/03/2018 | An inspection was undertaken by Council’s building officer in company with an owner’s
representative to review the fire safety issues raised by FRNSW.

In relation to the matters cited within the FRNSW report it is recommended that a fire
safety order under Section 9.34 and Schedule 5, Part 2 of the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act, 1979 is required to be issued so as to address the following fire
safety issues:-

a) The compliance aspects of fire hydrant system provided for the building;

b) The adequacy and maintenance of fire exit signs;

c) The display of annual Fire Safety Statement:

d) Unprotected path of travel for occupants to safety evacuate the building in the

C:\Users\chann\TRIM\Offline Records (CS)\CSM - Documents - CUSTOMER SERVICE - REGISTRATION\Report - 2A Forsyth Street
Glebe - Council officer Inspection and Recommendation Report.DOCX-(z‘M Page 1 of 3




event of a fire;

e) Service cupboards in the required exit are not suitably sealed,

f) Non-compliant latching/locking devices fitted to exit doors and doors in path of
travel to exit doors; and

g) The configuration/operation of apartment entry fire doors/screen security doors.

FRNSW issued an emergency order on 6 December 2017 to the building owner. The
order required remedial works be carried out to the fire hydrant system pump and
associated controls. A reinspection by FRNSW on 14 December 2017 revealed the
order had been complied with. The fire hydrant pump system was compliant during
Council’s inspection.

FIRE AND RESCUE NSW REPORT:

References: BFS17/2232(1514); D18/9576; 2018/100549

Fire and Rescue NSW conducted an inspection of the subject premises on 5 December 2017 in
accordance with the provisions of Section 119T (1) of the Act in response to an enquiry concerning
the adequacy of a unit entry door.

Issues
The report from FRNSW detailed a number of issues, in particular noting:

The compliance aspects of the installed fire hydrant system provided for the building;

The adequacy and maintenance of illuminated exit signs;

The display of annual Fire Safety Statement;

Unprotected path of travel for occupants to safety evacuate the building in the event of a
fire;

Service cupboards in the required exit are not suitably sealed,;

Non-compliant latching/locking devices fitted to exit doors and doors in path of travel to exit
doors; and

7. The configuration/operation of apartment entry fire doors/screen security doors.

ArON =

2

FRNSW issued an emergency order on 6 December 2017 to the building owner. The order
required remedial works be carried out to the fire hydrant system pump and associated controls. A
reinspection by FRNSW on 14 December 2017 revealed the order had been complied with.

FRNSW Recommendations

FRNSW has recommended that Council inspect the premises and require identified items and any
other deficiency identified by Council to be appropriately addressed.

FRNSW have also requested that as soon as practical after the above recommendations have
been tabled and considered that notice of any determination in respect of the recommendations is
forwarded to them in accordance with Section 121ZD (4) of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979.

COUNCIL OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS:

Issue | Emergency-Order | lssue-compliance Gited-Matters Other
‘Order(NOl) letter-of-instruction rectified-

C:\Users\channm\TRIM\Offline Records (CS)\CSM - Documents - CUSTOMER SERVICE - REGISTRATION\Report - 2A Forsyth Street
Glebe - Council officer Inspection and Recommendation Report.DOCXfLI]\./I Page 2 of 3




As a result of a site inspection undertaken by Council investigation officers it is recommended that
Council exercise its powers to give a notice of intention (NOI) for a Fire Safety Order under Section
9.34 and Schedule 5, Part 2 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 to address
the fire safety deficiencies identified by FRNSW and Council’s building officer.

The issue of a fire safety order will ensure that suitable fire safety systems are in position
throughout the building to provide improved and adequate provisions for fire safety.

That the Commissioner of FRNSW be advised of Council’s actions and outcomes.

Referenced documents:

No# Document type Trim reference
A1. Attachment cover sheet 2018/100549-01
A2. Fire and Rescue NSW correspondence 2018/100549-02
A3. Locality Plan 2018/100549-03
Trim Reference: 2018/100549 CSM reference No#: 1852048

C:WUsers\chann\TRIM\Offline Records (CS)\CSM - Documents - CUSTOMER SERVICE - REGISTRATION\Report - 2A Forsyth Street
Glebe - Council officer Inspection and Recommendation Report.DOCXﬁ:%/l Page 30f 3




Unclassified

5?‘@ &

Rescue NSW
File Ref. No: BFS17/2232 (1514)

TRIM Ref. No: D18/9576
Contact:

GOVERNMENT

16 February 2018

General Manager
City of Sydney

GPO Box 1591
SYDNEY NSW 2001

Email: council@cityofsydney.nsw.qov.au

Attention: Manager Compliance/Fire Safety

Dear Sir / Madam
Re: | INSPECTION REPORT
“AVON TOWERS”

2A FORSYTH STREET, GLEBE (“the premises”)

Fire & Rescue NSW (FRNSW) received correspondence on 20 September 2017, in
relation to the adequacy of the provision for fire safety in or in connection with ‘the
premises’. = ‘

The correspondence stated that;

® 2 years ago during the annual smoke alarm testing, the tester and chair of the
building were concerned about my front door not being properly fire proofed.
They said that the door needed fo be replaced, but nothing was done. | have
contacted the strata manager, however, without looking at the door, he insists
that the door is fine, because it has a yellow safely tag on it. Recently there
was a fire in one of the apartments above me, and we needed to be

- evacuated. | am concerned that my front door is not to the standard required

for fire safety. : :

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 119T(1) of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act), an inspection of ‘the premises’ on 5 December
2017 was conducted by Authorised Fire Officers from the Fire Safety Compliance Unit
of FRNSW. '

. Unclassified
Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au ' Page 1 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

46




Unclassified

The inspection was limited to the following:

e A visual inspection of the essential Fire Safety Measures as identified in this

report only.

e A conceptual overview of the building, where fan inspection had been conducted
without copies of the development consent or copies of the approved floor

plans.

On behalf of the Commissioner of FRNSW, the following comments are provided for
your information in accordance with Section 119T(4) and Section 121ZD(1) of the
EP&A Act. Please be advised that Section 121ZD(2) requires any report or
recommendation from the Commissioner of FRNSW to be tabled at a Council meeting.

COMMENTS

The following items were identified as concerns at the time of the inspection:

Essential Services

1. Fire Hydrant System: The fire hydrant system appears to be installed in
accordance with Ordinance 70 and Ministerial Specification No.10.
Notwithstanding this, the following deviations from AS2419.1-2005 have been
identified along with other items of concern:

a. The fire hydrant booster assémbly

Fire & Rescue NSW

The hydrant booster assembly is not located in a position
where it is operable by a fire brigade pumping appliance
located with 8m, contrary to the requirements of Clause 7.3(b)
of AS2419:1-2005.

The hydrant booster assembly is not provided with feed fire
hydrants within 5m of the booster inlets, contrary to the
requirements of Clause 7.4 of AS2419.1-2005. In this regard,
the nearest feed hydrant available is located more than
30 metres away in Forsyth Street.

The hydrant booster assembly is located with 10m frbm a high
voltage electrical substation, contrary to the requirements of
Clause 7.3(f) of AS2419.21-2005.

Boost pressure and test pressure signage was not provided at
the hydrant booster assembly, contrary to the requirements of
Clause 7.10.1 of AS2419.1-2005.

Unclassified

Community Safety Directorate
Fire Safety Compliance Unit

ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Greenacre NSW 2190 F {02) 9742 7483

firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au

Page 2 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

47




Unclassified

b. Block Plan — The hydrant booster assembly and the pump room are
not provided with a block plan, contrary to the requirements of Clause
7.11 of AS2419.1-2005. ,

c. The required system performance of each internal fire hydrant outlet,
would likely fail to achieve the required flow rates and pressures
stipulated in Clause 2.3 of AS2419.1-2005, with the current pump
configuration. '

d. Storz aluminium alloy delivery couplings, which are compatible with
FRNSW appliances and equipment, are not provided to all hydrant
valves throughout the premises, contrary to the requirements of
Clauses 7.1 and 8.5.11.1 of AS2419.1-2005.

e. Hydrant Pumpset — The fire hydrant pump did not appear to be
maintained and capable of operating to the standard of performance
from when it was first designed and installed, contrary to the
requirements of Clause 4.2 of AS 1851-2012 and Clause 182 of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 (EP&A
Regulation). The following issues were identified as concerns at the
time of inspection: '

1. The “Main Isolator” function for the diesel pump was switched
off / isolated.

ii. Thé following faults were displayed on the diesel pump control
panel: - | : :
s - “Auto Start Battery Fail”

¢ “Auto Start Charger Fail”
o' “Manual Start Charger Fail”
iii. - The Fire Indicator Panel (FIP) was displaying a “pump fail”.
2. Exit signs — The exit sign ébove the exit door on the carpark level (adjacent to

the roller shutter) had not been maintained and was not illuminated, contrary to
the requirements of Clause 182 of the EP&A Regulation.

3. Annual Fire Safety Statement (AFSS) and Fire Safety Schedule (FSS) - A copy
of the current AFSS and FSS were not prominently displayed within the building
in accordance with Clause 177 of the EP&A Regulation.

Access and Egress

4. Travel via fire isolated exits — The path of travel from the point of discharge of
the fire-isolated stairway necessitates passing within 6m of unprotected
openings in the southern elevation on the ground floor, contrary to the
requirements of Clause D1.7(c) of the National Construction Code Volume One
Building Code of Australia (NCC).

Unclassified
Fire & Rescue NSW : ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
GCommunity Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit ) . Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483

firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 3 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

48




Unclassified

5. The communication cupboards located in the public corridors contain doorways
which are not suitably sealed against smoke spreading from the enclosure,
contrary to the requirements of Clause D2.7(d) of the NCC.

6. Operation of latch — Doors in the required exits or forming part of the required
exits throughout ‘the premises’, contain round tulip style handies in lieu of a
lever handle, contrary to the requirements of Clause D2.21 of the NCC.

7. Operation of latch — The security gate in the carpark level, adjacent to the lift
lobby, is located in the path of travel to the second exit door and is not readily
openable without a key from the side that faces a person seeking egress,
contrary to Clause D2.21 of the NCC. =

Compartmentation and Separation

8. Bounding construction — Screen security doors have been installed on the
outside of multiple Sole Occupancy Unit (SOU) entry doors throughout ‘the
premises’. FRNSW are of the opinion that screen doors promote the occupants
to ‘chock open’ the SOU entry door, contrary to the requirements of Clause
C3.11 of the NCC, which requires a doorway in a Class 2 SOU be protected by
a door which is equipped with a device which returns the door to the fully closed
position immediately after each opening.

FRNSW is therefore of the opinion that there are inadequate provisions for fire safety
within the building. ‘

FIRE SAFETY ORDER NO. 6

The inspecting Authorised Fire Officers from the Fire Safety Compliance Unit of
FRNSW issued an Order No. 6, dated 6 December 2017, in accordance with the
provisions of Section 121B of the EP&A Act; to have item no. 1(e) of this report
rectified.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 121ZE of the EP&A Act, a copy of the
Order is attached for your information. FRNSW has conducted further inspections of
the building to assess compliance with the terms of this Order.

In this regard, FRNSW does not consider Council is required to take action in relation
to item no. 1(e) of this report.

RE-INSPECTION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 119T(1)(b) of the EP&A Act and Clause 189(a)
of the EP&A Regulation, an inspection of ‘the premises’ on 14 December 2017 was

conducted by Authorised Fire Officers from the Fire Safety Compliance Unit of
FRNSW.

Unclassified
Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 5093 473 110 ~ www fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 4 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

49




Unclassified

At the time of the inspection, the terms of ‘the order’ issued on ‘the premises’ were
compliant. Please be advised that ‘the order is not an exhaustive list of non-
compliances, it is at Council’s discretion to inspect and address any other deficiencies
identified on ‘the premises’.

RECOMMENDATIONS
FRNSW recommends that Council:

a. Inspect éhd address any other deficiencies identified on ‘thé premises’, and
require item no. 1(a) through to item 1 (d) and item 2 through to item no. 8 of
this report be addressed appropriately.

b. Compel the owners to upgrade the fire hydrant system to comply with
AS2419.1-2005, to address item no. 1(a) to item no. 1(d) of this report.

This matter is referred to Council as the appropriate regulatory authority. FRNSW
therefore awaits Council's advice regarding its determination in accordance with
Section 121ZD (4) of the EP&A Act.

Should you have any engui garding any of the above matters, please do not
hesitate to contact Wof FRNSW's Fire Safety Compliance Unit on (02)
9742 7434. Please ensure that you refer to file reference BFS17/2232 (1514) for any
future correspondence in relation to this matter.

!

Yours faithfully |

uilding Surveyor o
Fire Safety Compliance Unit

Attachment: [Appendix 1 — Emergency Fire Safety Order 6, dated 6 December 2017 — 2 pages]

Unclassified
Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 583 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 5 of 7 @© Copyright State Govt NSW

50




Unclassified

Appendix 1 — Emergency Fire Safety Order

Unciaseitiad

Wik | Fire &
NSW | Rescue NSW

Emergency Fire Saf&iy Order

Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979
Part 6 - implemamiation and Enforcemant; Division 24 — Orders
Tables fo Section 1218: Emergency Ordor No. 6 - Fire Safety Order

Plaase note:

o Pursuant 1o Saction 11ZC (2} of the Act, this Order has been given as an Emergency Order as Me
issiiing officer beffeves sciivily or deficiencies iventifisd constifile Bn emengency or & sedious ngk fo
safely. ;

Purguart to Sectior 1212K (2] of the Ast. thare is no right of appsal against this Order.
Failure fo comply with thiz Grder may result in further Orders andior fings being issusd,
Subsiantia! peneities may be imposed under Sechua 125 of the Act for failure fo comply with an Order.

L e Building Surveyor &

Anamel {tank? SELFRCET |

baing an authorised Fire Officer within the meaning of Section 1212C of the Ervironmentat
Planning and Assessment Act 1979, and duly autharised for the purpose, hareby order.

The Owaers of Strata Plan Mo. 7765 . Qwmner

inmre ol pemon whoen Orter ¥ vuread) IANEHION i@ awner budiing mManage:
with respect o the premise

“AVON TOWERS'
2A FORSYTH STREET, GLEBE ("the promises”)

inamaiaaress of prmresas v which Order & served}
10 do, or refrain from doing, the following things:

1 Ensure the fire hydrant system installed in ‘the pramises’ is capabla of operating in
accardance with the relevant standadd of perfarmance it was designed and installed,
by:

a. Rectifying the faults and solations displayed on the diesel pump control panal.

b. Maintaining the hydrant pump system so that it continually operates without
any isolations. faults or failures

Uncingsified
Fira B Rosbin NIV AR 12581403 1NIEG everer, Fro. rabvs. 30V oy
!:‘;otmxunlty Safaly Direciorase Lecknd Bag - I T2 @742 v434
Fire Safaty Comnplsos Unt Grounyote §5W 2190 F102) 5742 T48%
fircnaterygdinn. mw.gov.ae o “Page | B Copyrlpht Stote Gous NGW

Unclassified

Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 6 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

51




Unclassified

Unclassitiad

The terms of the Qrder are to be complisd with:

By no latar than 12:00 hours on Thursday 14 December 2017,

The reasons for the issue of this Order sre:

a, At the time of the inspection the “Main isolator” function for the diesel pump was
switchad off / isolated,

b. At the time of the inepection the following faulls were displayed on the diesel pump
control panel.

i “Auto Start Battery Fail"
il “Auto Stant Charger Fail"
W ‘Manual Starl Charger Fail"
c. The Fire Indicator Panel (FIP) was displaying a "pump fail".

d To ensure that the fire hydrant system is capable of operating in accordance with the
standard of performance it was designed and instalied to.

¢ To ensure that the fire hydrant system is capable of providing the operational
requirements of the attending fire brigade

f. Toensure that fire safety measures nstalled throughout the premises are maintained
and operating to their standard of parformance.

a. To ensure cbmplianoe with the requirements of Clause 182 of the Environmenta
Ptanning and Asssssmant Regulation 2000.

This Order No & was sent by mail on 6 December 2047,

Fira Safety Compliance Unit

Unglassified

Fire & Remcuz NSW ’ B ABM 12 583 473 110 sharv fira. naw, gy, au

‘Cummunily Safaty Caracarate Lockixd Fag 17 V02 8742 1434

Fire Baluty Cormplangs Uit  Conaracre NS 24K ‘ F {02y 8742 7483

dirunaturpiica now.goy. su Pago 2 B Rapyrpnt Suts Govt KW

Unclassified

Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2180 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 7 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

52




Attachment F

Council Officer Inspection Report,
42 Morehead Street, Redfern

53




42 'Morehead Stréet, Redfefh

Copyright €2018 City of Sydney Council & Land and Property information & Sinclair Knight Merz.

All Rights Reserved, This map has been compiled from various scurces and the publisher andfor 19 38 75 Meters
contributors accept no responsibility for any Injury, loss or damage anising from the use, error or

omissions therein, While all care is taken to ensure a high degree of accuracy, users are invited to 1:1,500 atad

notify Council of any map discrepancies. No part of this map may be reproduced without penmission, 08/03/2018

54




Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation Report
Schedule 5, clause17 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the
Act)

File: CSM 1854239 Officer: Luke Jeffree Date: 6 March 2018

Premises: 42 Morehead Street, Redfern - McKell Building (55 Walker Street)

Executive Summary:

Council received correspondence from the Commissioner of Fire and Rescue NSW (FRNSW) in
relation to the subject premises with respect to matters of fire safety.

The premises consists of a 10 storey residential apartment building known as ‘McKell Building’
owned by New South Wales Land and Housing Corporation (NSW L&HC). The site is bounded by
Redfern Street to the north, Kettle Street to the south, Morehead Street to the east and Walker
Street to the west.

Council investigations have revealed that the premises are deficient in fire safety and egress
provisions in the following areas:

(i) Inadequate fire detection and alarm communication system to alert people and assist
coordination during an emergency;

(i) Internal exit stairways are not fire isolated to protect evacuating persons so as to safely
egress in a fire scenario and assist FRNSW carry out search and rescue and fire-fighting;

(iii) Provision of adequate fire safety measures and systems, in relation to the building’s height,
to restrict the spread of fire/smoke to such an extent to allow occupants to safely evacuate
the building during a fire emergency;

(iv)  Inadequate fire resisting construction to prevent the spread of fire at services riser shafts;

(v) Poor fire safety management systems (no fire hydrant block plan) to assist FRNSW
operations;

Council investigations have revealed that the premises are deficient in the provisions for fire safety
and that an Order under Section 9.34 and Schedule 5, Part 2 of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979 (the Act) is required to be issued so as to ensure and promote adequate
facilities for fire safety/fire safety awareness.

Observation of the external features of the building did not identify the existence of metallic sheet
cladding on the facade of the building.

Chronology:

Date Event

21/02/2018 | FRNSW correspondence received regarding premises McKell Building, 55 Walker
Street, Redfern [known under Council records as 42 Morehead Street, Redfern]

This correspondence contained an Emergency Fire Safety Order 6, which was
issued by FRNSW under s.121B of the Act.

The Order was issued on 28 August 2017 and was sent to Council on 21 February
2018 pursuant to s.121ZE of the Act.

The Order was partially complied with on 18 October 2017 with the battery and bell

Schedule 5, clause17 C:\Users\chanm\TRIM\Offline Records (CS)\CSM - Documents - CUSTOMER SERVICE -
REGISTRATION(2)\Internal Correspondence - Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation
Report. DOCX/April 2018 -CM Page 1 of 355




faults having been rectified on fire panel.

FRNSW advise that in their opinion that compliance with their order won'’t be
achieved and have recommended Council take action to address the deficiencies
with the smoke detection and alarm system.

A desktop review by a Council officer found that the building has been subject to
several fire safety upgrading works at various times during the last 15 years that
were considered to be suitable measures at the time to provide adequate provision
for fire safety of occupants in the event of a fire.

28/02/2018 | An inspection of the subject premises was undertaken by a Council officer. The
inspection revealed that the works listed in the emergency order had not been
completed.

The Council officer observed that the effective height of building appeared to be
more than 25 m as considered by FRNSW in their correspondence.

The inspection verified the lack of signage (block plan) at the fire hydrant booster
assembly and discrepancies mentioned in FRNSW correspondence regarding fire
hydrant system standard of performance.

Also the inspection revealed a number of additional fire safety deficiencies in the
premises;

1. Internal exit stairways not adequately fire isolated so as to provide for the safe
evacuation of occupants;

2. Lack of fire resisting construction at services riser shafts;

It is noted that the building has been subject to several fire safety upgrading works
at various times during the last 15 years that were considered to be suitable
measures at the time to-provide adequate provision for fire safety of occupants in
the event of a fire. Notwithstanding this, given the number of fire alarm notifications
and apparent interference with the fire alarm system it is considered further fire
safety upgrading works are required. An order would provide an opportunity for an
audit and suitable fire alarm system works to be designed and implemented to
address the identified deficiencies.

The fire safety order would require an audit of all the eX|st|ng fire safety measures
so as to ensure current deficiencies are rectified.

06/03/2018 | Report prepared, to table FRNSW report to CounC|I meeting to be held on 16 April
2018.

Council’s officer is in contact with FRNSW concerning arrangements for a joint
inspection.

FIRE AND RESCUE NSW REPORT:

References: [D18/9620; 2018/079520]

Fire and Rescue NSW conducted an inspection of the subject premises after receiving an enquiry
In relation to the adequacy of provision for fire safety within the premises.

Issues The report from FRNSW detailed a number of issues, in particular noting;

Schedule 5, clause17 C:\Users\chann\TRIM\Offline Records (CS)\CSM - Documents - CUSTOMER SERVICE -
REGISTRATION(2)\Internal Correspondence - Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation
Report.DOCX/April 2018 -CM Page 2 of % 6




1. They consider the building to exceed 25 metres in effective height and therefore request a
review of the adequacy of fire safety measures installed in the building;

2. A number of faults to the automatic smoke detection and alarm system and concerns
regarding ineffective and excessive alarm operation;

3. Fire hydrant system missing signhage (block plan) and discrepancies regarding its standard
of performance;

FRNSW Recommendations

FRNSW have made five recommendations within their report. In general FRNSW have requested
that Council; '

1. Inspect the subject premises and take action to have the identified fire safety issues
appropriately addressed,;

2. Upgrade the fire hydrant system at the subject premises to comply with AS2419.1-2005;

3. Upgrade the smoke detection and alarm system at the subject premises to comply with
AS1670.1-2015;

4. Determine the effective height of the building and if found over 25 metres in effective
height, consider a fire safety upgrade to the subject premises;

5. Arrange a mutually convenient fime to conduct joint inspection with FRNSW;

FRNSW have also requested that as soon as practical after the above report has been tabled and
considered, that notice of any determination in relation to the report and recommendations is
forwarded to them in accordance with Section 121ZD (4) of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979.

___COUNCIL INVESTIGATION OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS:

As a result of a site inspection undertaken by Council investigation officers it is recommended that
Council exercise its powers to give a notice of intention (NOI) for an Order 6 under Section 9.34
and Schedule 5, Part 2 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 to address the
fire safety deficiencies identified by FRNSW and Council’s building officer.

The issue of a fire safety order will ensure that suitable fire safety systems are in position
throughout the building to provide improved and adequate provisions for fire safety.

That the Commissioner of FRNSW be advised of Council’s actions and outcomes.

Referenced documents:

No# Document type Trim reference
A1, Fire and Rescue NSW report 2018/085938-01
A2. Locality Plan (cadastre) 2018/085938-02
A3 Attachment cover sheet 2018/085938-03
Trim Reference: 2018/085938 CSM reference No#: 1854239

Schedule 5, clause17 C:\Users\chann\TRIM\Offline Records (CS)\CSM - Documents - CUSTOMER SERVICE -
REGISTRATION(2)\Internal Correspondence - Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation
Report.DOCX/April 2018 -CM Page 3 of %7




Unclassified

File Ref. No:  BFS16/2934 (0511)
TRIM Ref. No: D18/9620

Contact: Station Ofﬁcer_

21 February 2018

General Manager
City of Sydney

GPO Box 1591
SYDNEY NSW 2001

Email: council@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au

Attention: Manager Compliance/Fire Safety
Dear Sir/Madam,

Re: INSPECTION REPORT and REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE
MCKELL BUILDING
55 WALKER STREET REDFERN (“the premises”)

Fire & Rescue NSW (FRNSW) received correspondence in relation to the adequacy
of the provision for fire safety in or in connection with ‘the premises’.

The correspondence stated that:

e Alarm Signalling Equipment (ASE) not notifying FRNSW to alarm of fire,
security had to ring station via local exchange and only that they
happened to notice Fire Indicator Panel (FIP) in alarm, no audible
warnings/ ext. bells to building.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 119T (1) of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act), an inspection of ‘the premises’ on 3 August 2017
was conducted by Authorised Fire Officers from the Fire Safety Compliance Unit of
FRNSW.

The inspection was limited to the following:

s A conceptual overview of the building, where an inspection had been conducted
without copies of the development consent or copies of the approved floor
plans. o ‘

On behalf of the Commissioner of FRNSW, the following comments are provided for
your information in accordance with Section 119T (4) and Section 121ZD (1) of the
EP&A Act. Please be advised that Section 121ZD (2) requires any report or
recommendation from the Commissioner of FRNSW to be tabled at a Council meeting.

Unclassified
Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate : Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 1 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

58




Unclassified

COMMENTS

The following items were identified as concerns at the time of the inspection:

1. 23 faults were present on the fire indicator panel’ (FIP) at the building, cohtrary
to the requirements of Clause 182 of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Regulation 2000 (EP&A Regulation).

21 of the faults, indicated that a smoke/heat detector or sounder bases had
been disconnected from the smoke detection and alarm system in Sole
Occupancy Units (SOUs), common areas and service shafts.

2. A battery and beli fault were present on the control and indicating equipment
(CIE) associated with the FIP, contrary to the requirements of Clause 182 of
the EP&A Regulation. ’

Certification

3. Effective Height — FRNSW considers that the building has an effective height
of more than 25m.

The Annual Fire Safety Statement (AFSS) displayed at the building describes
the building as:

e BCA, Class 2 residential, rise in stories 9-1 0, with an effective height on
or about 25 metres, Type A construction.

The inspection revealed that the essential fire safety measures required in a
building more than 25m in effective height, in accordance with the National
Construction Code 2016 Volume One, Building Code of Australia (NCC), have
not been provided to the premises. ‘ '

4. The fire hydrant installation listed on the AFSS states that it is installed to the
standard of performance of “Ministerial Spec’ No. 10 Ord 70, AS2419.1.”
FRNSW were unable to determine how the fire hydrant system is set up to be
served by each standard and/or which portion of the building is served by each
Standard.

A lack of signage at the fire hydrant booster assembly does not assist
firefighters in determining pressure and flows requirements at the premises.

FRNSW is therefore of the opinion that there are inadequate provisions for fire safety
within the building.

Unclassified
Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 8742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 2 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

59




Unclassified

FIRE SAFETY ORDER NO. 6

The inspecting Authorised Fire Officers from the Fire Safety Compliance Unit of
FRNSW issued an Order No. 6, dated 28 August 2017, in accordance with the
provisions of Section 121B of the EP&A Act, to have item no. 1 and item no. 2 of this
report rectified.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 121ZE of the EP&A Act, a copy of the
Order is attached for your information. FRNSW has conducted further inspections of
the building to assess compliance with the terms of this Order.

RE-INSPECTION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 119T(1)(b) of the EP&A Act and Clause 189(a)
of the EP&A Regulation, inspections of ‘the premises’ on 19 September, 18 October
2017, 13 December 2017 and 6 February 2018 were conducted by Authorised Fire
Officers from the Fire Safety Compliance Unit of FRNSW.,

At the time of the inspection on 18 October 2017, FRNSW found that item 2 of ‘the
order’ issued on ‘the premises’ was compliant. ' v

At the time of the inspection of 6 February 2018, ltem 1 of the Order was still not
compliant. ‘

FRNSW are of the opinion that compliance with the Emergency Fire Safety Order will
not be achieved whilst the smoke detection and alarm system is in its current
configuration.

Information gathered during re-inspections and investigations relating to the building,
allowed FRNSW to deduce the following: .

a. An alarm delay is programmed into the CIE. An activated smoke detector
within a SOU sends a signal to the FIP and sounds the local sounder at the
panel but does not automatically elevate the alarm to a fire brigade response
should the activated detector not be reset/acknowledged.

FRNSW were unable to determine the standard to which this facility
complies. ‘

b. The onsite security advised FRNSW that upon hearing the sounder, if the
Fire Brigades have not arrived at the premises within fifteen minutes, a triple
zero call is made to the fire brigades.

c. FRNSW were advised that up to six (6) smoke/heat detectors are installed
in each SOU. The representative from the servicing company indicated that
that detectors may be removed to prevent FRNSW from responding to the

building.
Unclassified
Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safefy Diréctorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 3 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

60




Unclassified

d. FRNSW records show that the Fire Brigades have responded to the
premises on multiple occasions over the last four (4) years for fire and non-
fire incidents. o ‘ ‘

The table below represents Brigades responses during that period:

TOTAL
YEAR RESPONSES AFA FIRES
2014 ' 112 97 15
2015 75 70 5
2016 100 95 5
2017 65 64 1

An excessive incident rate at the premises, resultihg from fauits, detector and sounder
disconnections and a potential delay of up to fifteen-minute for a FRNSW response,
may adversely impact on the life safety of occupants at the premises.

ASSISTANCE FOR AUTHORISED FIRE OFFICERS —
REQUEST FOR JOINT INSPECTION

In accordance with Section 119T of the EP&A Act, the Commissioner of Fire and
Rescue NSW (FRNSW) requests Council make available a Council Investigation
Officer for the purposes of an inspection.

Pursuant to Section 119T (3) of the EP&A Act, FRNSW requests Council organize a
mutually convenient time to conduct a joint inspection.

Please respond to FRNSW by no later than 7 March 2018 with a suitable date and
time when a council investigation officer will be present for an inspection.
RECOMMENDATIONS

FRNSW recommends that Council:

a. Inspect and address item no. 1 through to item no. 4 of this report and any other
deficiencies identified on ‘the premises’.

b. Upgrade the fire hydrant system at the premises to comply with AS2419.1-
2005.

c. Upgrade the smoke detection and alarm system at the premises to the standard
of performance of AS1670.1-2015, to incorporate an alarm acknowledgment
facility in each SOU.

Unclassified
Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 8742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 4 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

61




Unclassified

d. Determine if the building has an effective height more than 25m. Based on the
determination, consider a fire safety upgrade to the essential fire safety
measures in the premises. ’

e. Pursuant to FRNSW's Request For A Joint Inspection, under Section 119T (3)
of the EP&A Act, organize a mutually convenient time to conduct a joint
inspection.

Please respond to FRNSW with a suitable date and time when a Council
Investigation Officer will be present for an inspection.

This matter is referred to Council as the appropriate regulatory authority. FRNSW
therefore awaits Council's advice regarding its determination in accordance with
Section 121ZD (4) of the EP&A Act.

hesitate to contact Station Officer f FRNSW's Fire Safety Compliance Unit
on (02) 9742 7434. Please ensure that you refer to file reference BFS16/2934 (0511)
_ for any future correspondence in relation to this matter.

Should you have any enquiries reﬁardini any of the above matters, please do not

Yours faithfully

Building Surveyor
Fire Safety Compliance Unit

Attachment; [Appendix 1 — Emergency Fire Safety Order — Two pages]

Unclassified
Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate ' Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 50of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

62




Unclassified

Appendix 1 — Emergency Fire Safety Order

B, , . . Unglessitied
ik |Fire &
NSW |Rescue NSW

Emergency Fire Safety Order
Under the Environmentaei Planning and Assesemant Act 1973
Purt 6 - Implementation and Enforcement; Division 2A - Orders
Tables to Section 1218 Emergancy Qrdar No. 6 - Fire Safaty Order
PFiease note. )

o Pursuani to Secllon 121ZC12) of e Acl, ihls Order has been given as an Emergency Order &s
the issting oMicer belleves activily or deficiencies identffiad constifute an amsigenty o7 sarious
1isk to ssfely. ;

o Pursusnt i Seatlon 121ZK {2) of the Act, thare is rio'right of appeai against this Order.

o Fallurs ta comply with this Order may rasull in further Ordars andfor fines belng lssied.

o Substsntial panatiies may be imposed tnder Section 125 of the Act for faikie to comply with sn
Ordar.

L s ] Station Officer

{rems) {rank) . {funiban

being an authorised lire Officer within the msaning of Section 121ZC of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, and duly authorised for Ihe
purpose, hereby order.

NSW Land and Housing Corperation Owner
tname of parson whom Order is sénec) {positon 1 ¢ tavnar, bubiding managarh

with respect to the premise

MCKELL BUILDING
55 WALKER STREET REDFERN {“the premises”)
(namaladdress of oramisss (o which Order (s served)

to do, or refrain from doing, the following things:

1. Ensure the Automatic Smoke Detection and Alarm System installed in ‘the
premises’ is fully operational, by removing all faults displayed on the Fire
Indicator Panel.

The terms of the Order are to be complied with:

By no later than 1200 hours on the § September 2017

Uncizssitied

Fira & Regeud NSW ABN 12 595 473 110 wavw.flne new.gov.au

Commurity Satety Drecterate Lackas Bag 12 T {02 9TLE TAI4

Fira Ssiuf—g Samabance Uk Guegnaure NSW 260 » F 02} 9742 7483

fiensafaty@Rce. nsw.qov.40 Pagetaf2 & Copyright State Gowt NSW

Unclassified

Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au Page 6 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

63




Unclassified

Unslasaifiod

The reasons for the Issue of this Order are:

o

. Al the time of the inspections:
i, The building was occupied;

I 23 faulis relating to zones throughout the building were displayed on the
FIP;

ii. A Battery Fault and a Beli Fault were displayed on the FIP

b lIsclations and faults to the Automatic Smoke Dstection and Alarm System may
leave cecupants unaware of an emergency.

¢. To ensure that the Automatic Smoke Detection and Alarm System is capable
of operating In accordance with the designed standard of performance and
when first installed.

d To ensure that the Automatic Smoke Delsction and Alarm System are fully
operational, so accupants are provided with early notification of a fire within the
premises so that they may safely evacuate the premises.

e. To comply with the maintenance requirements of Clause 182 of the
Envirenmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000

This Order No. 6 was sent by mail on 28 August 2017

Fire Safety Compliance Unit

: Unclassified
Firo & Roscus NSW ABN 12 583473 110 wearve lire s o2
Comrmuntty Safety D ractorate Lacked Bag 12 Fia64a8 rqls
Fre Safely Camplange Jnit Sroenacre NSW 219¢ E N S7a2 TaRd
firasafaity@flen.nsw.gov.au Page 2of2 S Copynight Sime Sove NS

Unclassified

Fire & Rescue NSW ABN 12 593 473 110 www.fire.nsw.gov.au
Community Safety Directorate Locked Bag 12 T (02) 9742 7434
Fire Safety Compliance Unit Greenacre NSW 2190 F (02) 9742 7483
firesafety@fire.nsw.gov.au . Page 7 of 7 © Copyright State Govt NSW

64




	Agenda
	1 Disclosures of Interest
	2 Policy - Neighbourhood Parking Policy
	Attachment A Neighbourhood Parking Policy
	Attachment B Summary of Submissions

	3 Policy - Public Exhibition - Energy and Waste Amendment 2018 - Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
	Attachment A Proposed Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and Green Square Development Control Plan 2012 - Energy and Waste Amendment 2018
	Attachment B Summary table of amendments
	Attachment C Proposed Guidelines for Waste Management in New Developments

	4 Fire Safety Reports
	Attachment A Fire Safety Report Summary Sheet
	Attachment B Council Officer Inspection Report, 591 George Street, Sydney
	Attachment C Council Officer Inspection Report, 51 & 53 Bourke Road, Alexandria
	Attachment D Council Officer Inspection Report, 200 Pitt Street, Waterloo
	Attachment E Council Officer Inspection Report, 2A Forsyth Street, Glebe
	Attachment F Council Officer Inspection Report, 42 Morehead Street, Redfern




